PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
Monday, September 24, 2018 - 7:00 PM
City Hall, Council Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy. Newport, OR 97365

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for
the DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING, or for other accommodations for persons with
disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City
Recorder at 541.574.0613.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

2.A Approval of the Planning Commission Work Session Meeting Minutes of
September 10, 2018
Draft PC Work Session 9-10-18.pdf

2.B  Approval of the Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes of
September 10, 2018
Draft PC Minutes 9-10-18.pdf

3. CITIZENS/PUBLIC COMMENT
A Public Comment Roster is availlable immediately inside the Council Chambers. Anyone
who would like to address the Planning Commission on any matter not on the agenda will
be given the opportunity after signing the Roster. Each speaker should limit comments
to three minutes. The normal disposition of these items will be at the next scheduled
Planning Commission meeting.


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/242594/Draft_PC_Work_Session_9-10-18.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/242596/Draft_PC_Minutes_9-10-18.pdf

5.A

5.B

5.C

ACTION ITEMS

PUBLIC HEARINGS

3-Z-18: Text Amendment for Extended Stay Hotels and Motels.
File 3-Z-18.pdf
File 3-Z-18 - Findings.pdf

File 3-VAR-18 (Continued): Sign Variance for Pacific Communities Health
District.

File 1-VAR-18.pdf

File 1-GP-18-A: Appeal of Geologic Permit (File 1-GP-18) West of NW Spring
St (Lincoln County Assessor’s Tax Map 11-11-05-BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900 &
1903)

File 1-GP-18-A.pdf

NEW BUSINESS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

DIRECTOR COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/242537/File_3-Z-18.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/243041/File_3-Z-18_-_Findings.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/242539/File_1-VAR-18.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/242541/File_1-GP-18-A.pdf

Draft MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission
Work Session
Newport City Hall Council Chambers
September 10, 2018
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Mike Franklin, and Jim Hanselman.

Planning Commissioners Absent: Bob Berman, Rod Croteau, and Bill Branigan (all excused)

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Dustin Capri.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.

1.

2.

1

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

Unfinished Business.

New Business.

Review DOGAMI's Tsunami Time and Distance Modeling Results. Tokos introduced Laura Gabel with the Oregon
Department of Geology. Gabel reviewed her PowerPoint presentation with the PC. She noted the four “Beat the Wave”
products that would be coming out of the modeling: Evacuation Routes, Pedestrian Walking Speeds, Evacuation
“Communities”, and Tsunami Wave Arrival Time maps. She covered what could be done with the data.

Gabel reviewed the XXL Wave Arrival Maps for the different areas in Newport. She noted the time it took for waves
to arrive in the different areas.

Gabel covered the landslide and liquefaction potential for the Bayfront. She noted all of the routes that were blocked
with the understanding of previous maps and slopes in the area. She noted that lateral spreading of sand on Bay Blvd
will make would cause the road to separate and make passing on the road difficult. Patrick thought that the City should
punch some trails on right-of-ways that were undeveloped as evacuation routes and suggested Canyon Way. Franklin
asked why they wouldn’t encourage running. Gabel said there were concerns that yellow meant a slow walk and they
were working on a version of a public interfacing map. This would not tell people to slowly walk. Franklin was
concerned that a slow walk gave the false sense of safety. Hanselman was concerned with the use of yellow because
some of the sections were heavily wooded and would have trees that would fall. He thought a slow walk wouldn’t work
because it would be shut off. Patrick thought the banks were steep enough for people to get outside of the hazard zone.

Jenny Demaris, Emergency Manager for the Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office, addressed the PC and said that there
would be multiple options for evacuating and noted that thirty minutes was the best case scenario. She said they needed
to look for multiple evacuation routes incase ones were blocked. Demaris thought that having multiple routes was great
news instead of having only one evacuation route. She said that these routes illustrated that people had enough time to
evacuate instead of just giving up. Gabel said the work illustrated areas that needed improvement and the XXL Map
was used to illustrate the largest tsunami instead of what it could be, which would likely be much lower. Patrick asked
if there were any lateral faults that were closer. Gabel said yes and it was more of an academic thing rather than what
they were focused on. Demaris said they had instant notification for earthquakes and would know if it wasn’t a
subduction earthquake. Emergency management would push the messages quickly to let people know there wasn’t a
tsunami. Gabel said that what Demaris was talking about was an onshore earthquake and was not in the subduction
zone.

Gabel reviewed the Hatfield Marine Science Center evacuation zone scenario maps next. She noted the liquefaction
map scenario and how it made surfaces much more difficult to walk on and would mean running to evacuate. Gabel
noted that the evacuation of the Aquarium facility wasn’t factored into the scenarios. She said it highlighted that they
needed to get rid of as many obstructions to increase the ability to evacuate.

Patrick asked how the docks would hold up in a tsunami and asked if someone could evacuate on a boat. Gabel said
there wasn’t enough time to evacuate on a boat and thought they would need to get out at least 100 fathoms or around
2 miles to be safe. She said the wave arrival times would be included up the river to Toledo. Franklin asked if there
were evacuation options of Bay Road. Gabel said the thought was that the road would most likely fall into the Bay if an

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 9/10/18.



4.

5.

earthquake happened and thought that people caught on the road could scramble up the hill out of the tsunami zone.
Gabel thought that the docks would be a difficult area to evacuate and it was hard to get out of a boat if pilings were
bent. She thought it would be a good idea to talk to NOAA to see what sort of plans they had in place. Demaris said
NOAA was very dialed in. She said that one idea for the dock was to retrofit them to be taller so they could rise with
the water and not float away.

Gabel noted that the OSU MSI vertical evacuation structure changed the evacuation time in the area. Capri asked in
terms of liquefaction, did they take into account that routes would be gone completely. Gabel said there was no way to
guess what would be impassible. Capri asked what tsunami level the OSU MSI evacuation building would be built to.
Gabel said their tsunami force was engineered to a strong degree and the height was built as high as an XXL.

Gabel asked for ideas from the PC. Tokos asked how they discounted for facilities like the Aquarium. Gabel said there
was 10 minutes taken off to allow for the shaking to stop and to get out to the nearest street. She thought it was going
to be a little harder to exit the Aquarium and wanted to talk to them about signage for evacuation. Tokos said the Nye
Beach, hotel row, and Agate Beach areas hadn’t been discussed. Gabel said she didn’t show the results because they
were like the Bayfront.

Gabel covered the South Beach area scenarios next and reviewed how the State Park addressed evacuation routes with
their visitors. She noted the Cooper Ridge Trail would be difficult to pass depending on the time of the year or day.
Gabel said that liquefaction would have an effect on the South Beach area. She reviewed other different scenarios for
South Beach and showed the South Shore community scenarios next.

Gabel said the next steps was to get feedback from the PC on additional scenarios to run. She noted that she would
pursue liquefaction plus vertical evacuation for Hatfield and Southbeach. Gabel said they would be putting together a
report and noted that www.oregontsunami.org had links to reports they had done so far.

Director’s Comments. No Director comments.

Adjournment. Having no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

2

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 9/10/18.



Draft MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission
Regular Session
Newport City Hall Council Chambers
September 10, 2018

Planning Commissioners Present: Lee Hardy, Jim Patrick, Mike Franklin, Jim Hanselman,

Planning Commissioners Present: Bob Berman, Rod Croteau and Bill Branigan (all excused).

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD), Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri
Marineau.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call. Commissioner Branigan called the meeting to order in the City Hall Council
Chambers at 7:00 p.m. On roll call, Commissioners Hardy, Berman, Franklin, and Branigan were present.

2. Approval of Minutes.

A. Approval of the Planning Commission work session meeting minutes of August 13, 2018.

Hardy noted a change to the work session meetings to say that she said there had been seasonal changes, instead of
that she thought there were.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Franklin, seconded by Commissioner Hardy to approve the Planning
Commission work session meeting minutes of August 13, 2018 with one minor correction. The motion carried
unanimously in a voice vote.

B. Approval of the Planning Commission regular session meeting minutes of August 13, 2018.
MOTION was made by Commissioner Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Franklin to approve the Planning

Commission regular session meeting minutes of August 13, 2018 as presented. The motion carried unanimously in a
voice vote.

3. Citizen/Public Comment. No public comments.

4. Action Items. No Action Items.

5. Unfinished Business. No Unfinished Business.

6. Public Notices. At 7:02 p.m. Chair Patrick opened the public hearing portion of the meeting by reading the

statement of rights and relevance. He asked the Commissioners for declarations of conflicts of interest, ex parte
contacts, bias, or site visits. Patrick reported a site visit. Patrick called for objections to any member of the Planning
Commission or the Commission as a whole hearing this matter; and none were heard.

A File No. 1-SUB-18/2-VAR-18/3-GP-18.

Patrick called for staff report. Tokos reviewed his staff report. He noted the public comment letters received for the
hearing and said they had concerns about the geologic report and work being done adjacent to the Harbor Crescent
subdivision. Tokos reported that the biggest issue with staff was the utility locations. He noted that the geologic report
was specific to the subdivision. When individual homes were to be built, they would have to do individual geologic
reports to address the build of each home. Tokos reviewed the variance next and why the development of the street
would not meet the standard. He then reviewed the 15 conditions of approval for all three land use applications.

Franklin asked if the typography was more unstable than other subdivisions in the area and asked if the other
subdivision have to go through the same process. Tokos explained that the area was a historic landslide block. He said
couldn’t say what its relative significance was for landslide history compared to other subdivisions. The City’s
requirement was that they needed a geologist to determine if the subdivision was suitable for the intended

Page 1 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —9/10/18.




development. If structural remediation was needed to make it suitable, that would be where a geo technical or civil
engineer would get involved. Hanselman asked if the geological report was only good for 5 years. Tokos said yes and
was why they did a supplemental memo to update the report. Hanselman asked if updated form was as detailed as the
original report. Tokos said their letter said they did both reports and went through and decided what needed to be
updated. Hanselman asked if the subdivision was approved would each lot have to do another geological report. Tokos
said they would. They could do a report for multiple lots, if they were doing a couple of lots, and would be required
under the code.

Patrick asked how the stormwater would be mitigated from the houses because he didn't see an easement for system.
Tokos said the hydraulic analysis would have to do some worse case assumptions to analyze the amount of impervious
surface on the lots commutatively. This would be done so they could analysis for a 25 year/24 hour storm event and
determine if the city system had the capacity to add it to the system or not. He believed all of the lots were configured
as such to get the stormwater to the city system in some capacity. Hanselman was concerned about the slope issue
raised in the public comment letters and staff report. He asked how much of land mass had a slope of 12 percent or
greater. Tokos said there were maps included in the application to show contours. The steeper slopes would affect the
far east side adjacent to the Harbor Crescent subdivision and the northwest corner adjacent to RV park. He didn't
calculate the percentage. Hanselman noted his concerns on the west side of the subdivision drainage. Hardy asked if
the process required the impact on adjoining properties to be analyzed and addressed specifically with respect to
drainage soil stability and those kinds of things. Tokos said yes and a geological report analysis would look at the
site’s suitability, and as part of the analysis they would look at how to construct without affecting the properties that
were around the site.

Proponents: Curt Fisher from AKS Engineering & Forestry, LLC addressed the PC. He said he concurred with the
staff report and appreciated the geologic overlay comments. He said they were careful to make sure the geo report
responded in the applicable ways. Fisher noted that they fully intended to follow the recommendations followed in
the production of the final construction plans and installation of the improvements for the subdivision. Fisher noted
that this was just a subdivision application and said they had met the applicable city codes and standards. They were
prepared with the recommendations of the geo report. He reviewed how the grading would need to be done with the
geologic overlay. He requested that the PC approve their application.

Franklin asked if the removal of the sidewalk would be on the uphill side, the downhill side, or the entire subdivision.
Fisher said it was only for the hammerhead section. To require the full street and sidewalks would mean more grading
and felt it was why they should be removed. Patrick asked what the assumptions were for lot coverage. Fisher didn't
know what the assumptions were. David Carr addressed the PC. He noted that he was the registered engineer for plans.
Carr reported that typically a minimum size for a house was 2,500 square feet and they would be looking at 3,000
square feet of impervious area for each. Hanselman was concerned this meant there would be a lot of run off. He asked
if the geo engineer could be required to be onsite when the foundations were being poured for each lot build. Fisher
said they would engage the geo tech engineer in the subdivision application. There were no building permits at that
time but they would be evaluated at the appropriate time.

Opponents: William Chadwick addressed the PC. He submitted a letter to the PC and read it for the record. Hardy
and Franklin felt Chadwick was making a reasonable request.

Teresa Atwill addressed the PC. She noted that she had submitted a letter to the PC. Atwill said she was on the Coastal
Natural Hazards Planning Group and knew it was challenging for cities to do something concerning geo reports
because once they were written and certified by a State geologist, there wasn’t a lot you could do about it. She said
since this was in a landslide zone, it was an opportunity to make sure that they could set a protection for the surrounding
homes by making sure they did an adequate job of analyzing the geology instead of leaving it up to the home builders.
She noted that all the developer would be doing was prepping the property and the owner would still have to do a
geological report with no guarantee that the slopes would be ok. She thought the geologic report should be something
that would evaluate if each lot was buildable and the kinds of building people would have to do to protect the other
properties. She felt they needed to do a more detailed survey instead of one done in a couple of hours. Atwill was
concerned that they added fill to property in 2007 and 2008 that wasn't there when the original report was done. She
asked that the property owner identify where the fill was and remove it. Atwill didn't want to see a landslide because
of development on the bottom of the hill.

Karmen Vanderbeck addressed the PC. She read the letter she submitted to the PC for the record. Hanselman asked if
the Harbor Crescent subdivision fell in the same geo hazards zone as new subdivision. Tokos said yes.

Page 2 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —9/10/18.



Eric Knutson. Cam Brant, Bernadette Salano addressed the PC and stated they agreed with the comments from the
other neighbors and supported their recommendation.

Caroline Starsole addressed the PC and said when she purchased her home she had asked her realtor about the lots
below her lot and was told it was in a no build zone. She attended the meeting to educate herself.

Laura Seager and Barbara Coyle. Supported the previous neighbors comments.

Atwill address the PC again and asked to have the record kept open for seven days in order to review the Planning
Department staff report. She said the community members knew they were in a landslide hazards zone and was why
they were so concerned about what was happening at the toe of the slope where it would be more likely to have a
landslide.

Rebuttal: Fisher addressed the PC. He said in terms of the request to defer the decision until the geotechnical report
was revised to specifically address the issue of long term slope stability, he said the report was intended to specifically
address slope stability and the existence of the geologic overlay was intended to address long term slope instability.
He said they had made great efforts to address the applicable criteria to insure long term slope stability. Fisher noted
that it was not in the interest of the applicant to do a development that was on shifty ground or had the potential to
slide away or bring down earth from adjacent properties. He said the request that the geotechnical report should include
permanent engineering solutions wasn't in the scope of a geological report. They had presented a preliminary report
to address these concerns as per code and the conditions. Permanent engineering solutions would be submitted with
improvements of the streets prior to platting. Fisher encouraged the PC to let the process go forward. The soil deposit
was referenced in the technical report with a recommendation to have it removed and treated appropriately. Fisher
believed both the applicable criteria and provisions of the code in the review process would take place as the final
construction was permitted and the plat was recorded and felt it would adequately address all the concerns.

Tokos suggested that the request to have the hearing be left open be kept open to the 17th of October PC meeting. He
thought that if there was anything the applicant should analysis, it was a good time. He suggested the PC do
deliberations at the current meeting and figure out what needed to be considered by applicant. The record would be
left open for seven days until September 17th, then there would be an additional seven days for people to respond to
new testimony. The applicant would then be entitled to final argument and would have another seven days. This would
mean the PC would come back to continue the hearing on October 8th.

Franklin was concerned that there could be a landslide and asked why it wasn't an advantage for the developer to come
up with a fix all solution on the back wall/back cut of the property so it was continuous and completed at the start to
ease everyone's mind. Fischer said the plans that were in front of the PC were developed based on best engineering
practices. This would be asking for over engineering of what they had developed for on the recommended engineer
standards, and felt over engineering at that time was not warranted. Patrick asked if the engineering was for the road
bed, sidewalks, and drainage but not individual lots. Fischer said yes, the area along the east side slopes were graded
and finished according to the recommendation of the geo report. Hanselman asked if grading on the east side was done
with the geo standards, what happened when a new owner came in to build and cut into the slope. Tokos said when
people came in to develop they would have to do their own geo report specific to their build. They wouldn’t have the
right to just excavate the site. Hardy asked how much the City would take responsibility to disclose to potential buyers
the potential risk of flawed development or messing up the engineering. Tokos said the City didn't take liability for
this and was why they set us a geologic permitting process with an engineering geologist who signed off on it for
suitability and a geotechnical engineer or civil engineer who signed off on structural remediation if needed to make a
site suitable. They would put their stamp behind it and were qualified to do this. There were a couple of different
statewide boards that were available for people to take issues to if the work was done poorly. Hardy asked if there
could be deed restrictions put in place. Tokos said when updating the geo permit review, they decided it wasn't a
provision that could be included in the updates.

Hearing closed at 8:02 p.m.

Hardy suggested the developer consider taking the initiate for deed restrictions to make sure there was a full clear
understanding for buyers in terms of what they were looking at and what needs they would have to satisfy. Franklin
agreed with Hardy’s suggestion. Hanselman agreed with Hardy's suggestion. He was torn on how it because so much
was at risk for so many people. He wanted the three missing PC members be included in the decision and said he

Page 3 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —9/10/18.



wasn't ready to vote on the matter. Hanselman proposed waiting even longer to make a decision until he felt more
comfortable with the reports. Patrick agreed with Hanselman on his point on having the missing PC members be a
part of the consideration. He was concerned about the current grading of the lots and wanted to see more details on
this. Patrick liked the idea on the permanent builds but there was no way to know what people would want to build
and how soon and didn't think it was feasible. He wanted the other PC members to review the record and asked if
additional comments could be taken. Tokos said yes, the record would still be open. Hanselman said he would feel
more comfortable with something along those lines. Patrick asked if the previous applicant for a subdivision was done
before the geologic code. Tokos said yes, it was before the iteration of the code.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hanselman to keep File No. 1-SUB-18/2-
VAR-18/3-GP-18 record open for seven days, with another seven day response period, followed by seven days of
final arguments, and a hearing continuation on October 8, 2018. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.

B. File No. 3-VAR-18.

Tokos gave his staff report for File 3-VAR-18 and noted his conclusions.

Proponents: Matthew Brown addressed the PC and noted the criteria that should be used to evaluate the approval. He
explained that the intent of the signage was to create a user friendly environment. He noted that the letter height was
part of the building architecture and photos from Highway 101 showed that it allowed for visibility from the highway.
He noted the window of visibility and illumination was limited based on the building boxing it in. The orientation of
the signs on 9th Street versus the adjacent street was placed according to function and entry points to the campus, and
the placement would guide people to emergency. As far as the three square foot directional sign code variance, the
intent was to give a visitor enough time to comprehend what was on the sign to make appropriate choices. He noted
they were scaling down the signs and placement versus the existing pole signs.

Franklin said he didn't have a problem with the monument signs and emergency sign. He asked who the 6 foot by 85
foot sign benefited. Brown said it had target value to see it from a distance, and was for tourists and those who were
unfamiliar with Newport. Franklin thought the sign could be half the size and questioned if it was needed. Hanselman
said he didn't ever see signs the size they were requested He did think signage was important and wanted people were
aware when driving and not distracted by signs. He wanted to have the minimalistic approach and had a problem with
signs on corners where someone couldn't see traffic that was coming toward them. Hanselman had a problem when
signs were too big. He wasn't certain the additional signs would help visitors and felt visitors would be looking for the
emergency, not other departments. Brown said they set out to limit the number of destinations and each of the signs
had information for guidance to the main entrance, emergency or destinations that the public wasn’t meant to arrive
at like receiving. He said they wanted signage to be effective.

Opponents: No were heard.

Hearing closed at 8:27 p.m.

Hanselman didn't see a need for anything that was 30 feet to the top of the sign and felt it would be overwhelming.
Franklin had a problem with the 85 foot sign. Hardy didn't have a problem with the request. Patrick didn't have a
problem with any wayfinding signage. He had concerns about the giant sign and noted the city hadn’t done variances
for anything that size. Tokos noted they could leave the hearing open for the applicant to provide a modification on
size.

Patrick reopened the hearing at 8:31 p.m.

Brown said what he was hearing was the concern about size. Hanselman said it also could be the height of 30 feet.
Brown said it was the height that was on the building and noted the sign was not freestanding. Patrick said the location
was at the end of the building. Brown said that he could provide photos to show where the signs would be located.
Tokos suggested continuing the hearing.

Hearing closed at 8:38 p.m.

Page 4 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —9/10/18.



MOTION was made by Commissioner Franklin, seconded by Commissioner Hardy, to continue File 3-VAR-18: Sign
Variance for Pacific Communities Health District to the September 24, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting. The
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.

C. File No. 3-Z-18.
Patrick opened the hearing and closed the hearing at 8:36pm.
MOTION was made by Commissioner Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Franklin to continue File 3-Z-18: Zoning

Text Amendments to NMC 14.01.020 and 14.03.060 Related to Extended Stay Motels to the September 24, 2018
Planning Commission Meeting. The mation carried unanimously in a voice vote.

7. New Business. None were heard.
8. Unfinished Business. None were heard.
9. Director Comments.

Tokos noted the next meeting would have a public hearing for a geologic report appeal and reviewed the process.

Tokos noted that the City Council approved the renaming of the public places code and the PC wouldn't see hearings
for these anymore.

Tokos noted that Karmen Vanderbeck resigned as a Planning Commission Advisory Committee Member and would
be supporting the PC as part of other city committees. He noted that the original advisory committee was formed as
part of a project and asked the PC if they wanted to continue with a subgroup. Patrick found it useful but thought it
was hard to find members. Hanselman wanted thank Vanderbeck and thought the PC should say a thank you for her
time. Tokos asked the PC to think about this and they would take it up at the next work session.

Tokos noted that the updated work program showed that the first meeting about VRDS would be held on a coming
work session meeting.

10. Adjournment. Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:42 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau
Executive Assistant

Page 5 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes —9/10/18.



10

C ity of N ewpo rt Community Development

Department

Memorandum

To:  Planning Commission
From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director

Date: September 18,2018

Re:  Continued Hearing on File No. 3-Z-18, Proposal by Pacific Seafood Group to Amend the
Newport Municipal Code to Allow Extended Stay (i.e. Non-Transient) Hotels/Motels

This request was originally scheduled to be heard by the Planning Commission at its September
10, 2018 meeting. Unfortunately, notice of the hearing did not publish in the News-Times on
the date the city requested meaning that the matter was not properly noticed in accordance with
Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Section 14.52.060(F), which states:

“Published Notice. Notice of each Type III and Type IV hearing shall be published at least
once in a newspaper of general circulation in the city at least 5 days, and no more than 14
days, prior to the date set for public hearing.”

Enclosed is a copy of a notice for public hearing on this Type IV legislative amendment
proposal, published in the September 14, 2018 edition of the Newport News-Times, along with
a photocopy of the advertisement as proof of publication. This satisfies the public notice
requirements.

On September 10", the Planning Commission continued it consideration of this application to
September 24™ without taking testimony or deliberating on the application. With that in mind,
I am enclosing with this memo the staff report from the September 10" meeting in its entirely
for the Commission’s consideration. The applicant has indicated that they may supplement
their findings in support of the legislative amendment. If an updated set of findings is
submitted by the end of the week, then we will upload them to the city website as a supplement
to the Planning Commission packet. Any information received after close of business on
Friday will be distributed at the meeting on Monday.

Attachments

Corrected hearing notice
Staff report from the 9/10/18 Planning Commission meeting

Page 1 of 1



11

CITY OF NEWPORT
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

The Newport Planning Commission will hold a continued public hearing on Monday, September 24,
2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers to consider File No. 3-Z-18, revisions to the Newport
Municipal Code (NMC) 14.01.020 and 14.03.060 to provide for extended stay hotel and motel uses. Pursuant
to Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Section 14.36.010, the Commission must find that the change is required
by public necessity and the general welfare of the community in order for it to make a recommendation to
the City Council that the amendments be adopted. Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the
request above or other criteria, including criteria within the Comprehensive Plan and its implementing
ordinances, which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient
specificity to afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to that issue precludes an appeal,
including to the Land Use Board of Appeals, based on that issue. Testimony may be submitted in written or
oral form. Oral testimony and written testimony will be taken during the course of the public hearing. The
hearing may include a report by staff, testimony from the applicant and proponents, testimony from
opponents, rebuttal by the applicant, and questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Written
testimony sent to the Community Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy,
Newport, OR 97365, must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be included as part of the hearing
or must be personally presented during testimony at the public hearing. The proposed code amendments,
additional material for the amendments, and any other material in the file may be reviewed or a copy
purchased at the Newport Community Development Department (address above). Contact Derrick Tokos,
Community Development Director (541) 574-0626 (address above).

(FOR PUBLICATION ONCE ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2018)



the team must do like run-

ning a mile, doing burpees or

several minutes of planking,
After a handball was com-

“p. 1udal UUIIDET has more
than doubled and more play-
ers are on the way.

“I got two that need to get
their paperwork, and I'm like

game 1n school history.

‘It feels good,” Fruechte
said. “We did it so we are all
proud of each other that we
were able to pull off the win.”

SUBSCRIBE

541-265-8571

i

i
e

guotatlons

i Marine 0
WEDNESDAY

LE #18-1436 PUBLIC

SAl
On October 2, 2018, at

PuBLIC NOTICES

requesting competitive  are described below.
for hydraulic  Bids for cash payment will
redging at the NOAA be accepted until 10:00
rations Cen-  am, September 20, 2018.
ter — Pacific Facility start- Interested  parties may

7 EDITION: 3 ing November 2018, The contact Longview Hills
- . y g;;‘ scope of work includes Manager at  (541)265.
5:00pm Thursday i maintenance dredging 3576 to make arrange-
PRIOR ;i of 22,900 cubic yards to ments to inspect the
% the design depths speci-  home. Bids may be sub-
FRIDAY b fied in the Joint Permit mitted to 1Lon5%/iew Hills
EDITION: fE application. Bids are due MHC, LLC, 1450 NE 58th
. ? ober 1st, k reet, Newport, on

5 T ’d i brOctb 1st, 2018 Street, N 1, Oreg
:00pm Tuesday }ﬁf Al RFQ documents can 97368, for ihe follow-
PRIOR i be found at https://www. ing home: 11990 Gold-
Sl Sy s e portofnewport.com/bids-  en West Homes, Home
. Y s SR 6 14) i1 0es Lo, fashre
g -7, 8- 13- » manufacturer's
NOTICE OF SHERIFF's { ID #CC662RAAB; located

SALE at 1638 NE 59th Street,

- . Safe-Lock Storage locat-  Space 38, Newport, Ore-
the hour of 10:00 am., ed at 3639 %EgAsh St, ?on 97365; owner/tenant:

at the Lincoln Count
1 South Beach, OR 97366 L <
Operifts Offics, 225 will hold a public fore-  Jack Cavid Owens, Days]
on,  glosure sale on Saturday, Owens, personal repre-
inter-  September 29 at 10:00 sentative.
Personal
lowing people will

Olive St., Rm 203, in the
City of Newport,

the defendant's
est will be sold, Subject J
to redemption, in the the fol
real propert be sold:

known as: 3%48 ?\1 Hi nrl,)_l D03 - Carl Johnson, H19 -

Betty Lucille Owens

property of -7, S-14 (12-14)

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC
HEARING

way 101, Otis, OR 97368,  Mark Woods, T18 ~ Jesse The Planning Commission
The court cass '],”L“b"' is  Hanlin. The persons men- of the  Ging ofor,{l\g1wsp‘lm,

17Cv48999, V

gan Mon?age Acquisition
orp., plaini

di M. Sullivan; Parties in

Possession, defendant(s). ~ (06-19).
This is a public auction

- tioned above may contact
Mor. us prior to they sale at I(I) on, will hold a pigb-
541) B67-4607. C hearing to consider
ff(s) vs. Bran- g_7 S-12, S.14, S-1g  an appeal of an adminis-

trative decision approv-
ing a Geological Permit
Application (#1-GP-18)

to the highest bidder for NOTICE OF SALE submitted by Mona Lin-

cash or cashier's check, OF ABANDONED stromberg, Elaine Karnes,
in hand. For more details MANUFACTURED Christine " Schneller, Rob-
go to http://www, - ert Earle, Teresa Amen &

linco
(87-14).

HOME
sherm/ssalesnrg/coumy/ '1_ 'l..gngv'i'ew "st b!g:HC, Pfa/t; Linstronzbelrg '(_'Powes'
will sell the below- o ttorney, Leslie Hogan
A-24, A-31, 8-07, S-14 described manufactured # s
home b{ private sealed  Authorized Agent} for an
T REQUESTFom —— Did for the highest offer apgeal challeng|
REQUEST FOR received. The home has sy

(Sean Malone, Attorney,

ng the
stantive elements of

QUOTATIONS been abandoned. The the applicant's June 29,
The Port of Newport is home, tenant and owner 2018 geologic report, pre-

9/:‘-{”%

pared by K&A Engineer-

deep into the set. It wasn’t
until the very end that To-
ledo was able to pull away
with a 25-18 win. Otis said
the team became a little
tired, but head coach Crys-
tal Taylor saw something
else.

“I don’t want to say that
they got comfortable” the
first-year head coach said.
“But we have to be more dis-
ciplined in that third set to
make sure that we take care
of the ball”

The Boomers have now
won four-straight after win-
ning only two of their first
five games,

and require that reports be will include a report by

ing, Inc., that concluded consistent with enerally  staff, testimony (both oral
the site is suitable for accepted scientific and and written) from those in

the development of three gng';lneerin
C

home sites. Such report ncludin,

g principals,  favor or opposed to the
minimum stan- application, rebutta) by

was the basis of the dards identified in cited  the applicant, and ques-

approved Geologic Per- documents
mit. A peer review report,  the Oregon

ublished by  tions and deliberation by
tate Board of  the Planning  Commis-

b‘y Columbia Geotech- Geologist Examiners and sion. Pursuant to ORS
nical, dated August 15, the Department of Land  197.763 (6), any person
2018, was submitted in Conservation and Devel- rior to the conclusion of

Support of the appeal. The opment. A
su

property is located West lenging

of NW Spring St (Lincoln  ments ofa
County Assessor's Tax are requir

pellants chal- *  the Initial public hearing
stantive ele- may uest a continu-
geologic report  ance of the public haaring
ed to submit or that the record is lef

Map 11-11-05-BC, Tax their own analysis, pre-  open for at least seven
Lots 1800, 1900 & 1903).  pared by a certified engi- days to present additional

City of Newport regula- neering geologi
] ? 28, 5

tions for evelopment 14,21,

within mapped geologic  and evidence

Stt'(N C v ; i
stimony  testimony regardin, the
must be applicatl%n: gThe gstaff

dence, arguments, or

hazards areas are con- directed toward the cri- report may be reviewed
tained in Chfpter 14.21  teria described above or or g Copy purchased at

823'?&'&:@""

dards listed in this chap-

Municipal  other crite,

ria in the Com-  the Newport Community
and all stan- Frehenslve Plan and its Development Departmerit
mplementing ordinances seven days prior to the

ter are relevant to the per- which the person believes hearing. The  application
mit application on appeal.  to apply to the decision. materials, the applicable
Pursuant to NMC Chapter  Failure to raise an issue Criteria, ‘and other file

14.21.050(D), an applica-  with suffic

tion for a geologic permit ity to affo

must include a geologic  the parties a
report, prepared by a cer-  to respond to
tified engineering~ geolo- precludes an
gist, establishing that the Including to the Lan

fent specific-  materials are available for

the city and  inspection at no cost; or

portunity  copies may be purchased

hat issue  for reasonable cost at the

a?ﬁ:l. above address. Contact
o /

Derrick Tokos, Communi-

slte Is suitable for the Board of Appeals, based % Development Director,
(54

grorPosed development.  on that issu
urther, an engineer- may be sub

e. Testimony
mitted in writ- newportoregon.gov (mail-

1) 574-0626, d.tokos@

ln? report, prepared by ten or oral form. Oral and ing address above).
a licensed civil engineer,  written testimony will be S-14 (10-14)

geotechnical engineer, or taken durin
certified engineering geol-  of the pul
ogist {to the extent quali-  Letters to th,

the course
c hearing. —mw
e Commu- BOARD MEETING

fied), must be provided  nity Develo ment/Plan- Community Services
if engineering remediation nin?1Depa ment, City  Consortium's Governing

Is anticipated to make the Hal

69 SW Coast Hwy,  Board meeting will be

site suitable for the pro- Newport, OR 97365, must held Monday, Septem-

posed development (NMC ~ be received b
14.21.050(E)). Guidelines the day of t
for the greparation of or be personally entere,

ic i record during  ference Room at 120 NE
g. The hearing Avery Street. The meet-

Geol eports are set  into the
forth In NMC 14.21.060 the hearin

5:00 p.m.  ber 24,2018, ‘at 10:00am
e hearing in_the Newport regional

Office Hilan Castle Con-

[ i CIster ana Astrid Knott leap for a block during
Toledo’s 3-0 win over Myrtle Point on Tuesday, Sept. 1.
(Photo courtesy of Aaron Wawrak)

“I think that they are re-
ally starting to play togeth-
er, calling the ball and doing
the things that we are ask.
ing them to do,” Taylor said.
“Defensively we have really
worked hard to make sure
that they are ready for any
type of ball that comes over
the net. They are talking,
Offensively they are setting
each other up really well and
they are working together”

The challenge now for the
Boomers with the remain-

tal Budget #1 for Fiscal change is

Year 2018-19, among  public neces:

ing schedule coming against
league opponents is keeping
that same energy and excite.
ment for the rest of the sea-
son to keep their postseason
hopes alive. But Otis isn’t
worried about that,

“We all have that energy
and passion for this game
that other teams don’t have,”
she said. “Our chemistry to-
gether, we just make each
other excited for anything
and that will help us in fu-
ture games.”

indg agenda will address 14.36.010, the Commis- sented during testimony
a oguon of Supplemen-  sion must find that the atthe public hearing. The

required by Proposed code amend-
sity and the ments, additional mate-

other matters. The meet- general welfare of the rigf for the amendments,

lr}'gi IS open to the public; community in order for it and any other material in
al

nterested persons are  to make a recommenda- the file'may be reviewed

welcome to attend. tion to the Ci
S-14 (04-14), that the amne
adcg)ted. Testimony and Development Department
ence must be directed address above). Contact
uest above errick Tokos, Communi-

PUBLIC NOTICE evi

The Pacific Communi- toward the reque:
i i or other criteria, includin t
ties Health District Board b ;';ﬁ i 'wi'h'ig‘ the %O'i?g (
v ensive Plan and its g .
Regular meeting on Mon- P! o ordinances,  $.14 {ia-14)
rvhlch tlhetpe{,s:ondbelgcives
oom 0 apply to the decision, TIC ERIFF"
ierncelR At Fa"u’l?e to raise an issue o4 éAEEO ;gﬂsﬂﬁ 3
sufficlent specific- o, dptotor 23, 2018, at

of Directors will hold a
d%y. September 17, at implementin
4:00 é).m. in the Educa-

tion Col

Samaritan Pacific Com- ith
munities Hospital, 930 Wi

Council  or a Copy purchased at
ments be  the Newport Community

g Development Diractor
41) 574-0626 (address
bove)

SW Abbey St., Newport, Ity to afford the city and the hour of 10:00a.m.. at

Oregon. "The meeting
agenda includes meeting
minutes, financial reports
and facilitg reports.

/s/Lisa ly,  Recorder.

the parties an o
to respond to
precludes an
Including to the Lan eg

oard of Appeals, based the defendant's  inter-

portunity 0 Lincoln county Sher-

ﬁ'a' ISSUS b office, 295 Olive

appeal, gi” g 203, in the city
s of -~ Newport, Qregon,

PACIFIC COM'M¥NITIES on that issue, Testimony est will be sold, subject

HEALTH DISTRIC
For additional information

may be submitted in i
written or oral form. Oral 12 edemption, " in the

real proper% commonly

contact 541-574-1803 or  testimony and  written known as: 3174 NE Johng
www.pchdistrict.org. test.imotr}]y will be takﬁn Loop, Neotsu, OR 97364,
S-14ﬁ7~14) during the course of the The court case number

PUb"c hearing. The hear- is 17CV46345, Nation.

ng ma# include a ne‘P

H b ” testtimonc),l
) e applicant and pro-

e Newport Planning ponents, testimony #om Ann Fossum; Wells Fargo

rebuc}tal by Bank, N.A.; Occupants of

and ques- o Property defendant(s).

beration by i : i
Commission,  1his is a public auction

 NOTICE OF A PUBLIC
EARING by sta

Commission will hold a opponents,

continued public hearing
on Monday, September gff,ﬁ:‘;ﬁ'ffad’g,

24, 2018, at 7:00 P-M. tha Plannin

ot gar Mortgage LLC D/B/A
oM Mr. Coop, plalmiff(sz vs.
James A. Fossum, Patricia

to the highest bidder for

in the Gity Hall Colncil Written testimony sent to cash or cashier's check,

Chambers” to consider i

File No. 3-7-18, revisions E,’l’gn?‘}',l‘,‘;‘n“n"“y

to the Newport Munic(i)%%l ment, City Ha
8 C

Code (NMC) 14.01

velop- i hand. For more details

ﬁ) Depart- to go http://www,oregon-

169 Sw sheriffssales.org/county/

Newport, OR lincoln/

and 14.03.060 to provide 97365, must be received
for extended stay hotel by 5:00 p.m. the day of (S?g_%s)s-m. §-28, 0-05
and motel uses. Pursu- g pol) DT be included

ant to Newport Munici- pg art of the hearing or  wmenen
pal Code (NMC) Section oy B2 & personally gre- Rt g

L ias ]

i

waaasOUC

12



II.

1L

IV.

VL
VIL

13

Case File: 3-Z-18
Hearing Date: September 10, 2018/Planning Commission

PLANNING STAFF MEMORANDUM
FILE No. 3-Z-18

Applicant: Pacific Seafood Group (Michael Miliucci, authorized representative).

Request: The request before the Planning Commission is to review and provide a recommendation
to the City Council on a proposal to amend the Newport Municipal Code to provide for extended stay
(i.e. non-transient) hotel and motel uses. The purpose of the amendment is to allow workforce
housing in the City’s three commercial zoning districts to accommodate the unmet need for short-
term housing for employees working for periods longer than 30-days.

Findings Required: This is a legislative action whereby the City Council, after considering a
recommendation by the Newport Planning Commission, must determine that the changes to the
Municipal Code are necessary and further the general welfare of the community (NMC 14.36.010).

Planning Staff Memorandum Attachments:

Attachment "A" — Draft amendments to NMC 14.01.020 and 14.03.060, dated August 31, 2018
Attachment "B" — Application form

Attachment "C" — Applicant’s findings of fact and conclusions

Attachment "D" — R-1 and R-2 Occupancy Classifications, 2014 Oregon Structural Specialty Code
Attachment "E" — Draft minutes from the August 13, 2018 Planning Commission Work Session
Attachment "F" — Newport Zoning Map

Attachment "G" — Notice of public hearing

Notification: The Department of Land Conservation & Development was provided notice of the
proposed legislative amendment on August 6, 2018. Notice of the Planning Commission hearing
was published in the Newport News-Times on September 5, 2018 (Attachment "H").

Comments: No public comments have been received related to this proposal.

Discussion of Request: The City of Newport received an application from Pacific Seafood Group
to amend the Newport Municipal Code to provide for extended stay hotel and motel uses. They are
interested in purchasing property that they can use in this manner to meet the needs of their workforce.
The Municipal Code does not currently allow extended stay hotel and motel use of an entire building.

The proposal creates definitions for non-transient hotels and motels, distinguishing them from their
transient counterparts. A change is also being made to the commercial use category section of the
code, with non-transient hotel and motel uses, that is lodging with average lengths of stay that is 30
days or longer, being added to the personal service oriented retail category. Transient hotel and motel
uses, where guests typically stay less than 30 days, will remain an entertainment oriented retail sales
and service use. If the change is adopted, non-transient hotel and motel uses will become an outright
permitted use in C-1, C-3 and I-1 zones. They would be conditional uses in the C-2 and I-2 zones.
A copy of the proposed changes is enclosed as Attachment “A”.

File No. 3-Z-18 / Planning Staff Memorandum / Pacific Seafood Group Text Amendment Related to Extended Page 1 of 2

Stay Hotels and Motels



14

The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed changes at an August 13, 2018 work session.
Coming out of that work session, staff amended the proposal to make the availability of cooking
facilities in the units, or for a group of units, a distinguishing feature between transient and non-
transient hotel and motel uses. The availability of cooking facilities becomes a more pressing issue
when tenancy extends over 30-days, and requiring they be provided to units may prevent fire hazards
attributed to tenants creating their own means of meeting their cooking needs, which may not be safe.
The applicant reviewed the new language and has indicated that they are comfortable with the
changes. A question was posed at the work session regarding the difference between an apartment
use and an extended stay hotel or motel use. From a land use perspective, it would be length of
tenancy and the availability of cooking facilities in each unit. The proposed definition for non-
transient hotels and motels requires cooking facilities be provided in the individual units or for a
group of units. The latter option would not be available for apartments. As for building code
requirements, apartments and non-transient hotel/motel uses fall under the same R-2 occupancy
classification (Ref: Attachment “D”) and would be subject to the same general construction
standards.

With respect to whether or not the amendment is necessary and furthers the general welfare of the
community, there is ample evidence of the human and economic impact that a shortage of affordable
housing has on employees and employers in Newport. The applicant addresses this in a number of
their findings and it would be reasonable for the Commission to accept the applicant’s analysis as
satisfying these requirements.

The applicant’s initial set of findings and conclusions are included with this report (Attachment “C”).
They have indicated that they will be modifying them to more closely align with current draft set of
amendments. That change will be helpful for the ordinance and supporting findings that will be
prepared for the City Council hearing, but is not material to the question before the Commission at
this hearing.

VIII. Conclusion and Recommendation: The Planning Commission should review the proposed
amendments and make a recommendation to the City Council. The Commission recommendation
can include suggested changes to the proposed amendments.

errick 1. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

August 31, 2018

File No. 3-Z-18 / Planning Staff Memorandum / Pacific Seafood Group Text Amendment Related to Extended Page 2 of 2
Stay Hotels and Motels



Attachment “A” o
3-Z-18 —
DRAFT MARK-UP OF NMC 14.01.020 AND NMC 14.03.060, DATED AUGUST 31, 2018

14.01.020 Definitions.

*kk

Hotel (transient). A building in which lodging is provided for guests for compensation and
contains a common entrance and where lodging rooms do not have an entrance opening
directly to the outdoors (except for emergencies), with or without cooking facilities, and where
mere-than-50 percent or more of the lodging rooms are for rent to transient-guests for a
continuous period of less than 30 days. A bed and breakfast facility or a vacation rental
conducted in a single family dwelling or individual dwelling unit is not a hotel use.*

Hotel (non-transient).

contains a common entrance and where lodging rooms do not have an entrance opening
directly to the outdoors (except for emergencies), where cooking facilities are provided within

individual lodging rooms, or for groups of lodging rooms. and where 50 percent or more of the
lodging rooms are offered for rent to guests for a continuous period of 30 days or longer. A bed

and breakfast facility or a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual
dwelling unit is not a hotel use.*

*kk

Motel (transient). A building or group of buildings in which lodging is provided for guests for
compensation, containing guest-unitslodging rooms with separate entrances from the building
exterior, with or without cooking facilities, and where mere-than40-50 percent or more of the
lodging rooms are for rent to transient-guests for a continuous period of less than 30 days. A
bed and breakfast facility or a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual
dwelling unit is not a motel use.*

for compensation, contalmng lodging rooms with separate entrances from the building exterlor
where cooking facilities are provided within individual lodging rooms, or for groups of lodging
rooms, offered for rent to guests for a continuous period of 30 days or longer. A bed and

breakfast facility or a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual dwelling
unit is not a motel use.*

14.03.060 Commercial and Industrial Districts.

The uses allowed within each commercial and industrial zoning district are classified into use
categories on the basis of common functional, product, or physical characteristics.

*k%

C. Commercial Use Categories

*kk

2. Retail Sales and Service

a. Characteristics. Retail Sales and Service firms are involved in the sale, lease
or rent of new or used products to the general public. They may also provide

Page 1 0f3



©
i
DRAFT MARK-UP OF NMC 14.01.020 AND NMC 14.03.060, DATED AUGUST 31, 2018

personal services or entertainment, or provide product repair or services for
consumer and business goods.

b. Examples. Examples include uses from the four subgroups listed below:

i. Sales-oriented, general retail: Stores selling, leasing, or renting
consumer, home, and business goods including art, art supplies,
bicycles, books, clothing, dry goods, electronic equipment, fabric, fuel,
gifts, groceries, household products, jewelry, pets, pet food,
pharmaceuticals, plants, printed material, stationery, and videos; food
sales. Sales oriented general retail includes the service but not repair of
vehicles.

ii. Sales-oriented, bulk retail: Stores selling large consumer home and
business goods, including appliances, furniture, hardware, home
improvements, and sales or leasing of consumer vehicles including
passenger vehicles, motorcycles, light and medium trucks, and other
recreational vehicles.

iii. Personal service-oriented: Branch banks; urgency medical care;
Laundromats; photographic studios; photocopy and blueprint services;
printing, publishing and lithography; hair, tanning, and personal care
services; tax preparers, accountants, engineers, architects, real estate
agents, legal, financial services; art studios; art, dance, music, martial
arts, and other recreational or cultural classes/schools; hotels (non-
transient); motels (non-transient); taxidermists; mortuaries; veterinarians;
kennels limited to boarding and training with no breeding; and animal
grooming.

iv. Entertainment-oriented: Restaurants (sit-down and drive through);
cafes; delicatessens; taverns and bars; hotels (transient), motels
(transient), recreational vehicles, and other temporary lodging with an
average length of stay less than 30 days; athletic, exercise and health
clubs or gyms; bowling alleys, skating rinks, game arcades; pool halls;
dance halls, studios, and schools; theaters; indoor firing ranges,
miniature golf facilities, golf courses, and driving ranges.

v. Repair-oriented: Repair of TVs, bicycles, clocks, watches, shoes, guns,
appliances and office equipment; photo or laundry drop off; quick printing;
recycling drop-off; tailor; locksmith; and upholsterer.

c. Exceptions.
i. Lumber yards and other building material sales that sell primarily to
contractors and do not have a retail orientation are classified as
Wholesale Sales.

ii. The sale of landscape materials, including bark chips and compost not
in conjunction with a primary retail use, is classified as Industrial Service.

Page 2 of 3



N~
—
DRAFT MARK-UP OF NMC 14.01.020 AND NMC 14.03.060, DATED AUGUST 31, 2018

iii. Repair and service of consumer motor vehicles, motorcycles, and light
and medium trucks is classified as Vehicle Repair. Repair and service of
industrial vehicles and equipment, and heavy trucks is classified as
Industrial Service.

iv. Sales, rental, or leasing of heavy trucks and equipment is classified as
Wholesale Sales.

v. When kennels are limited to boarding, with no breeding, the applicant
may choose to classify the use as Retail Sales and Service.

vi. Uses where unoccupied recreational vehicles are offered for sale or
lease, or are stored, are not included as a Recreational Vehicle Park.

Page 3 of 3



City of Newport

Attachment “B” |_ @ nt Form I

3-Z-18

Land Use Application

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE - COMPLETE ALL BOXES - USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NEEDED

Applicant Name(s):
Pacific Seafood Group

Property Owner Name(s):

N/A

Applicant Mailing Address:

See attached.

N/A

|Property Owner Mailing Address:

Applicant Telephone No.:

See attached.
E-mail:

JE-mail:

Property Owner Telephone No.:

Authorized Representative(s):
See attached.

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

‘See attached.

Authorized Representative Telephone No.:
See attached.

EMallsee attached.

Project Information

Property Location:

N/A

Tax Assessor's Map No..N/A

ITax Lot(s):

Comp Plan Designation:
N/A

Zone Designation: Legal Description:
N/A

N/A

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):

Amendment to the Newport

hotels, motels and other temporary lodging with an average length of

stay greater than 30 days in

14.03.060.C.2.iv and to amend the definitions of "hotel" and "motel" in
NDC Section 14.01.020 to remove the length of stay requirements.

Development Code (the "NDC") to allow

the C-1, C-2, and C-3 zones in NDC

|Existing Structures:

Topography and Vegetation:

APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

Date Received:

Received By:

File No. Assigned: % —2 %

] Annexation [ interpretation (] uGB Amendment
[:I Appeal D Minor Replat l:l Vacation
l:l Comp Plan/Map Amendment D Partition L__l Variance/Adjustment
[] Conditional Use Permit D Planned Development D PC

D PC O Property Line Adjustment D Staff

L_-l. Staff |:] Shoreland Impact Zone Ord/Map Amendment
] Design Review .

) ) [ subdivision [ other
D Geologic Permit .
] Temporary Use Permit

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Fee Amount. | leZ) -
Receipt No.: g‘-\\ l
2 253 0ot L LN,

Date Accepted as Complete:

Accepted By:

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)

Community Development & Planning Department® 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365+ Derrick |. Tokos, AICP, Director

110



19

| understand that | am responsible for addressing the legal criteria relevant to my application and that the
burden of proof justifying an approval of my application is with me. | also understand that this responsibility

is independent of any opinions expressed in the Community Development & Planning Department Staff
Report concerning the applicable criteria.

1 certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all information provided in this application is accurate

/“—[7?\& eFl C SfAﬁozf' OZCN_’P

Applicant Signature(s) i Date Signed

“AAcAr ¢ SEpford Ooup 7~3o —

d)

Property Owner Signature(s)

Date Signed ~ *
ml N HAEAE M"

Y7~30-1%
Authorized Representatlve Signature(s) (/7 o Date Signed
1ichar L M Liwec
(oRperote Couns

Please note application will not be accepted without all applicable signatures.

Please ask staff for a list of application submittal requirements for your specific type of request

Community Development & Planning Department= 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365+ Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director
110



Attachment “C”
3-7Z-18

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION
AND THE CITY COUNCIL

FOR THE CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

In the Matter of a Type IV Applicationto ) FINDINGS OF FACT
Amend Newport Development Code ) AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
(“NDC”) Sections 14.01.020 and ) DEMONSTRATING SATISFACTION OF
14.03.060.2.b.iii to Allow Work Force ) THE APPLICABLE APPROVAL
Housing (the “Application™) in the C-1, C-2 ) CRITERIA

)

and C-3 Zoning Districts

L Request.

This Type 1V legislative amendment Application to the text of the NDC, the City’s land use
regulations, requests that the Planning Commission recommend approval of, and that the City
Council approve, two amendments:

. to NDC Section 14.01.020 to amend the definitions of “hotel” and “motel” to remove the
reference to the percentage of lodging rooms available for rent to transient guests for a continual
period of less than thirty days; and

. to NDC Section 14.03.060.2.b.iii, to amend the uses in the retail sales and service,
personal service-oriented land use category, whereby hotels, motels and other temporary lodging
are allowed with guests having an average length of stay less than thirty days in the C-1, C-2 and
C-3 zoning districts.

The purpose of the text amendment is to allow work force housing in the City’s three
commercial zoning districts to accommodate the unmet need for short-term housing for
employees for longer than thirty days.

II. Classification of Application and Procedure.
A. Authority to Initiate the Application.

NDC 14.36.020.C provides that a legislative amendment to the City’s land use
regulations may be initiated by a property owner. Exhibit 1 to this Application is a completed
“City of Newport Land Use Application” form signed by the authorized representative of Pacific
Seafood Group, a property owner within the City of Newport, Oregon.

B. Characterization of Application as a Legislative Application.
This Application is characterized as a legislative application and is not a quasi-judicial

application. The application is properly characterized as a legislative application because it
makes new law as opposed to applying existing law.

1 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1

20



21

C. Procedure Type.

This Application is characterized as a Type [V Application because the final decision is
made by the Newport City Council following a recommendation by the Newport Planning

Commission and involves a land use action, such as a text amendment to the NDC. NDC
14.52.020.

This Application meets the requirements of NDC 14.52.040, “Application for a Land Use
Action”, by providing information relevant to a legislative amendment. The Application
includes the name and address of the Applicant as required by NDC 14.52.040.A, and findings of
fact and other information to support the request and addresses all applicable approval criteria, as
required by NDC 14.52.040.K.

D. Proposed Amendments.
Exhibit 2 shows the proposed amendments:
1. NDC 14.01.020, “Definitions”.

These amendments modify the definitions of “hotel” and “motel”. The definitions
currently limit the percentage of guests who may occupy rooms for more than thirty days. The
proposed amendments remove this restriction. However, hotel and motel operators retain the
choice of how long to rent rooms to guests.

2. NDC 14.03.060.2.b.iii, “Commercial Use Categories, Personal Service-
Oriented.”

This amendment modifies this use category by allowing hotels, motels and other
temporary lodging establishments to offer rooms to guests with an average stay longer than thirty
days.

E. Public Review Procedure for the Application.

After the City accepts the Application, the City is required to provide notice of the
Planning Commission hearing to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and
Development (“DLCD”) thirty-five (35) days before the Planning Commission hearing. The
City is not required to mail notice of the hearing to surrounding property owners. The Planning
Commission will hold a public hearing on the Application and make a recommendation to the
Newport City Council. The Newport City Council will hold a public hearing on the Application
and provide notice of its decision within twenty (20) days to DLCD and anyone who testified
orally or in writing before either the Planning Commission or the City Council.

I11. Reasons for the Amendments.

Pacific Seafood Group makes this Application because it is a large employer in the City and has
found it difficult to keep existing employees and hire new employees because of the lack of
affordable housing. Pacific Seafood Group maintains two processing plants in the City,
employing about 430 persons. The peak demand for work force housing occurs during the

2 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1



22

Shrimp, Whiting and Crab seasons, about six to eight months each year. As explained in Part
IV, “Applicable Approval Criteria”, the City has an acknowledged need for work force housing.
In this case, the lack of housing at affordable prices, acknowledged in the Newport
Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”), makes it difficult for Pacific Seafood Group’s employees to
find acceptable housing for needed rental periods at affordable prices. Pacific Seafood Group
has determined that it must provide work force housing for its employees.

This amendment to the NDC is necessary to allow Pacific Seafood Group to purchase buildings
in one of the City’s three commercial zoning districts and to provide work force housing in those
buildings without a limitation on the percentage of occupants who must stay fewer than thirty
days. The proposed amendment; discussed with the City’s Planning Director prior to submittal
of this Application, amends the definitions of “hotel” and “motel” and the retail sales, personal
service-oriented use category, to accomplish this purpose. If adopted by the Newport City
Council, hotels and motels in the City’s three commercial zoning districts can offer occupancy to
guests without the current limitation on the number of guests staying more than thirty days. This
amendment is a reasonable solution to the identified problem without requiring Pacific Seafood
Group or another developer to construct additional multi-family dwelling units, or to compete
with full-time residents for affordable housing.

IV.  Applicable Approval Criteria.

This legislative amendment to the City’s land use regulations requires the Applicant to
demonstrate that the applicable approval criteria, including relevant Statewide Planning Goals
(the “Goals™), administrative rules implementing the Goals (the “Rules”), and provisions of the
acknowledged Newport Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”), are satisfied. ORS 197.195(2)(d).
This part of the Application addresses the relevant Goals, Rules and Plan goals and policies for
the proposed legislative amendment.

A. Relevant Goals.
1. Goal 1, “Citizen Involvement”:

“To develop a citizen involvement program that ensures
the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the
planning process.”

FINDING: The City can find that Goal 1 is satisfied because the City will follow its
acknowledged Citizen Involvement Program in reviewing the proposed land use regulation
amendments. The City will provide notice of the legislative amendment in the local newspaper
of record and make public hearings available where persons can testify about the Application.

The City can find that Goal 1 is satisfied.
2. Goal 2, “Land Use Planning”:

“To establish a land use planning process and policy
framework as a basis for all decision and actions related to use

3 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\1130231241515\MCR\23621075.1



23

of land and to assure an adequate factual basis for such
decisions and actions.”

FINDING: The Application contains an adequate factual basis for the proposed
legislative amendment to the City’s acknowledged land use regulations. The adequate factual
base includes a description of the problem and the proposed amendments to the NDC, to address
the problem.

Additionally, the City must demonstrate that it has “coordinated” the Application, as
“coordination” is defined in ORS 197.015(5), with affected governmental units including but not
limited to local governments, special districts and state and federal agencies by providing them
with notice of the Application, an opportunity to comment and considering their comments in the
decision-making process as much as possible.

The City can also find that the proposed legislative amendment to the NDC do not
require an amendment to the acknowledged Plan.

The City can find that Goal 2 is satisfied.
3. Goal 9, “Economic Development”:

“To provide adequate opportunities throughout the
state for a variety of economic activities vital to the health,
welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens.”

FINDING: The City can find that the proposed legislative amendments support the
City’s Goal 9 program by providing adequate work force housing to support Pacific Seafood
Group and other employers in the City.

The City can find that Goal 9 is satisfied.
4. Goal 12, “Transportation”:

“To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and
economic transportation system.”

FINDING: The City can find that Goal 12 is satisfied because the proposed text
amendments do not add a new use to the City’s three commercial zoning districts nor will the
proposed legislative amendments add additional vehicle trips on local and state streets and
highways.

The City can find that Goal 12 is satisfied.

4 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1



24

B. Applicable Administrative Rules.
1. OAR Chapter 660, Division 9, “Economic Development”.

FINDING: The City can find that this administrative rule implementing Goal 9 is
inapplicable because it applies to amendments to comprehensive plans for areas within urban
growth boundaries. OAR 660-009-0010(1). This Application does not amend the Plan.

2. OAR Chapter 660, Division 12, “Transportation Planning”.

FINDING: OAR 660-012-0060 is entitled “Plan and Land Use Regulation
Amendments.” OAR 660-012-0060(1) provides that the administrative rule applies to
amendments to existing land use regulations. The administrative rule requires a determination of
whether a land use regulation amendment would “significantly affect” a transportation facility.
OAR 660-012-0060(1)(a)-(c) identifies when a land use regulation amendment significantly
affects a transportation facility. The City can find that OAR 660-012-0060 is inapplicable to this
Application because none of the three situations constituting when a “significant affect” occurs
are applicable to this Application.

The City can find that the Transportation Planning Rule is satisfied by this Application.

C. Newport Comprehensive Plan.

The acknowledged Plan contains two sections relevant to this Application: the Economy
and Housing Sections.

1. “Economy”.

FINDING: Plan Pages 24 and 25 note that the fishing and seafood processing industry
in Newport generates one-third of the state’s commercial fishing activities and one-third of the
state’s harvested seafood. In fact, the Plan identifies fishing and seafood processing as “potential
growth industries.” Plan Page 26 states that industrial employment in Newport will increase
from 11% of employment in Newport in 2010 to 15% by 2032. Part of this increase in
employment is attributable to the increase of seafood processing employment.

The City can find that fishing and seafood processing is an increasingly important part of
the City’s economy as noted in the Plan’s Economic Opportunities Analysis (the “EOA”). The
City can find that by supporting work force housing for Pacific Seafood Group’s employees and
other employers in the City, that industrial employment is strengthened, especially for seafood
processing, which is considered a “potential growth industry.”

The City can also find that Economy Policy 4 is relevant to this Application. Economy
Policy 4 provides:

“The City shall encourage growth of businesses involving
fishing and value-added seafood.”

5 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1



25

The City can find that the evidence supports a conclusion that additional work force
housing opportunities are needed for housing for employees in the seafood industry. This
legislative amendment encourages the provision of additional work force housing so that the

seafood industry has a readily available supply of workers and those workers have affordable and
adequate housing.

The City can find that the Plan’s “Economy” Section is satisfied.
2. “Housing”.

FINDING: The Plan contains a Housing Opportunities Analysis (the “HOA”). The
reason that this legislative amendment is needed is to provide for more opportunities for work
force housing. The City lacks affordable, longer-term, work force housing. The HOA at Plan
Page 114-B notes that while affordable housing has been decreasing, housing costs have been
increasing. Further, the HOA at Plan Page 114-f notes that there are very few high density
housing locations available in locations that are “ideal for workers.” HOA Plan Page 114-f notes
that another impediment to work force housing is the cost of rental housing.

Housing Policy 2 at Plan 114-h provides that:

“The City shall cooperate with private developers * * * in the
provision and improvement of * * * work force housing.”

The City can find that this Application implements Housing Policy 2 in two ways. First,
it allows for private developers to provide for work force housing without cost to the City or
other governmental entities. Second, it provides an affordable housing solution for work force
housing without competing for multi-family housing with permanent and seasonal residents.

The City can find that the Plan “Housing” Section is satisfied.
C. Conclusion.

The City can find that the acknowledged Plan supports both the Plan’s acknowledgement
of value-added seafood as a growth industry in the City and encourages private developers to
provide solutions to the City’s work force housing needs.

D. NDC.

FINDING: The NDC contains no approval criteria for an amendment to the City’s
acknowledged land use regulations.

V. CONCLUSION.

For the reasons contained in this Application, the Planning Commission and the City Council can
find that the proposed text amendment to the NDC satisfy applicable Goals, Administrative
Rules and Plan policies. By adopting the proposed text amendment, the City will encourage
private employers to find a solution to work force housing needs for their employees.

6 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1



The Applicant respectfully requests that the Planning Commission recommend approval to the
City Council and that the City Council approve the text amendment as proposed.

7 —FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1

26



EXHIBITS

Exhibit 1 “City of Newport Land Use Application” form

Exhibit 2 Proposed text amendments in redline format

PDX\113023\241515\MCR\23621075.1

27



e8]
N

Print Form

City of Newport [
Land Use Application

PLEASIH PRINT OR TYPE - COMPLETE ALL BOXES « USH ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NEEDED

Applicant Name(s):
Pacific Seafood Group

Property Owner Name(s):
N/A

Applicant Mailing Address:

See attached.

Property Owner Mailing Address:

N/A

Applicant Telephone No.:

See attached.
LE-mail;

Property Owner Telephone No.; -« I

E-mail:

Authorized Representative(s):
See attached.

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

‘See attached.

Authorized Representative Telephone No.:
See attached.

EMallsee attached.

Project Information

Property Location:

N/A

Tax Assessor's Map No.:N/A

Zone Designation)N/A

Comp Plan Designation:

N/A

Legal Description:

ITax Lot(s):

N/A

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):

Amendment to the Newport Development Code (the "NDC") to allow
hotels, motels and other temporary lodging with an average length of
stay greater than 30 days in the C-1, C-2, and C-3 zones in NDC
14.03.060.C.2.iv and to amend the definitions of "hotel" and "motel" in
NDC Section 14.01.020 to remove the length of stay requirements.

Existing Structures:

Topography and Vegetation:

APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

File No. Assigned:

[] Annexation [ Interpretation [[]uGB Amendment
] Appeal (] Minor Replat [ vacation
[:] Comp Plan/Map Amendment D Partition I:l Variance/Adjustment
(] conditional Use Permit (] Planned Development [rc

[lpc (] Property Line Adjustment [] staff

D Staff [:] Shoreland Impact Zone Ord/Map Amendment
D Design Review e

) ) |:] Subdivision D Other.
] Geologic Permit )
D Temporary Use Permit

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received: Fee Amount: Date Accepted as Complete:
Received By: Receipt No.: Accepted By:
(SEE REVERSE SIDE)

Community Development & Planning Departmente 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 87365+ Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director

110

EXHIBIT 1
PAGE 1 OF 4




Applicant Mailing Address:

Mr. Michael Miliucci
Dulcich Realty, LLC
PO Box 97
Clackamas, OR 97015

Applicant Telephone Number and Email Address:

(503) 905-4500
mmiliucci@pacseafood.com

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE INFORMATION

1. ‘The authorized representative is:

Michael Miliucci

Pacific Seafood Group

PO Box 97

Clackamas, OR 97015

Telephone: (503) 906-4500

Email: mmiliucci@pacseafood.com

2 The authorized representative is represented by:

Michael C. Robinson

Schwabe, Williamson & Wyatt, P.C.
1211 SW Fifth Avenue, Suite 1900
Portland, OR 97204

Telephone: (503) 796-2756

Email: mrobinson(@schwabe.com

EXHIBIT 1
PAGE 2 OF 4

29



APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Zoning Ordinance Map or Text Amendment

The following information must be submitted with a City of Newport Land Use
application for Zone Ordinance Map or Text Amendment:

Text Amendments:
31. A copy of the proposed language.

(J2. Fee of $1,262.00.

Map Amendments:

(J1. A current 18" x 24” Lincoln County Assessor’s tax map(s) showing the
subject property and the notification area. The notification area is all

properties within 300 feet of the subject property. (Lincoin County Assessor's
office is located in the Lincoln County Courthouse at 225 W Olive St, Newport)

(J2. Alist of names and addresses of property owners, as shown in the
records of the Lincoln County Assessor, within the notification area
described in #1 above.

(3. Written findings of fact addressing the following criteria:

(J (a) The change furthers a public necessity.
3 (b) The change promotes the general welfare.

(4. A written explanation of the requested change.

(15. Fee of $1,262.00.

7172018
EXHIBIT 1
PAGE 3 OF 4

30



31

| understand that | am responsible for addressing the legal criteria relevant to my application and that the
burden of proof justifying an approval of my application is with me. | also understand that this responsibility
is independent of any opinions expressed in the Community Development & Planning Department Staff
Report concerning the applicable criteria.

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all information provided in this application is accurate.

Toedic Seatood Ogousg "7-30 -

Applicant Signature(s) Date Signed
“FhActi ¢ Sepfoed Of_ou:?’ 7~-%0 —14)
Property Owner SL@_a_tg_re(s) Date Signed  “
Meshacld A 72015
Authorized Representatlve Signature(s) Date Signed

1 has NYP-2
(onpo ote lo nse(
Please note application will not be accepted without all applicable signatures.

Please ask staff for a list of application submittal requirements for your specific type of request.

Community Development & Planning Department* 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365+ Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director

EXHIBIT 1
1/10 PAGE 4 OF 4



32

Definitions

Hotel. A building in which lodging is provided for guests for compensation and contains a
common entrance and where lodging rooms do not have an entrance opening directly to the
outdoors (except for emergenCIes) W|th or wuthout cooklng fac:|I|t|es and wheFe—meFe-than—SO

%han—%@-days—A bed and breakfast faC|I|ty ora vacatlon rental conducted ina smgle famlly
dwelling or individual dwelling unit is not a hotel use.*

Motel. A building or group of buildings in which lodging is provided for guests for

compensation, containing guest units with separate entrances from the bunldlng extenor with
or without cooking facilities,-anrd-w
te#aﬂsren{—gaestsieﬁa—eermm&&peﬁed-eﬂess-tmn%@days A bed and breakfast facnllty or

a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual dwelling unit is not a motel
use.”

*%k%k

14.03.060 Commercial and Industrial Districts.

The uses allowed within each commercial and industrial zoning district are classified into use
categories on the basis of common functional, product, or physical characteristics.

*kk

C. Commercial Use Categories

*k%k

2. Retail Sales and Service

a. Characteristics. Retail Sales and Service firms are involved in the sale, lease
or rent of new or used products to the general public. They may also provide
personal services or entertainment, or provide product repair or services for
consumer and business goods.

b. Examples. Examples include uses from the four subgroups listed below:

i. Sales-oriented, general retail: Stores selling, leasing, or renting
consumer, home, and business goods including art, art supplies,
bicycles, books, clothing, dry goods, electronic equipment, fabric, fuel,
gifts, groceries, household products, jewelry, pets, pet food,
pharmaceuticals, plants, printed material, stationery, and videos; food
sales. Sales oriented general retail includes the service but not repair of
vehicles.

ii. Sales-oriented, bulk retail: Stores selling large consumer home and
business goods, including appliances, furniture, hardware, home
improvements, and sales or leasing of consumer vehicles including
passenger vehicles, motorcycles, light and medium trucks, and other
recreational vehicles.

EXHIBIT 2
PAGE 1 OF 2



iii. Personal service-oriented: Branch banks; urgency medical care;
Laundromats; photographic studios; photocopy and blueprint services;
printing, publishing and lithography; hair, tanning, and personal care
services; tax preparers, accountants, engineers, architects, real estate
agents, legal, financial services; art studios; art, dance, music, martial
arts, and other recreational or cultural classes/schools; hotels, motels
and other temporary lodging with an average length of stay greater than
30 days: taxidermists; mortuaries; veterinarians; kennels limited to
boarding and training with no breeding; and animal grooming.

iv. Entertainment-oriented: Restaurants (sit-down and drive through);
cafes; delicatessens; taverns and bars; hotels, motels, recreational
vehicles, and other temporary lodging with an average length of stay less
than 30 days; athletic, exercise and health clubs or gyms; bowling alleys,
skating rinks, game arcades; pool halls; dance halls, studios, and
schools; theaters; indoor firing ranges, miniature golf facilities, golf
courses, and driving ranges.

v. Repair-oriented: Repair of TVs, bicycles, clocks, watches, shoes, guns,
appliances and office equipment; photo or laundry drop off; quick printing;
recycling drop-off; tailor; locksmith; and upholsterer.

c. Exceptions.

i. Lumber yards and other building material sales that sell primarily to
contractors and do not have a retail orientation are classified as
Wholesale Sales.

ii. The sale of landscape materials, including bark chips and compost not
in conjunction with a primary retail use, is classified as Industrial Service.

iii. Repair and service of consumer motor vehicles, motorcycles, and light
and medium trucks is classified as Vehicle Repair. Repair and service of
industrial vehicles and equipment, and heavy trucks is classified as
Industrial Service.

iv. Sales, rental, or leasing of heavy trucks and equipment is classified as
Wholesale Sales.

v. When kennels are limited to boarding, with no breeding, the applicant
may choose to classify the use as Retail Sales and Service.

vi. Uses where unoccupied recreational vehicles are offered for sale or
lease, or are stored, are not included as a Recreational Vehicle Park.

EXHIBIT 2
PAGE 2 OF 2

33



USE AND OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION

GROUP HOME.

LODGING HOUSE. Any building or portion thereof con-
taining not more than five guest rooms where rent is paid in
money, goods, labor or otherwise. The total number of guests
shall not exceed 16.

PERSONAL CARE SERVICE.
TRANSIENT.

310.3 Residential Group R-1. Residential occupancies con-
taining sleeping units where the occupants are primarily tran-
sient in nature, including:

Boarding houses (transient) with more than 10 occupants

Congregate living facilities (transient) with more than 10
occupants

Hotels (transient)

Motels (transient)

310.4 Residential Group R-2. Residential occupancies con-
taining sleeping units or more than two dwelling units where
the occupants are primarily permanent in nature, including:

Apartment houses

Boarding houses (nontransient) with more than 16
occupants

Congregate living facilities (nontransient) with more
than 16 occupants

Convents

Dormitories

Fraternities and sororities

Hotels (nontransient)

Live/work units

Monasteries

Motels (nontransient)

Vacation timeshare properties

Group R-2 occupancies providing 21 or more housing
units for low-income elderly, which are financed in whole or
in part by the federal or state fund, shall contain a multiser-
vice room adequate in size to seat all the tenants (ORS
455.425). The multiservice room shall include adjacent toilet
facilities for both sexes; a service area with a kitchen sink,
countertop and upper and lower cabinets; and a storage room
sized to store tables, chairs or benches and janitorial supplies
and tools. The multiservice room and accessory rooms shall
be accessible to disabled persons (see Chapter 11).

310.5 Residential Group R-3. Residential occupancies
where the occupants are primarily permanent in nature and
not classified as Group R-1, R-2, R-4 or I, including:

Adult care facilities that provide accommodations for six
or fewer persons of any age for less than 24 hours

Adult foster homes, as defined in ORS Chapter 443, or
family child care homes (located in a private residence),
as defined in Section 310.2

Adult foster homes and family child care homes that are

within a single-family dwelling are permitted-to-camply

60

Attachment “D” ™M
3-Z-18

with the Residential Code in accordance with Section
101.2

Buildings that do not contain more than two dwelling units

Boarding houses (nontransient) with 16 or fewer occupants

Child care facilities that provide accommodations for six
or fewer persons of any age for less than 24 hours

Congregate _[iving_facilities (nontransient) with 16 or
fewer occupants

Lodging houses, as defined in this section, are permitted to
comply with the Residential Code in accordance with
Section 101.2

310.5.1 Care facilities within a dwelling. Care facilities
for five or fewer persons receiving care that are within a
single-family dwelling are permitted to comply with the
Residential Code provided an automatic sprinkler system
is installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3 or with
Appendix T of the Residential Code.

310.6 Residential Group R-4. This occupancy shall include
buildings, structures or portions thereof for more than five but
not more than 16 persons, excluding staff, who reside on a
24-hour basis in a supervised residential environment and
receive custodial care. Buildings of Group R-4 shall be clas-
sified as one of the occupancy conditions indicated in Sec-
tions 310.6.1 or 310.6.2.

Group R-4 occupancies shall meet the requirements for
construction as defined tor Group R-3, except as otherwise
provided for in this code.

310.6.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which all persons receiving custodial
care, who without any assistance, are capable of respond-
ing to an emergency situation to complete building evacu-
ation. This group shall include, but not be limited to, the
following:

Congregate living facilities

Halfway houses

Social rehabilitation facilities
310.6.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings subject to licensure by the Oregon
Department of Human Services in which there are any per-
sons receiving custodial care who require limited verbal
or physical assistance while responding to an emergency
situation to complete building evacuation. This group shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

Alcohol and drug centers

Assisted living facilities with or without a Memory
Care Endorsement

Residential care facilities with or without a Memory
Care Endorsement

Residential treatment facilities

Group homes and facilities

2014 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE




Attachment “E”
3-Z-18

35

Draft MINUTES |
City of Newport Planning Commission '
Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A
August 13,2018
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Rod Croteau, Mike Franklin, Bill Branigan, and Jim
Hanselman.

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Dustin Capri.

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Absent: Karmen Vanderbeck (excused)

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; City Attorney, Steve Rich; and Executive

Ll
.

1

Assistant, Sherri Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.
Unfinished Business.

New Business.

Conflict of Interest Presentation by City Attorney. Steve Rich gave a presentation to the PC about conflicts of
interest. He noted that he was presenting an annual update to all committees on conflicts. He clarified for the PC what
the difference was between a conflict and bias. Rich also clarified the differences between a potential conflict of interest
and actual conflict of interest. He then went on to discuss the overlays of the Newport Municipal Code and the State
Ethics Code. Tokos explained the difference between legislative and qui-judicial conflicts of interest.

Review of Amendments to NMC 14.01.020 and 14.03.060 Related to Extended Stay Motels. Capri and Franklin
noted that they had a potential conflict of interest. Tokos reviewed the application that was submitted by Pacific Seafood
Group and the amendments to the NMC.

Berman asked if they bought the building and turned it into units, why it wouldn’t be considered apartments. Tokos said
it wouldn’t be under a residential code. Croteau asked if it would no longer be used for commercial motel rental. Tokos
said if their plans changed, they could use it or sell it to someone who wanted to use it as a motel. Franklin asked where
the location of the unit was. Tokos said he couldn’t say but was in one of the zones listed in memo and explained where
the locations fell in the zones.

Hanselman thought it sounded like they were asking for dwellings to stay in for up to six months. Tokos said no, they
weren’t apartments and were in a different construction classifications. It would be no different from hotels/motels.
Hanselman was concerned about safety for people who are in a lodging setting where they could cook. Tokos said it
was a benefit to have a provision to allow a business to build an extended stay operation. Franklin asked if the units
would have kitchens. Tokos wanted to encourage the PC to think in terms of any extended stay when considering the
amendments. He said that some units may not have kitchenettes. Hanselman thought that more and more businesses
would need more housing for the workforce and this is something that might become more common. Franklin asked if
it would be a loop hole for affordable housing. Tokos said they weren’t apartments and were different from dwellings.
Hardy reminded the PC to not confuse seasonal housing with workforce housing as they were different. Hanselman was
concerned that tourism was also seasonal and also looking for housing. Croteau thought it would set precedence for
housing for employees. Berman saw it as a positive to free up some workforce housing. Croteau said that he had talked
to different businesses who said that housing was an issue for hiring people. Hardy thought that there had been seasonal
shortages for decades. Croteau said he had a number of people in important roles in the community that say that housing
was an issue.

Patrick reminded the PC that they were looking at doing a standard for extended stay. He had a problem with converting
a complex to an extended stay because he didn’t know the state of the plumbing, electrical and the building. Tokos
asked if the PC wanted info on the building codes for the PC hearing. Capri reminded that anytime they would be
changing the use they would have to bring the building up to code. He said he could bring information on the distinction
between hotel/motels and multi-family; and extended stay or not. The PC agreed it would be helpful. Berman was
concerned that if someone bought an existing hotel, with these changes someone could either rent it as a motel or an

Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/13/18.



[(e]
o™

extended stay. Tokos said that it wasn’t an accurate assumption that Pacific Seafoods was assuming they were buying
an existing motel. Croteau asked if the existing motels met the existing code. Patrick said no because of the change in
the code. A discussion ensued regarding what triggers projects being required to be put up to code.

Capri asked if Hatfield and Samaritan Hospital could build to do extended stays. Tokos said they may have been already
been doing that and was already permitted under the current code. Patrick was more concerned about the conversion of
the buildings for extended stay, not so much the changes to the amendments.

Ellen Bristow addressed the PC and asked if extended stay was considered a boarding house or a dorm room. Tokos
said it was different from a boarding house which had a central common room. Bristow asked if a person would be in
one room or more than one in a room. Tokos said there would be an occupancy limit based on size of room, but who
was renting the unit wouldn’t be determined.

Branigan asked if this would be allowed in I-3 zones. Tokos said no. Hanselman asked about room taxes for extended
stay. Tokos said he could take a look at it and give the PC the information. Berman said they originally asked for it in
the C-2 zone but the proposal was not for C-2. Tokos said this was a typo on the application. Patrick asked to have the
map published split in half (North and South)with more color definition.

C. Planning Commission Scope of Work Update. Tokos reviewed the updated work program with the PC.
4. Director’s Comments. No Director comments.

5. Adjournment. Having no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 6:58 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

2 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/13/18.



Attachment “F”

6/28/16 3.-7Z-18

City of Newport
Zoning Map

Legend
i_ 7 City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary
Zone District
C-1 Retail and Service
C-2 Tourist
C-3 Heavy
I-1 Light
I-2 Medium
|-3 Heavy
P-1 Public Structures
P-2 Public Parks
P-3 Public Open Space
R-1 Low Density Single-Family
R-2 Medium Density Single-Family
R-3 Medium Density Multi-Family
R-4 High Density Multi-Family
W-1 Water Dependent
W-2 Water Related N

Feet
2,500 5,000 10,000

RT City of Newport

Community Development Department

169 SW Coast Highway Phone: 541.574.0629

Newport, OR 97365 Fax: 541.574.0644
This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nof Is R sukable for legal, engineering,
or sufveying purposes. It includes data from muRiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibiity
for its compllation o use and users of this information are cawtioned 1o verify all information with.
the CHy of Newport Community Development Department.




Attachment “G” ™
3-Z-18

CITY OF NEWPORT
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

The Newport Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 10, 2018, at
7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers to consider File No. 3-Z-18, revisions to the Newport Municipal
Code (NMC) 14.01.020 and 14.03.060 to provide for extended stay hotel and motel uses. Pursuant to Newport
Municipal Code (NMC) Section 14.36.010, the Commission must find that the change is required by public
necessity and the general welfare of the community in order for it to make a recommendation to the City
Council that the amendments be adopted. Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the request above
or other criteria, including criteria within the Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances, which
the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the
city and the parties an opportunity to respond to that issue precludes an appeal, including to the Land Use
Board of Appeals, based on that issue. Testimony may be submitted in written or oral form. Oral testimony
and written testimony will be taken during the course of the public hearing. The hearing may include a report
by staff, testimony from the applicant and proponents, testimony from opponents, rebuttal by the applicant,
and questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Written testimony sent to the Community
Development (Planning) Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365, must be received
by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing to be included as part of the hearing or must be personally presented
during testimony at the public hearing. The proposed code amendments, additional material for the
amendments, and any other material in the file may be reviewed or a copy purchased at the Newport
Community Development Department (address above). Contact Derrick Tokos, Community Development
Director (541) 574-0626 (address above).

(FOR PUBLICATION ONCE ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2018)




BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION
AND THE CITY COUNCIL

FOR THE CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON

In the Matter of a Type IV Applicationto ) FINDINGS OF FACT

Amend Newport Development Code ) AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

(“NDC”) Sections 14.01.020 and ) DEMONSTRATING SATISFACTION OF

14.03.060.2.b.iii to Allow Work Force ) THE APPLICABLE APPROVAL

Housing (the “Application”) in the C-1, C-2 ) CRITERIA (REVISED SEPTEMBER 19,

and C-3 Zoning Districts ) 2018 TO INCORPORATE AUGUST 13,
) 2018 CHANGES TO TEXT

) AMENDMENTYS)

L Request.

This Type IV legislative amendment Application to the text of the NDC, the City’s
acknowledged land use regulations, requests that the Planning Commission recommend approval
of, and that the City Council adopt, two amendments:

. to NDC Section 14.01.020 to amend the definitions of “hotel” and “motel” to remove the
reference to the percentage of lodging rooms available for rent to transient guests for a continual
period of less than thirty days and to define “hotels” and “motels” as either “transient” or “non-
transient” uses; and

. to NDC Section 14.03.060.C.2.b.iii and iv, to amend the uses in the retail sales and
service, personal service-oriented land use category, whereby hotels and motels are allowed
(Exhibit 1, Revised Text Amendments).

The purpose of the text amendment is to allow work force housing in the City’s three
commercial zoning districts — C-1, C-2 and C-3 — to accommodate the unmet need for work
force housing for employees for stays of longer than thirty days.

I1. Classification of Application and Procedure.
A. Authority to Initiate the Application.

NDC 14.36.020.C provides that a legislative amendment to the City’s land use
regulations may be initiated by a property owner. Exhibit 2 to this Application is a completed
“City of Newport Land Use Application” form signed by the authorized representative of Pacific
Seafood Group, a property owner within the City of Newport, Oregon.

39

1 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1



B. Characterization of Application as a Legislative Application.

This Application is characterized as a legislative application and is not a quasi-judicial
application. The application is properly characterized as a legislative application because it
makes new law as opposed to applying existing law.

C. Procedure Type.

This Application is characterized as a Type IV Application because the final decision is
made by the Newport City Council following a recommendation by the Newport Planning
Commission and involves a land use action, such as a text amendment to the NDC. NDC
14.52.020.

This Application meets the requirements of NDC 14.52.040, “Application for a Land Use
Action”, by providing information relevant to a legislative amendment. The Application
includes the name and address of the Applicant as required by NDC 14.52.040.A, and findings of
fact and other information to support the request and addresses all applicable approval criteria, as
required by NDC 14.52.040.K.

D. Proposed Amendments.
Exhibit 1 shows the proposed amendments:
1. NDC 14.01.020, “Definitions”.

This amendment modifies the definitions of “Hotel (transient)” and “Motel
(transient)” and add definitions of “Hotel (non-transient)” and “Motel (non-transient)”. The
definitions currently limit the percentage of guests who may occupy rooms for more than thirty
days. The proposed amendments remove this restriction for non-transient motels. However,
hotel and motel operators retain the choice of how long to rent rooms to guests.

2. NDC 14.03.060.2.b.iii, “Commercial Use Categories, Personal Service-
Oriented.”

This amendment modifies this use category by allowing hotels, motels and other
temporary lodging establishments to offer rooms to guests with an average stay longer than thirty
days by adding the definitions of “Hotel (non-transient)” and “Motel (non-transient)” to
accommodate work force housing needs and to distinguish these uses from transient hotels and
motels. The revised definition of “Motel (non-transient)”” addresses the need for cooking
facilities.

E. Public Review Procedure for the Application.

After the City accepts the Application, the City is required to provide notice of the
Planning Commission hearing to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and
Development (“DLCD?”) thirty-five (35) days before the Planning Commission hearing. The
City is not required to mail notice of the hearing to surrounding property owners. The Planning
Commission will hold a public hearing on the Application and make a recommendation to the

2 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

40



Newport City Council. The Newport City Council will hold a public hearing on the Application
and provide notice of its decision within twenty (20) days to DLCD and anyone who testified
orally or in writing before either the Planning Commission or the City Council.

The City was not required to give new notice to DLCD regarding the revised text amendment.
ORS 197.610(7).

I11. Reasons for the Amendments.

Pacific Seafood Group makes this Application because it is a large employer in the City and has
found it difficult to keep existing employees and hire new employees because of the lack of
affordable work force housing. Pacific Seafood Group maintains two processing plants in the
City, employing about 430 persons. The peak demand for work force housing occurs during the
Shrimp, Whiting and Crab seasons, about six to eight months each year. As explained in Part
IV, “Applicable Approval Criteria”, the City has an acknowledged need for work force housing.
In this case, the lack of work force housing at affordable prices, acknowledged in the Newport
Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”), makes it difficult for Pacific Seafood Group’s employees to
find work force housing for needed rental periods at affordable prices. Pacific Seafood Group
has determined that it must provide work force housing for its employees.

This amendment to the NDC is necessary to allow Pacific Seafood Group to purchase buildings
in one of the City’s three commercial zoning districts and to provide work force housing in those
buildings without a limitation on the percentage of occupants who must stay fewer than thirty
days. The proposed text amendments, discussed with the City’s Planning Director prior to
submittal of this Application, amends the definitions of “hotel” and “motel” and the retail sales,
personal service-oriented use category, to accomplish this purpose. If adopted by the Newport
City Council, hotels and motels for non-transient guests in the City’s three commercial zoning
districts can offer occupancy to guests without the current limitation on the number of guests
staying more than thirty days. This amendment is a reasonable solution to the identified problem
without requiring Pacific Seafood Group or another developer to construct additional multi-
family dwelling units, or to compete with full-time residents for affordable housing.

IV.  Applicable Approval Criteria.

This legislative amendment to the City’s land use regulations requires the Applicant to
demonstrate that the applicable approval criteria, including relevant Statewide Planning Goals
(the “Goals”), administrative rules implementing the Goals (the “Rules”), and provisions of the
acknowledged Newport Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”), are satisfied. ORS 197.195(2)(d).
This part of the Application addresses the relevant Goals, Rules and Plan goals and policies for
the proposed legislative amendment.

A. Relevant Goals.
1. Goal 1, “Citizen Involvement”:

“To develop a citizen involvement program that ensures
the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the
planning process.”

3 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

41



FINDING: The City can find that Goal 1 is satisfied because the City will follow its
acknowledged Citizen Involvement Program in reviewing the proposed land use regulation
amendments. The City will provide notice of the legislative amendment in the local newspaper
of record and make public hearings available where persons can testify about the Application.

The City can find that Goal 1 is satisfied.
2. Goal 2, “Land Use Planning”:

“To establish a land use planning process and policy
framework as a basis for all decision and actions related to use
of land and to assure an adequate factual basis for such
decisions and actions.”

FINDING: The Application contains an adequate factual basis for the proposed
legislative amendment to the City’s acknowledged land use regulations. The adequate factual
base includes a description of the problem and the proposed amendments to the NDC to address
the problem.

The City must also demonstrate that it has “coordinated” the Application, as
“coordination” is defined in ORS 197.015(5), with affected governmental units including but not
limited to local governments, special districts and state and federal agencies by providing them
with notice of the Application, an opportunity to comment and considering their comments in the
decision-making process as much as possible.

The City can also find that the proposed legislative amendment to the NDC does not
require an amendment to the acknowledged Plan.

The City can find that Goal 2 is satisfied.
3. Goal 9, “Economic Development”:

“To provide adequate opportunities throughout the
state for a variety of economic activities vital to the health,
welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens.”

FINDING: The City can find that the proposed legislative amendment supports the
City’s Goal 9 program by providing adequate and affordable work force housing to support
Pacific Seafood Group and other employers in the City.

The City can find that Goal 9 is satisfied.

4 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

42



4. Goal 12, “Transportation”:

“To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and
economic transportation system.”

FINDING: The City can find that Goal 12 is satisfied because the proposed text
amendment does not add a new use to the City’s three commercial zoning districts nor will the
proposed text amendment add additional vehicle trips to local and state streets and highways.

The City can find that Goal 12 is satisfied.
B. Applicable Administrative Rules.
1. OAR Chapter 660, Division 9, “Economic Development”.

FINDING: The City can find that this administrative rule implementing Goal 9 is
inapplicable because it applies to amendments to comprehensive plans for areas within urban
growth boundaries. OAR 660-009-0010(1). This Application does not amend the Plan.

2. OAR Chapter 660, Division 12, “Transportation Planning”.

FINDING: OAR 660-012-0060 is entitled “Plan and Land Use Regulation
Amendments.” OAR 660-012-0060(1) provides that the administrative rule applies to
amendments to existing land use regulations. The administrative rule requires a determination of
whether a land use regulation amendment would “significantly affect” a transportation facility.
OAR 660-012-0060(1)(a)-(c) identifies when a land use regulation amendment significantly
affects a transportation facility. The City can find that OAR 660-012-0060 is inapplicable to this
Application because none of the three situations constituting when a “significant affect” occurs
are applicable to this Application.

The City can find that the Transportation Planning Rule is satisfied by this Application.
C. Newport Comprehensive Plan.

The acknowledged Plan contains two sections relevant to this Application: the
“Economy” and “Housing” sections.

1. “Economy”.

FINDING: Plan Pages 24 and 25 note that the fishing and seafood processing industry
in Newport generates one-third of the state’s commercial fishing activities and one-third of the
state’s harvested seafood. The Plan identifies fishing and seafood processing as “potential
growth industries.” Plan Page 26 states that industrial employment in Newport will increase
from 11% of employment in Newport in 2010 to 15% by 2032. Part of this increase in
employment is attributable to the increase of seafood processing employment.

5 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

43



The City can find that fishing and seafood processing is an increasingly important part of
the City’s economy as noted in the Plan’s Economic Opportunities Analysis (the “EOA”). The
City can find that by supporting work force housing for Pacific Seafood Group’s employees and
other employers in the City, that industrial employment is strengthened, especially for seafood
processing, which is considered a “potential growth industry.”

The City can also find that Economy Policy 4 is relevant to this Application. Economy
Policy 4 provides:

“The City shall encourage growth of businesses involving
fishing and value-added seafood.”

The City can find that the evidence supports a conclusion that additional work force
housing opportunities are needed for housing for employees in the seafood industry. This
legislative amendment encourages the provision of additional work force housing so that the
seafood industry has a readily available supply of workers and those workers have affordable and
adequate housing.

The City can find that the Plan’s “Economy” section is satisfied.
2. “Housing”.

FINDING: The Plan contains a Housing Opportunities Analysis (the “HOA”). The
reason that this legislative amendment is needed is to provide for more opportunities for work
force housing. The City lacks affordable work force housing. The HOA at Plan Page 114-B
notes that while affordable housing has been decreasing, housing costs have been increasing.
Further, the HOA at Plan Page 114-f notes that there are very few high density housing locations
available in locations that are “ideal for workers.” HOA Plan Page 114-f notes that another
impediment to work force housing is the cost of rental housing.

Housing Policy 2 at Plan 114-h provides that:

“The City shall cooperate with private developers * * * in the
provision and improvement of * * * work force housing.”

The City can find that this Application implements Housing Policy 2 in two ways. First,
it allows for private developers to provide for work force housing without cost to the City or
other governmental entities. Second, the Application provides an affordable work force housing
solution for work force housing without competing for multi-family housing with permanent and
seasonal residents.

The City can find that the Plan “Housing” Section is satisfied.
C. Conclusion.

The City can find that the acknowledged Plan supports both the Plan’s acknowledgement
of value-added seafood as a growth industry in the City and encourages private developers to
provide solutions to the City’s work force housing needs.

6 — FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

44



D. NDC.

FINDING: The NDC contains no approval criteria for an amendment to the City’s
acknowledged land use regulations.

V. CONCLUSION.

For the reasons contained in this Application, the Planning Commission and the City Council can
find that the proposed text amendment to the NDC satisfies applicable Goals, Administrative
Rules and Plan policies. By adopting the proposed text amendment, the City will encourage
private employers to find a solution to work force housing needs for their employees.

The Applicant respectfully requests that the Planning Commission recommend approval to the
City Council and that the City Council approve the text amendment as proposed.

7 —FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

45



EXHIBITS

Exhibit 1 Revised Proposed Text Amendment in Redline Format

Exhibit 2 “City of Newport Land Use Application” Form

PDX\132877\238787\MCR\23915748.1

46



Definitions

Hotel (transient). A building in which lodging is provided for guests for compensation and
contains a common entrance and where lodging rooms do not have an entrance opening
directly to the outdoors (except for emergencies), with or without cooking facilities, and where
more-than-50 percent or more of the lodging rooms are for rent to transient-guests for a
continuous period of less than 30 days. A bed and breakfast facility or a vacation rental
conducted in a single family dwelling or individual dwelling unit is not a hotel use.*

Motel (transient). A building or group of buildings in which lodging is provided for guests for
compensation, containing guestunitslodging rooms with separate entrances from the building
exterior, with or without cooking facilities, and where mere-than-40-50 percent or more of the
lodging rooms are for rent to transient-guests for a continuous period of less than 30 days. A
bed and breakfast facility or a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual
dwelling unit is not a motel use.”

Hotel (non-transient). A building in which lodging is provided for guests for compensation and

contains a common entrance and where lodging rooms do not have an entrance opening
directly to the outdoors (except for emergencies), where cooking facilities are provided within

individual lodging rooms, or for groups of lodging rooms, and where 50 percent or more of the
lodging rooms are offered for rent to guests for a continuous period of 30 days or longer. A bed
and breakfast facility or a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual
dwelling unit is not a hotel use.*

Motel (non-transient). A building or group of buildings in which lodging is provided for guests

for compensation, containing lodging rooms with separate entrances from the building exterior,
where cooking facilities are provided within individual lodging rooms, or for groups of lodging
rooms, offered for rent to guests for a continuous period of 30 days or longer. A bed and

breakfast facility or a vacation rental conducted in a single family dwelling or individual dwelling
unit is not a motel use.*

*k*k

14.03.060 Commercial and Industrial Districts.

The uses allowed within each commercial and industrial zoning district are classified into use
categories on the basis of common functional, product, or physical characteristics.

*%%

C. Commercial Use Categories

*kk

2. Retail Sales and Service

a. Characteristics. Retail Sales and Service firms are involved in the sale, lease
or rent of new or used products to the general public. They may also provide
personal services or entertainment, or provide product repair or services for
consumer and business goods.

b. Examples. Examples include uses from the four subgroups listed below:

Exhibit 1
Page 1 of 3



i. Sales-oriented, general retail: Stores selling, leasing, or renting
consumer, home, and business goods including art, art supplies,
bicycles, books, clothing, dry goods, electronic equipment, fabric, fuel,
gifts, groceries, household products, jewelry, pets, pet food,
pharmaceuticals, plants, printed material, stationery, and videos; food
sales. Sales oriented general retail includes the service but not repair of
vehicles.

ii. Sales-oriented, bulk retail: Stores selling large consumer home and
business goods, including appliances, furniture, hardware, home
improvements, and sales or leasing of consumer vehicles including
passenger vehicles, motorcycles, light and medium trucks, and other
recreational vehicles.

iii. Personal service-oriented: Branch banks; urgency medical care;
Laundromats; photographic studios; photocopy and blueprint services;
printing, publishing and lithography; hair, tanning, and personal care
services; tax preparers, accountants, engineers, architects, real estate
agents, legal, financial services; art studios; art, dance, music, martial
arts, and other recreational or cultural classes/schools; hotels (non-
transient); motels (non-transient); taxidermists; mortuaries; veterinarians;
kennels limited to boarding and training with no breeding; and animal
grooming.

iv. Entertainment-oriented: Restaurants (sit-down and drive through);
cafes; delicatessens; taverns and bars; hotels_(transient), motels
(transient), recreational vehicles, and other temporary lodging with an
average length of stay less than 30 days; athletic, exercise and health
clubs or gyms; bowling alleys, skating rinks, game arcades; pool halls;
dance halls, studios, and schools; theaters; indoor firing ranges,
miniature golf facilities, golf courses, and driving ranges.

v. Repair-oriented: Repair of TVs, bicycles, clocks, watches, shoes, guns,
appliances and office equipment; photo or laundry drop off; quick printing;
recycling drop-off; tailor; locksmith; and upholsterer.

c. Exceptions.

i. Lumber yards and other building material sales that sell primarily to
contractors and do not have a retail orientation are classified as
Wholesale Sales.

ii. The sale of landscape materials, including bark chips and compost not
in conjunction with a primary retail use, is classified as Industrial Service.

iii. Repair and service of consumer motor vehicles, motorcycles, and light
and medium trucks is classified as Vehicle Repair. Repair and service of
industrial vehicles and equipment, and heavy trucks is classified as
Industrial Service.

iv. Sales, rental, or leasing of heavy trucks and equipment is classified as
Wholesale Sales.
Exhibit 1
Page 2 of 3

48



v. When kennels are limited to boarding, with no breeding, the applicant
may choose to classify the use as Retail Sales and Service.

vi. Uses where unoccupied recreational vehicles are offered for sale or
lease, or are stored, are not included as a Recreational Vehicle Park.

Exhibit 1
Page 3 of 3

49



City of Newport

Land Use Application

PrintForm |

Applicant Name(s):
Pacific Seafood Group

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE - COMPLETE ALL BOXES + USE ADDITTONAL PAPER IF NEEDED

Property Owner Name(s): <

MN/A

Applicant Mailing Address:

See attached.

Property Owner Mailing Address: & i

N/A

Applicant Telephone No.:
See attached.

Property Owner Telephone No.: & <y iy o

E-mail:

E-mail:

Authorized Representative(s):
See attached.

Authorized Representative Mailing Address

‘See attached.

See attached.

Authorized Representative Telephone No.:

EMallgee attached.

Project Information

Property Location:

NIA

Tax Assessor's Map No..N/A

Zone DesignationN/A

Comp Plan Designation:

N/A

Legal Description:

Tax Lot(s):

N/A

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):

Amendment to the Newport Development Code (the "NDC") to allow
hotels, motels and other temporary lodging with an average length of
stay greater than 30 days in the C-1, C-2, and C-3 zones in NDC
14.03.060.C.2.iv and to amend the definitions of "hotel" and "motel" in
NDC Section 14.01.020 to remove the length of stay requirements.

Existing Structures:

Topography and Vegetation:

APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

[:] Annexation
[] Appeal
[:] Comp Plan/Map Amendment

D Conditional Use Permit
e

D Staff

D Design Review
[:] Geologic Permit

] Interpretation

(1 Minor Replat

[_] Partition

[ planned Development
[:] Property Line Adjustment
] shoreland Impact

[ subdivision

|___] Temporary Use Permit

File No. Assigned:

[T]ucB Amendment
|:| Vacation
[:| Variance/Adjustment
[ Jpc
(] staff

Zone Ord/Map Amendment

D Other

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received: Fee Amount: Date Accepted as Complete:
Received By: Receipt No.: Accepted By:
(SEE REVERSE SIDE)

Community Development & Planning Departments 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365~ Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director

1710

Exhibit 2
Page 1 of 4

50



Exhibit 2
Page 2 of 4

51


mailto:mmiliucci@Dacseafood.com
mailto:mmiliucci@pacseafood.com
mailto:mrobinson@schwabe.com

APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Zoning Ordinance Map or Text Amendment

The following information must be submitted with a City of Newport Land Use
application for Zone Ordinance Map or Text Amendment:
Text Amendments:

(J1. A copy of the proposed language.

(32. Fee of $1,262.00.

Map Amendments:
(J1. Acurrent 18" x 24" Lincoln County Assessor’s tax map(s) showing the

subject property and the notification area. The notification area is all

properties within 300 feet of the subject property. (Lincoln County Assessor’s
office is located in the Lincoln County Courthouse at 225 W Olive St, Newport)

[J2. Alist of names and addresses of property owners, as shown in the
records of the Lincoln County Assessor, within the notification area
described in #1 above.

3. Written findings of fact addressing the following criteria:

(J (a) The change furthers a public necessity.
3 (b) The change promotes the general welfare.

4. A written explanation of the requested change.

(5. Fee of $1,262.00.

7/1/2018

Exhibit 2
Page 3 of 4

52



Exhibit 2
Page 4 of 4

53



54

City of Newport

Memorandum

To:  Planning Commission
From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director

Date: September 18,2018

Re:  Continued Hearing on File No. 1-VAR-18, Height Variance for Signage at Samaritan
Pacific Communities Hospital

The applicant has elected to submit further justification for the size of the proposed wall
mounted sign. Attached is a series of slides submitted on September 17, 2018 by Matthew
Brown with Innerface Architectural Signage, Inc. The first 5 slides are identical to material
the Commission has already received from the applicant. Slides 6 through 28 are new.

As noted in the staff report for the September 10, 2018 hearing, the relevant approval standard
is listed under NMC 10.10.130(A), which states:

Approval of the request is the minimum necessary to alleviate special
hardships or practical difficulties faced by the applicant and that are
beyond the control of the applicant.

In regard to this criterion, the Planning Commission should consider whether the applicant has
sufficiently demonstrated that the request is the minimum necessary to alleviate special

hardships or practical difficulties faced by the applicant and that are beyond the control of the
applicant.

If the Planning Commission finds that the applicant has met the criteria established in the
Newport Municipal Code for granting a variance, then the Commission should approve the
request and ask staff to prepare findings and a final order for consideration at its next meeting
(October 8, 2018). As always, the Commission may attach reasonable conditions of approval
necessary to carry out the purposes of the ordinance, as conditions of approval are permissible
under NMC Section 10.10.130 (Variance Requirements — specifying that the Planning
Commission utilizes the procedure and process of zoning variances, including conditions of
approval). If, on the other hand, the Commission finds that the request does not comply with
the criteria, then the Commission should share its reasons for why the application must be

denied. Staff would then prepare findings and a final order to that effect for the Commission’s
consideration.

Attachments

Email from Matthew Brown, Innerface Architectural Signage, Inc., dated 9/17/18, with attachment

Page 1 of 1



55

Derrick Tokos

From: mbrown@innerfacesign.com

Sent: Monday, September 17, 2018 3:40 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: Evonne Walls; Jon Conner; Jefflensen@innerfacesign.com; Joe Kunkel
Subject: RE: Additional information-signage submittal

Thank you!

Matthew Brown
Vice President | Design Services

0O (510) 525-9156 | C (510) 504-9156

INNERFACE

ARCHITECTURAL
SIGNAGE, INC,

000

innerfacesign.com | mywayfinding.com

From: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>

To: "mbrown@innerfacesign.com™ <mbrown@innerfacesign.com>

Cc: "JeffJensen@innerfacesign.com” <JeffJensen@innerfacesign.com>, Joe Kunkel <jkunkei@thehealthcarecollaborativegroup.com>, Jon Conner
<jconner@sambhealth.org>, Evonne Wallis <ewalls@sambhealth.org>

Date: 09/17/2018 03:39 PM

Subject: RE: Additional information-signage submittal

We will provide copies of the attached file to the Planning Commission.

Derrick 1. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: mbrown@innerfacesign.com [mailto:mbrown@innerfacesign.com]
Sent: Monday, September 17, 2018 3:37 PM
To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Cc: Jefflensen@innerfacesign.com; Joe Kunkel <jkunkel@thehealthcarecollaborativegroup.com>; Jon Conner
<jconner@sambhealth.org>; Evonne Walls <ewalls@samhealth.org>
1




56

Subject: Additional information-signage submittal
Derrick-

As discussed, the link below supplies the previous slide show, with additional content addressing board comments. We
will bring printed copies for the board and would like to include this in a media presentation.

Please call or write with any questions or concerns. Thank you.

https://AtiWeb1.Innerfacesign.com/IWeb/fileupld.nsf/0/634D439501C209ED8525830B00712354?0penDo
cument

Matthew Brown
Vice President | Design Services

O (510) 525-9156 | C (510) 504-9156

INNERFACE

ARCHITECTURAL
SIGNAGE, INC,

000

innerfacesign.com | mywayfinding.com




¢ Y Samaritan

Health Services

INNERFACE 57
ARCHITECTURAL
SIGNAGE, INC.

Monday, September 17, 18 1



1 The height of the Campus ldentification sign E7/D.1 exceeds the 30-foot height
limitation [(NMC 10.10.095(J)]

The SW Bay Street frontage has four signs — two wall signs (the campus identification sign (E-9/A)
and the “emergency” sign (E-6/A.1); and two freestanding signs (E-7/D.1 and E-8/C). NMC
10.10.095( C) requires that each street frontage shall be limited to not more than 2 signs, only
one of which may be other than a wall sign unless there is more than 200 lineal feet of street
frontage, in which case one additional sign is permitted. (That street frontage is more than 200
feet. So, only a maximum of three signs may be allowed on that frontage. Therefore, one of the
four signs must be eliminated in order to be consistent with the code).

The proposed “directional” freestanding signs may not be exempt in that they each exceed 3
square feet in area and some of them are internally illuminated.

Variance

Monday, September 17, 18 2



e The height of the Campus Identification sign E7/D.1 exceeds the 30-foot height
limitation [(NMC 10.10.095(J)]

Variance

Monday, September 17, 18 3



== s ﬁ
T AL . o oo og e B
« € )7| Samaritan‘Pacific Communities Hospital

Detail View
Scale: 118" = 1"-0”

Campus Identification:
Internally lluminated individual pan channel letters/logo

w/ translucent acrylic faces and LED illumination.
Self-contained unite with internal power packs

@P O 2A
W 'R

?

Building Mounted Signage

Monday, September 17, 18



le

100" P

| 1
3 EMIERGENCY

Detail View
Scale: 1/2" = 1'-0"

Entry ldentification:

Internally illuminated cabinet - 127 cap Letters

w/ translucent acrylic face and LED illumination. - 18" x 10°-0" Cabinet
Translucent red vinyl background w/ reversed white copy

Base mount to top of building canopy.

A DI O @
Yk =

Odllj

Building Mounted Signage

Monday, September 17, 18




a

&

-~

mph =
hd v

5

&
.

2

)

iewing

>

&0

A=
2
U

1

Signage V

18

September 17

Monday,



e - aﬁ.x’ ]

-

I i 5\
1 | | WLV Y ‘\ \ \ "\"“\v AW \\
(VI L SR 1 L

3
~n
!

i VR

From SB 101

Monday, September 17, 18 7



—— e |




From SB 101

Monday, September 17, 18



From SB 101

Monday, September 17, 18



19'-0 5/8"

@ Channel Letters with Raceway

(P1) S
U/
Manufacture and install one (1) set of face-lit channel letters
with raceway.
[1] Channel Letters 2 y 4 - Il

4" deep stock White aluminum coil
1" White trimcap (1 i
White acrylic faces w/ vinyl:
3M 230-157 Cobalt Blue
3M 230-125 Mango
White LED illumination

Raceway

4" deep fabricated aluminum
Paint to match wall (TBD) 1 AT
Install Front View 95.0 Sq.Fft. Side View
Attach to wall at location shown. Scale: 1/2" =1'-0"

Use wall appropriate hardware.

Fill all penetrations with watertight sealant.

Aluminum retumsj

Vinyl Color Chart > Aluminum hack\ f=——Wall

Continuous bead of caulk —_| ~——Fasteners appropriate for wall
l2)30(—1572(230;32\1 Blue (Sultan) along top edge of raceway (20" 0.C. top & bottom of raceway)
antone Fill all building penetrations with

230-25 Sunflower White LED module water-tight sealant.
Pantone 130 C " " p
3/16" White Acrylic ————| Conduit
o
LED power packJ 8 [——J-Box with disconnect switch

Paint Color Chart y
Fabricated aluminum raceway ~—Existing primary to power supply

Paint T/M Building wall (TBD) (120 Volt)
with Satin finish Low voltage wire—"|
¥

Trim capﬂ\
1/4" weep hole w/ light baffle

/1 Section View 23 PRODUCTION PRINT
L N/ Scale: 1'=1-0" E 4

DESIGN: Bob Shaw DATE: 11/16/16

SALES: DATE:

9160 SE 74t Ave | CLEDE Date: Client Approval + Date Revisions: b e ol L sl A ?""'ﬁ,",?‘:s?.‘:h}!‘;i:“éﬁi‘&?“’"""”‘“’“5‘“" bbe PAGE# 3
Portland OR 97206 | SamFit 11/2/2016 1) Add Logo channel 11/11/16 (BS) Isintended o beinstaled i th accordance Wi tha o i e e
| T e o Manaaar e (Lo o Ao rove D 12) Removed optons A2 & A3 11/14/2016 (@9 s of ik 00 f e o i o EREATITS RS | \umber of pages: 5
613, ) p1) Changed Logo & Colors 11/21/2016 (BS) and/or other applicabe ocal codes. This ncludes proper B,
800.613.4555 Newport, OR Kelly Reid orounding and bonding of the sign” should b ether directy

Fax 503.777.0220 Do matke o the signorabel atached to the sign, included i the Brsivio 16-942-R2-P1

# Instalaton nstuctons, or provided o a separate shetor a9
ramsaysigns.com Bob Shaw shipped with the sign.

Clinic ID

Monday, September 17, 18 11



19'-0 5/8"

) SamFit

Front View 95.0 Sq.Ft. Side View

A Scale: 1/2" =1'-0"

Clinic ID

Monday, September 17, 18 12



Clinic ID

Monday, September 17, 18 13




=
S :
ComparabieApplication

Monday, September 17, 18 14




[ Comp‘aréble Applice

Monday, September 17, 18 15



‘) Samaritan

Medical Center

Children’s l ‘
Miracle Network
@ Hospitals

Comparable Application

Monday, September 17, 18



Monday, September 17, 18 17



2 e The SW Bay Street frontage has four signs.

e That street frontage is more than 200 feet.

e A maximum of three signs may be allowed on that frontage.

Variance

Monday, September 17, 18 18



> Authorized € Authorized

< Ambulances Only € Ambulances Only
Vehicles Only Vehicles Only

West Face East Face North Face

¢ ® .

- EMERGENCY € EMERGENCY

> Main Entrance € Main Entrance

4 Deliveries

EMERGENCY

West Face East Face

4 EMERGENCY > Deliveries
4 Main Entrance

€ Deliveries

L1

L[]

SW ABBEY STREET

- —

West Face East Face
North Face South Face

[

=y =iy —
T

|- — s i 52051 Aoy et
€ EMERGENCY - EMERGENCY ey

€ Main Entrance > Main Entrance

A Deliveries

€ EMERGENCY 9 EMERGENCY

MTH STREET W A Main Entrance

A Deliveries
-

’f)| Samaritan Pacific Communities Hospita

North Face South Face S LN North Face South Face

Signage Plan

Monday, September 17, 18 19



3 e The proposed “directional” freestanding signs exceed 3 square feet in area
and some of them are internally illuminated.

Variance

Monday, September 17, 18 20



930 SW Abbey Street

| * EMERGENCY ? (()‘ €& Physician Parking
1 Hospital

Patient &

€ Outpatient Services . )
<> Patient Pickup Tl

<> Visitor Parking 1* EMERGENCY
’ j € Outpatient Services

=» Visitor Parking

B: Primary Directional C: Secondary Directional D: Specific Directional E: Parking ldentification
Internally illuminated Internally illuminated Non-illuminated (D.1 lllum.) Non-illuminated

Freestanding Signage

Monday, September 17, 18 21



3-1/2" 3-1/2" 3-1/2”
copy copy copy

l 930 SW Abbey Street
P Samaritan
((") 1 Communities
LY

F
B "
|\ soswmeyswenr |
= N EMERGENCY i | P Samaritan
((’) P: Communities

€ Outpatient Services il

<> Visitor Parking ] J 4 EMERGENCY
e ’ j € Outpatient Services

=» Visitor Parking

T I
€ Pbysician Parking
<> Patient Pickup

Patient &
Visitor Parking

B: Primary Directional C: Secondary Directional
Internally illuminated Internally illuminated

Freestanding Signage

Monday, September 17, 18

D: Specific Directional
Non-illuminated (D.1 lllum.)

E: Parking ldentification
Non-illuminated

22



= Authorized & Authorized
Vehicles Only Vehicles Only

E-3
North Face South Face U

Signage Plan

Monday, September 17, 18 23



S;nnuritan
Pacific

( OmMmunities
Hospital

Monday, September 17, 18



Monday, September 17, 18 25




Monday, September 17, 18



R T N o e s o R R

Monday, September 17, 18 2



LETTER
HEIGHT

READABLE
DISTANCE

MAXIMUM

FOR MAXIMUM READABLE

IMPACT

DISTANCE

DURATION OF READABILITY
(TIME IN SECONDS)

1"

10'

30°

2"

20'

60'

3"

30’

90’

S"

50'

150'

7"

70’

210

10"

100

300’

12"

120°

360

15"

150

450'

18"

180

540'

Letter Height
& ¢ 8 10"
25 | 55 82 109 136
35 | 39 58 78 97
45 | 30 45 61 76
55 | 25 37 50 6.2
65 | 21 31 45 57

24"

240

720'

30"

300°

900’

36"

360

1080’

Example: If the sign will be viewed from 300, we
recommend all copy fo be In between 10% and 20" rall.

Monday, September 17, 18

Example: If a car passes the sign at 45 mph, 6" letters
will be legible for 4.5 seconds.

28



City of Newport

Memorandum

To: Newport Planning Commission
From: Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director

Date:  September 17,2018
Re: Appeal of Geologic Permit (File No. 1-GP-18)

Enclosed is a copy of the written record, including the staff decision and notice of appeal. Please treat the staff
decision, and this memo, as the staff report for the appeal hearing. As this is a geologic permit, analysis
performed by certified engineering geologists, geotechnical engineers, and licensed engineers is of particular
relevance. To that end, the record includes submittals by K&A Engineering and K&D Engineering on behalf of
the applicant, peer review by Columbia Geotechnical on behalf of appellants, and comments by H.G. Schlicker
and Associates regarding reports they have authored involving the property and other parcels in the area. The
subject site is situated on the west side of NW Spring Street, and is identified by the County Assessor as tax lots
1800, 1900, and 1903 of map 11-11-05-BC.

Appellants have challenged substantive elements of applicant’s June 29, 2018 geologic report by K&A
Engineering that concluded the applicant’s property is suitable for the development of three home sites (Exhibit
A-6). The August 15, 2018 peer review report by Columbia Geotechnical identifies potential issues with K&A
Engineering’s analysis (Exhibit E-6). K&A Engineering responded to the peer review comments in a letter dated
September 12, 2018 (Exhibit E-3).

City of Newport regulations for development within mapped geologic hazards areas are contained in Chapter
14.21 of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC), and all standards listed in this chapter are relevant to the permit
application on appeal. Applications for geologic permits must include a geologic report, prepared by a certified
engineering geologist, establishing the site is suitable for the proposed development (NMC 14.21.050(D)).
Further, an engineering report, prepared by a licensed civil engineer, geotechnical engineer, or certified
engineering geologist (to the extent qualified), must be provided if engineering remediation is anticipated to
make the site suitable for the proposed development (NMC 14.21.050(E)). Statements by these licensed
individuals should be viewed by the Commission as expert testimony on these matters.

Staff concluded that the June 29, 2018 geologic report by K&A Engineering and accompanying conceptual site
plan by K&D Engineering satisfied the approval standards with conditions and issued a decision to that effect
on July 16, 2018 (Exhibit A-3). The decision was appealed on 7/31/18, with appellants asserting that the June
29, 2018 report by K&A Engineering contained inconsistencies, errors, and omissions that they would highlight
with their own analysis prepared by a certified engineering geologist (Exhibit C-4). This was accomplished with
the peer review report by Columbia Geotechnical, which appellants submitted on August 29, 2018. The appeal
and peer review report were filed in accordance with the deadlines set forth in NMC 14.21.120. In deciding this
appeal, the Planning Commission should consider any and all evidence in the record it believes to be relevant to
criteria for approval of geologic permits, and may ask the applicant and/or the appellant to provide responses
from K&A Engineering or Columbia Geotechnical to issues that it feels need clarification.

With respect to the procedures for Monday’s hearing, a script will be prepared for the Planning Commission
Chair addressing the conduct and order of the proceedings in a manner consistent with the City of Newport’s

Page 10of 5



[(e]
[e]

adopted procedures NMC 14.52.080). Signup sheets will be provided for those wishing to speak at the hearing.
The sheets will include a statement asking that persons identify the criteria they believe the applicant has or has
not satisfied before they provide their testimony.

If, after taking testimony, the Commission believes that it has sufficient information to render a decision on the
appeal then it may provide direction to staff to prepare findings of fact for consideration at its next meeting. The
Commission should identify the direction it wants staff to take in preparing the findings (e.g. approve the
application in a manner consistent with the staff decision, approve the application but include alternative findings
addressing specific issues, or deny the application). If the Commission is inclined to deny the application, it is
reasonable for it to ask that the appellant prepare the findings. The Commission must approve the application
(i.e. deny the appeal) if it believes the approval standards have been met or can be met through the imposition of
reasonable conditions. It must deny the application if it believes the approval standards cannot be met, even with
reasonable conditions.

The Commission may, at the request of a participant or on its own accord, continue the hearing to a date certain
to provide an opportunity for persons to present and rebut new evidence, arguments or testimony related to the
approval criteria. If, after taking testimony, the Commission believes that additional information is needed in
order for it to approve the application then this would be an option that it could pursue. In such a case, the
Commission should be clear about the additional information that it wants to see submitted. Prior to the
conclusion of the hearing, any participant may request an opportunity to present additional evidence, arguments
or testimony. If such a request is made, the Commission must, at 2 minimum, leave the record open for receipt
of written materials for a period of 7 days. Unless waived, the City must also afford the applicant at least 7 days
after the record is closed to all other parties to submit final written argument in support of the application.

Exhibits

The case record is organized chronologically, with the most recently submitted information listed first.
Documents submitted after the date of this memo will be distributed to Commission members at the hearing.

Materials Submitted After the Appeal

Exhibit # Description

E-1 Email from Elaine Karnes, dated 9/17/18, expressing concern with the geologic report
and slope stability, with attached photographs

E-2 Letter from Chris Schneller, dated 9/16/18, expressing that they believe the applicant
has failed to establish the site is suitable for the proposed development

E-3 Letter from Michael Remboldt, P.E., G.E. and Gary Sandstrom, C.E.G., dated 9/12/18,
responding to the peer review by Columbia Geotechnical

E-4 Email from Carol Reinhard, dated 9/11/18, expressing her opinion that the analysis by
K&A Engineering was incomplete and faulty

E-5 Letter from Mona Linstromberg, dated 9/10/18, with comments on the conceptual site
plan prepared by K&D Engineering, revised 7/2/18. Attached are full size copies of the
plan to be distributed to the Commission members (plan to be distributed separately)

E-6 Geotechnical Peer Review by Ruth Wilmoth, CE.G., P.E., with Columbia
Geotechnical, dated 8/15/18 (submitted 8/29/18)

Page 2 of 5



87

E-7 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/29/18, with chapter from a book by Paul
Komar, titled Jump-off Joe Fiasco

E-8 Email from staff to Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/8/18, regarding issues with the notice
of decision on the geologic permit

E9 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/7/18, asking that a letter from the Oregon
Shores Conservation Coalition related to the applicant’s shoreland resource impact
review application be included in the record (letter attached)

E-10 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/7/18, asking that a letter from Lisa Potter
Thomas, related to the applicant’s shoreland resource impact review application, be
included in the record (letter attached)

E-11 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/7/18, asking that a letter she submitted related
to the applicant’s shoreland resource impact review application, be included in the
record (letter attached)

E-12 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/7/18, asking that a letter she submitted with

additional testimony related to the applicant’s shoreland resource impact review
application, be included in the record (letter attached)

E-13 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/7/18, asking that Tim Cross’s credentials be
included in the record. Includes enclosed resume

E-14 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated 8/7/18, asking that Tim Cross’s letter (Exhibit
B-10) be included in the record

E-15 Email from Chris Schneller, dated 7/31/18, taking issue with Gary Sandstrom’s
conclusions related to the “design life of the structure”

E-16 Email from Chris Schneller, dated 7/31/18, expressing concerns with the design of the
drainage system for the proposed development

E-17 Email from Ann Sigleo, dated 7/31/18, indicating that she believes the applicant’s
geologic report was thorough, but that additional details are needed for the beach access
plan

Notice of the Appeal Hearing

Exhibit # Description

D-1 Email from staff, dated 9/12/18, sent to persons on an email distribution list that asked
to be kept appraised of land use matters involving the property. The email included the
appeal hearing notice as an attachment

D-2 Notice of appeal hearing mailed to appellants, property owners within 200-feet of the
subject property, and affected agencies. Notice was mailed on 8/31/18 and includes map
and mailing list

D-3 Notice of the appeal hearing published in the Newport News-Times on 9/14/18

Page 3 of 5



88

Appeal Documents

Exhibit # Description

C-1 Email from Sean Malone, Attorney, dated 7/31/18, indicating that he is representing
appellants in the appeal of the geologic permit

C-2 Email from Leslie Hogan advising of Pat Linstromberg’s interest in signing on to the
appeal. The email is dated 7/31/18

C3 Email from Teresa Amen, dated 7/31/18 confirming that they own property on Spring
Street

C4 Appeal from Mona Linstromberg, Elaine Kamnes, Christine Schneller, Robert Earle,

Teresa, and Leslie Hogan (Power of Attorney for Pat Linstromberg), filed 7/31/18

Documents Submitted After Decision and Prior to Appeal

Exhibit # Description

B-1 Email from Teresa Amen, dated 7/29//18, with attached letter from Robert Earle and
Teresa Amen, Mary Bauman, and Nancy Luther opposing the proposed development

B-2 Email from Brent Bunker, dated 7/27/18, expressing concerns with the geologic stability
of the subject property

B-3 Email from Ann Howell, dated 7/27/18 with an article about a house in Maryland that

she views as an example of “just because you can do it, doesn’t mean you should”

B-4 Email from staff to Chris Schneller, dated 7/27/18 related to road access permits the
applicant will need to obtain if and when the geologic report becomes final

B-5 Email from Mona Linstromberg suggesting that K& A Engineering might want to revisit
aspects of their report. The email is dated 7/26/18

B-6 Email from Mona Linstromberg, dated asking if the applicant might consider accepting
an extension to the appeal period

B-7 Letter from Wayne Belmont, Attorney, Roy Kinion (Road Official) and Steve Hodge,
P.E. with Lincoln County. The letter, dated 7/26/18, indicates that earthwork supported
by an approved Geologic Permit can occur within County road right-of-way subject to
an access permit. County Engineer comments relate to his conclusion that the geologic
report is consistent with the 2014 Oregon Structural Specialty Code

B-8 Email from staff to the applicant, dated 7/26/18, with the letter from Mr. Cross regarding
K&A Engineering’s analysis
B-9 Email from Doug Gless, R.G., C.E.G, L.H.G., with H.G. Schlicker and Associates,

dated 7/25/18, advising as to the relative weight readers should give to three reports that

they prepared involving the subject property and adjacent parcels. Referenced reports
are included with this exhibit

Page 4 of 5



89

B-10 Letter from Tim Cross, dated 7/23/18, expressing concern with K&A Engineering’s
analysis
B-11 Email from Elaine Karmnes, dated 7/20/18, summarizing issues discussed with staff

Record up to Issuance of City Decision

Exhibit # Description

A-1 Email from staff, dated 7/16/18, to individuals that requested notice of the decision

A-2 Written notice and mailing list of individuals and agencies that received notice of the
decision via first-class mail. Notice is dated 7/16/18

A-3 Notice of decision approving the geologic permit, dated 7/16/18

A-4 Email from Michael Remboldt, P.E., G.E., dated 7/6/18, transmitting the 6/29/18 report

A-5 Conceptual site plan for the subject property, prepared by K&D Engineering, Inc., dated
7/2/18 (11x17 reduced copy)

A-6 Geotechnical Engineering Report and Geologic Hazard Assessment, by Michael
Remboldt, P.E., G.E. and Gary Sandstrom, C.E.G., R.P.G, dated 6/29/18 and received
by the City on 7/6/18

A-7 Email from staff advising the applicant that the transmitted report, which was intended
to be an update, was in fact an older version. Email is dated 7/5/18

A-8 Email from staff indicating that the application was incomplete, dated 6/21/18

A9 Geotechnical Engineering Report and Geologic Hazard Assessment, by Michael
Remboldt, P.E., G.E. and Gary Sandstrom, C.E.G., R.P.G, dated 6/12/18

A-10 Email from Bill Lund dated 5/4/18 requesting a meeting to discuss outstanding issues
with the application

A-11 Email from Derrick Tokos, Newport Community Development Director (staff) to Mr.
Lund, dated 5/4/18, advising that the application was incomplete

A-12 Email from Bill Lund seeking confirmation that the application is being processed.
Email is dated 5/4/18

A-13 Copy of Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Chapter 14.21, Geologic Hazards Overlay

A-14 Geotechnical Engineering Report for property identified as Tax Lots 1800, 1900 and

1903, Tax Map 11-11—05-BC, by Michael Remboldt, dated 11/30/17

A-15 Letter from Michael Remboldt, P.E., G.E. related to the impact of the 60-foot Jump-off
Joe road right-of-way on their 11/30/17 Geotechnical engineering Report

A-16 Land use application by William Lund, property owner, submitted 5/3/18

Page 5 of 5



= EXHIBIT o
g o
: E-1

Derrick Tokos §

From: Elaine Karnes <karnese@peak.org>

Sent: Monday, September 17, 2018 11:14 AM

To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: Ruth Wilmoth; Phillip Johnson, Oregon Shores/CoastWatch; Sean Malone; Mona

Linstromberg
Subject: #1-GP-18-A: Testimony and Evidence
Attachments: #1.jpg; #2jpg; #3pg; #4.jpg; #5jpg; #6,jpyg; #7.jpg; #8.jpg; #9.jpg; #10.jpg

TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE #1-GP-18-A

September 17, 2018

Location Map 11-11-05BC. Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903.

Please enter in the record for the geologic permit appeal and confirm receipt.

The area proposed for development is in an active slide zone as identified by the State
DOGAMI study. Our concern is that additional development could jeopardize the stability of
Spring Street, the infrastructure (water lines, sewer lines, storm drain, and the buried utilities such
as gas and electric), as well as existing homes in the area. A major geologic event that occurred in
the 1960's is known as "The Spring Street Landslide".

On June 16, 1993, the Newport News-Times published an article concerning a proposed
development on the same site. That article quoted Tom (Thomas) Branford (at that time a Lincoln
County District Court Judge and since 1996 a Circuit Court Judge) who had previously owned a
home across the street as stating: " ... just from walking down to the beach for the past 18 years
through the property they're planning to develop...I believe that property is unstable." The 1993
article goes on to state: "Branford said that several years ago, in an area near the proposed
development, 'a chunk of ground about 130 feet long and 10 feet wide simply cracked off, and it
has sunk about six feet since that time. One owner had to alter their foundation... another lost a 10-
foot chunk that was the full width of their lot.' " (That earlier development proposal was quickly
abandoned.)

Since 1982, when the properties on either side of the proposed development were built, both
homes have suffered significant damage to their foundations. The nearest house to the south (1245
NW Spring Street) required replacing much of its foundation with a cantilever support construction
(see photos #1, #2, #3). A retaining wall was added on the west side of the house.

The house to the north (1409 NW Spring Street) required major work by "Ram Jack" during
the summer of 2017. A large section of the driveway was removed and a concrete pour was done
to support anchors attached to the house (see photos #4, #5). On the private trail going up from the
beach to this house, the owners have posted a sign: "No Trespassing Private Beach Walkover
ACTIVE GEOLOGIC HAZARD AREA" (see photo #6).

The extensive clearing and bulldozer work that was done by the current developer at the
proposed Spring Street site obscured much of the evidence of recent slides. We had observed
slumps on the site during the 27 years that we have lived in the neighborhood. A number of years
ago the beach trail that starts near the memorial bench suffered a slide that brought down small
trees and destroyed part of the trail during a single rain storm. From the county road right-of-way
(that extends the eastern edge of the property) you can see clear indications of previous slides. (see

1



—
(o))
photos #7, #8, #9, #10)

The report submitted by the developer's geologic engineer states: "We do not warrant or
guarantee site surface or subsurface conditions. Exploration test holes indicate soil conditions only
at specific locations (i.e. the test hole locations) to the depths penetrated". Yet, none of these test
holes were within the proposed development site, but rather are located within the City or County
right-of-ways.

This same report states: "The scope of our service does not include construction safety
precautions, techniques, sequences, or procedures...". This seems to suggest that there could be
associated risks to the area during construction, such as the movement of heavy equipment, driving
piles, expansive clearing of vegetation and additional earth movement.

Newport Municipal Code clearly states that the City's responsibility is to "promote the public
health, safety and general welfare by minimizing public and private losses due to earth movement
hazards and limiting erosion and related environmental damage..." and to "assure that the sensitive
nature of beach and dune land forms is recognized and that development in these areas is designed
so as to protect important natural values and reduce hazards to life and property." Newport
residents have witnessed the erosion and slides along a section of Coast Street (just to the south of
an earlier failed Jump-Off Joe development) resulting in its closure. We were Newport residents
when the "Jump-Off Joe Fiasco" unraveled (as characterized by O.S.U. Professor Emeritus Paul
Komar in this book The Pacific Northwest Coast). We ask only that the City fulfill its
responsibility to protect the property and lives of the citizens of Newport.

Respectfully,
Elaine and Robin Karnes

attachments:
#1
#2
#3
#4
#5
#6
#7
#8
#9
#10



3
-

k)

g

7
-










v

,\,\.\.. e

i

N







EXHIBIT
E-2

PENGAD-Bayonne, N. .
97

September 16, 2018
Re: Appeal of Geologic Hazard Permit 1-GP-18, West of NW Spring Street

To: Members of the Newport Planning Commission

Commissioners,

“Minimizing public and private losses due to earth movement hazards” is stated in the purpose
declaration of the Geologic Hazards Overlay section of the Newport Municipal Code. In 1-GP-
18, the applicant and his geotechnical advisers have failed to provide convincing evidence that
the site is suitable for the proposed development or that engineering remediation can make it
suitable.

It is not an accident that this property has never been developed. Simple common sense would
recognize the significant risk of failure. It is clear that this development is not in the best interest
of the City. The Geologic Permit should not be approved under any conditions.

Sincerely,

Chris Schneller
Homeowner

1234 NW Spring Street
Newport

CITY OF NEWPORT

SEP 17 2018
RECE!VED



EXHIBIT

228

;%

K & A ENGINEERING, INC.

91051 S. WILLAMETTE STREET

P. 0. Box 8486, CoBURG, OR 97408
(541) 684-9399 - KAENGINEERS.COM

engineering

September 12, 2018 Project: 17056

Bill Lund
P.0O.Box 22
Seal Rock, OR 97376

Subject: Response to Columbia Geotechnical Peer Review from Columbia Geotechnical
Proposed Residential Development
Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903; Tax Map 11-11-05-BC;
NW Spring St., Newport, Oregon

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

Our understanding is that the subject “peer review,” written by Ruth A. Wilmoth, C.E.G., P.E. of
Columbia Geotechnical, located in Vancouver, Washington, was requested, and paid for, by a Ms. Mona
Lindstromberg of Tidewater, Oregon. This “peer review” discussed selected portions of our
Geotechnical Report for the subject project, dated June 29, 2018.

At your request, we have reviewed Ms. Wilmoth’s “peer review” and are submitting our response to her
discussion in this letter.

RESPONSE

QUALIFICATIONS

Ruth A. Wilmoth is a licensed engineering geologist in the State of Oregon (license No. E1435) and a
licensed professional engineer (civil engineering) but is not licensed in the state of Oregon as a
geotechnical engineer. As such, she is not qualified to make a peer review of a report made by a
professional geotechnical engineer.

As such, we assume that any valid peer review made by Ms. Wilmoth is limited to those aspects covered
in the Geologic Hazard Assessment made by Mr. Gary C. Sandstrom, C.E.G., R.P.G. — a licensed
professional engineering geologist and geologist in the state of Oregon.

DISCUSSION
= |tem 1 - Executive Summary. Our study included the cited reference (OFR 0-04-09 - see
footnote 3, page 6). Our report also summarized, in detail, prior slope movement on and
around the site (e.g. 3.1 Geologic Hazards). We agree that this is a high hazard zone for slope
movement and, as such, warrants great caution, and was the basis for our detailed investigation
of site-specific ground conditions for the project considered in this area.

98



Response — Wilmoth Peer Review ®
NW Spring St. Development — Lund Development — Newport, Oregon
September 12, 2018 - K & A Engineering, Inc. - Project No.: 17056

engineering

Evidence provided by broad-scale mapping and lidar imagery must be verified in the field, which
is what our study provided.

As far as the distress to adjacent homes, we are unaware of the nature of such “historical
distress.” Foundations move for a variety of reasons and it is an over-reach to assume that
whatever distress has occurred is due to slope movement. K & A Engineering, Inc. has extensive
experience in determining the nature, cause, and extend of foundation movement and
developing foundation repair plans. Determining the nature, cause, and extent of foundation
distress requires a detailed geotechnical investigation, surveying, structural analysis, and
analysis. Wilmoth needs to reference geotechnical studies, measurements, engineering
analysis, and written reports to support this statement.

= |tem 2 - Surface Conditions. |t is not clear where Wilmoth observed erosion. It is helpful to
note that we did observe indications of an old logging, or some other type of access, road in the
steep slope descending from NW Spring Street. Perhaps this is what Wilmoth observed.

We note that significant erosion occurred at the base of the old slide scarp and west of this area
on the drill access constructed for our investigation. This erosion was addressed by
construction erosion control measures on site. The monitoring Wilmoth recommends is most
appropriate for deep-seated landslides — conditions not found at this site. The old slope
movement was a shallow rotational/translational movement which has already occurred. Site
observations (i.e. no tension cracks or other evidence of contemporary mass slope movement)
and our stability analysis (based on actual field data and laboratory testing) indicates that the
site is stable and safe for the proposed development if the recommendations for pile-supported
building foundations are followed.

= Item 3 -Zonel. This zone was described as an old slide scarp. The vertical slopes in this area
are cut embankments from some sort of narrow logging or access road. The alignment is easy
to trace.

= Item 4 — Geologic Setting. Wilmoth did not provide the complete quote from the Schlicker
report referenced (the original 1991 Report by Herbert G. Schlicker). H. G. Schlicker
recommended 50-foot borings “unless drilling indicates competent material at a shallower
depth.” Our probes and borings found competent material at shallower depths. H. G. Schlicker
also stated in the 1991 report that a “driving force is no longer present to activate a large slide”
in the study area.

The 2016 Schlicker report Wilmoth cites (no referenced given) is actually, we believe, dated
March 12, 2015 and was authored by Mr. J. Douglass Gless. For this study, Gless drilled the
site, making two borings along the west side of NW Spring Street using a trailer-mounted auger
rig. We did not mention this report because we did not have it at the time and, even if we did,

Page | 2

99



Response — Wilmoth Peer Review [
NW Spring St. Development — Lund Development — Newport, Oregon

September 12, 2018 - K & A Engineering, Inc. - Project No.: 17056 . .
engineering

we would not have considered the report credible, since it recommended building on the upper
bench supported by spread footings — the highest hazard zone of the entire site — with no
reported analysis to confirm global slope stability of this recommendation (i.e. slope loaded with
footings).

= [tem 5 - Slope Movement and Appendix C. Our analysis of the existing (pre-development)
conditions confirmed that, under the most extreme earthquake event, the factor of safety (FOS)
is likely to be slightly below 1.0. Considering the relatively flat surface of mudstone in this area,
slope failure would likely result small magnitudes of lateral movement of 1-foot or less. Thisis a
magnitude that would not cause structural collapse.

However, the analysis does not consider the stabilizing effect of the recommended foundation
pile support which will improve global stability by the incorporation of battered micropiles. We
have recommended that, once the development concept is approved, additional borings at the
home sites will need to be made to extend the geologic profile, provide data for design of the
foundation support system, and allow us to evaluate global stability in the constructed
condition.

The old slide surface is not a uniform slope of 15-degrees - it is much flatter overall, as depicted
in the Field-developed Cross Section. This is due to the concave shape of the ancient slope
movement that occurred. Also, mudstone dip angles in the are not uniformly 15-degrees and,
to our knowledge, other than dip directions and strikes on geologic maps, no specific studies
have been made to characterize the distribution of dip angles and directions for this site.

Our probes consisted of a relatively sophisticated cone penetration test including tip pressure
and side friction. N-values are calculated as well as a host of other correlated soil parameters
well documented in the literature for evaluation of cone penetration testing. The test was
summarized on our report and reduced data for tip pressure, friction ratio, and correlated N
values are shown on the probe logs. We made conservative estimates of soil and rock shear
strength based on published correlations and the tip pressure and friction ratios.

Based on all the probes, borings, and shallow hand augers at the site, the groundwater regime
was clearly delineated. Additionally, our investigation was made during the wet season when
we would expect groundwater to be high.

= Item 6 — Beach Regression. [f the 100-year average “sea cliff’ retreat was 5-feet per year, then
the retreat would be at least 500-feet in the last 100-years. This is approximately 200-feet
greater than the measured distance of the beach to the east edge of NW Spring Street. This is
extreme and does not represent the actual site condition.

Page | 3

100



Response — Wilmoth Peer Review ®
NW Spring St. Development — Lund Development — Newport, Oregon
September 12, 2018 - K & A Engineering, Inc. - Project No.: 17056

engineering

The erosion rates discussed in the Geologic Hazard Assessment for this project (Gary C.
Sandstrom, C.E.G., R.P.G.) are based on the more relevant and newer DOGAMI Open File Report
0-04-09.! The estimated mean bluff toe erosion rate for fine-grained Tertiary rocks is 0.3-
feet/year (see Table 7, page 34 of the report text). Priest and Allen also recommend a
“conservative” erosion rate of 0.45-feet/year. The Komar publication referenced by Wilmoth is
a much older publication (1998) and we assume that the recent research and DOGAMI
publications are based on better data and analysis.

= |tem 7 - Liquefaction. None of the borings or probes found conditions conducive to
liquefaction — saturated loose sands. The unconsolidated soils below the groundwater table,
encountered in the probes and borings consisted of silts and clays. Our findings confirm the
Geologic Hazard Assessment that there is a low risk of liquefaction based on the HazVu mapping
for the site.

= [tem 8 - Tsunami. The known nature and probability of Tsunami elevation was amply discussed
in the Geologic Hazard Assessment - 5.0 Geologic Hazard Mapping. While the site is well above
the “statutory” 30-foot elevation, the area proposed for development is within the inundation
area delineated by DOGAMI’s Tsunami Inundation Map which is referenced in the Geologic
Hazard Assessment. The statuary elevation limit is justified by large recurrence interval (i.e. low
probability of occurrence) of Cascadian Subduction events.

In the unlikely event of a maximum Cascadian event, inundation of the site as well as areas east
of NW Spring Street is expected. However, due to the support of structures on piling
embedded in underlying bedrock, the foundations will remain stable.

= Item 9 - General Foundation Recommendations. The scope of our June 29, 2018 Geotechnical
Report was to provide general recommendations for delineating geologic hazards and site
suitability for the project, with general recommendations for stabilization and foundation
support.. K & A Engineering, Inc. will be providing specific design recommendations for pile
support after the project concept is approved and we move forward to the design phase to
prepare documents for construction and permitting.

= |tem 10 — General Recommendations. Retaining walls, cut embankments, and other earthwork
will be designed after the project concept is approved and we move forward to the design phase
to prepare documents for construction and permitting. All designs and construction
documentation will meet general criteria in our Geotechnical Report.

! George R. Priest and Jonathan C. Allan, Evaluation of Coastal Erosion Hazard Zones Along Dune and Bluf Backed
Shorelines in Lincoln County Oregon: Cascade Head to Seal Rock — Technical Report to Lincoln County. 2004

Page | 4

101



Response — Wilmoth Peer Review [
NW Spring St. Development ~ Lund Development — Newport, Oregon
September 12, 2018 - K & A Engineering, Inc. - Project No.: 17056

engineering

= Item 11 - Drainage. The scope of our June 29, 2018 Geotechnical Report did not include
detailed recommendations for designing facilities to handle storm runoff. This will be designed
by a qualified civil engineer once the project concept is approved and we move forward to the
design phase to prepare documents for construction and permitting. Drainage will meet City of
Newport requirements and standards for erosion control and runoff.

= |tem 12 - Foundation Pads. The scope of our June 29, 2018 Geotechnical Report was to
provide general recommendations for delineating geologic hazards and site suitability. Qualified
design professionals will be providing specific design recommendations for structures, grading,
and access after the project concept is approved and we move forward to the design phase to
prepare documents for construction and permitting.

= |tem 13 — Geotechnical Site Plan. The concept was amply illustrated by the inclusion of both
the Geotechnical Site Plan, Field-developed Cross Section, and Conceptual Site Plan.

= |tem 14 - Appendix C Slope Stability Analysis. Slope stability calculations are very complex,
lengthy, and difficult to interpret except for geotechnical professionals. Inclusion of printed
calculation would add hundreds of pages to the report and would not serve the purpose of the
report.

= Item 15 - Appendix D Geologic Hazard Assessment. Cited literature effectively states the high-
hazard nature of slope movement in the vicinity that includes the project site. Such studies are
not meant to be used as a tool to approve or deny development in the area. The correct use of
these studies is to guide in the formulation of the scope and nature of in-depth site-specific
geotechnical and geologic investigations for specific projects.

Page | 5

102



Response — Wilmoth Peer Review ®
NW Spring St. Development — Lund Development — Newport, Oregon

September 12, 2018 - K & A Engineering, Inc. - Project No.: 17056 ) .
engineering

CONCLUSION

Our recommendations are based on:

= Careful, systematic, site investigations utilizing proper tools and techniques,

= Study of pertinent geologic and geotechnical maps and other studies published for the area,

= Years of experience in similar geology for similar projects,

= Successful implementation of geotechnical recommendations for similar construction projects in
the north Oregon coastal environment,

= Systematic application of good engineering principles in analysis and developing
recommendations.

The Wilmoth Peer Review does not present issues that have changed our opinions or recommendations
regarding the subject project. We have recognized, in our Geotechnical Report for the subject project,
that the site does indeed present significant geologic challenges. We recommend that these conditions
can be successfully addressed by careful design and planning for the project that meets criteria in the
Geotechnical Report and in subsequent geotechnical supplemental reports.

We have also recommended supplemental geotechnical investigations of the actual home sites to
confirm subsurface conditions, prior to final design. This is necessary because the currently proposed
home site locations changed from the original concept (which were considered in the Geotechnical
Report) due to road rights-of-way issues, which were unknown at the time of the original geotechnical
investigation.

We recommend that the City of Newport allow you to move forward with the supplemental
eotechnical field work, project design, and application for permits for site development and building.

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to this peer review. Please don’t hesitate to call if you have
further questions.

Sincerely,

MW

Michael Remboldt, P.E., G.E.
K & A Engineering, Inc.

EXPIRES: DECEMBER 31,2018

Page | 6

103



EXHIBIT

E-Y4

PENGAD-Bayonna, N. J.
104

Derrick Tokos

From: Carol Reinhard <csreinhard@icloud.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 11, 2018 10:59 AM
To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: Carol Reinhard

Subject: Spring Street Public Hearing, Sept 24

Hi Derek,

Thank you for sending me notice of the public hearing for September 24. Because I live in Central Oregon, | will be

unable to attend the hearing & | am submitting to you my strong objects to the approval of Mr. Lund’s Shoreland
Resources Impact Review Application.

| believe that approval was based on geological data and conclusions from an incomplete and fauity study done by K&A
Engineering. K&A did not have enough data to arrive at their conclusions regarding the build-ability of the site.

Additionally, they should have taken a year or more (depending on annual rainfall of years in question) to monitor soils
to come to that conclusion.

The stability of an entire neighborhood depends on the diligent scrutiny of the geological data by the city council.

Please include my comments in the official record to be shared on September 24 with the Newport City Council.

Carol Reinhard
Newport tax lot 3700



September 10, 2018

Re: 1-GP-18, appeal

To Derrick Tokos, Director Community Development:

Please find attached Comment: Conceptual Site Plan (May 22. 2018) and
Request for On-Site Visit including seven packets with the comment and
copies of the full sized conceptual site plans intended for the planning
commissioners.

Thank you for your attention.

Regards, ' L)
N
Mona Linstromberg

CITY OF NEWPORT

SEP 10 2018
RECEIVED

105



106

September 10, 2018

File No. 1-GP-18, appeal
Applicant: William Lund
Location: Map 11-11-05BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903

Comment: Conceptual Site Plan (May 22, 2018) and Request for On-Site Visit

Please find attached a full sized copy of the site plan included in the K & A Engineering, Inc.

Geotechnical Engineering Re?ort and Geologic Hazard Assessment (referred to as Geotechnical

Report) dated June 29, 2018. ° There is an intrinsic interconnectedness between the Shoreland

Impact Review (1-SIR-18) and the approved geologic permit application. In the Conclusion

portion of the approval of 1-SIR-18, it states:
4. Concerns that earthwork and clearing performed by the owner will destabilize nearby
slopes or lead to excessive erosion are related to stundards for geologic permits listed in
Chapter 14.21 of the Newport Municipal Code. They have been raised in a pending
appeal of the applicant’s approved geologic permit, which is the appropriate forum to
resolve those questions. They do not relate to the approval criteria for development
within the City’s Ocean Shorelands Overlay.

Additionally, in an August 30 email from Mr. Tokos to me in response to my questions:
The shoreland review permit addresses the standards relevant to that type of permit,
which is about protecting the Jump-off Joe Outstanding Natural Area by means of a 25-
Joot vegetated buffer. The geologic permit addresses issues relevant to slope stability
and erosion. Mr. Lund must have both permits in place and final before he can proceed
with developing the home sites.

The crux of the interconnectedness is whether the geology in this geologic hazard zone and
active slide area can support the proposed development as depicted on the site plan and as
addressed in the detail of applicant’s Geotechnical Report. The peer review report (addressing
applicable criteria found in Chapter 14.21) by Columbia Geotechnical submitted by those in
opposition to the proposed development addresses the science and flaws in the report submitted
by the developer. The attached site plan provides the visual accompaniment to both reports, an
extensive and intrusive development.

The site plan is really only half of the visual equation. I request that the Planning Commission
members do an on-site visit. Since there are multiple factors impacting this particular proposal

' August 3 2018 K & D Engineering submitted an altered site plan on which was based the
approval of 1-SIR-18, Shoreland Impact Review. Mr. Tokos, in an August 9 email responding to
Elaine Karnes’ concerns, stated “(h)e modified the site plan to illustrate that they will not be
clearing vegetation within the 25-foot buffer, and provided additional narrative. These changes
are not material enough to warrant another notice prior to a decision being rendered.” | am relying
on the plans submitted in the Geotechnical Report to avoid more confusion when reviewing the
Geotechnical Report.

Comment: Site Plan and Request for On-Site Visit

1



107

(e.g. the old Jump-off Joe Road county right of way and multiple survey markers on-site), I
recommend that someone either from either the County or City familiar with the subject property
accompany the planning commission members when on-site.

The Conceptual Site Plan and an on-site visit are tools needed to more fully understand if the
subject property can support the current development proposal.

Please enter into the record with each copy and comment (hand delivered) made available to
members of the Newport Planning Commission.

Regards, f ﬂ
7~
mberg

Mona Linstro
Family home: 1442 NW Spring St, Newport, OR 97365

Mailing address: 831 E. Buck Creek Rd., Tidewater, OR 97390

Attachment:

Conceptual Site Plan
For
William Lund
Located in
A Portion of Lot 1, and Lots 2, 3,

4 & 5 of Block 37 of Ocean View
Subdivision and a Portion of Vacated NW 14" Avenue
In the
City of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon
May 22, 2018

Comment: Site Plan and Request for On-Site Visit

2



Columbia Geotechnical, PO Box 87367, Vancouver, WA 98687 / (360) 944-7397 / fax (360) 94§,

August 15, 2018

CITY OF NEWPORT
CG18-1311
Mona Lindstromberg : = 25
831 East Buck Creek Road RECEIVED
Tidewater, OR 97390 (Pa\ \ 0@:;)
Geotechnical Peer Review @ Gﬂlllml)la
Report by K & A Engineering, Inc. Geotechnical

Geotechnical Engincering Report and Geologic Hazard Asscssment
Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903

West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13" St and NW 14" St
Newport, Oregon 97365

This peer review has been completed at your request. 1 have reviewed the report that was provided,
namely the June 29, 2018, Geotechnical Engineering Report and Geologic Hazard Assessment by K & A
Engineering, Inc., including the appendices A through E. I also reviewed casily accessible reports and
government websites that provide general and site-specific data that relates to the geology, groundwater,
natural hazards, and the crosional history of the site and area. My comments arc based on the information
provided in the documents reviewed and my experience, limited in scope by the hours of our contract. [
expect that a more thorough review would present additional comments.

Background

The scope of this report is to provide a summary of my review of the report referenced above that I
understand was submitted to the City of Newport by the property owner, Bill Lund, in order to pursue the
development of the threc individual lots for new residential structures; duplexes arc planned for the two
southern lots (1900 and 1903) and a single-family house is planned for the north lot (1800).

The reason for this peer review is to provide an independent professional opinion based on the data that
was presented and referenced in the owner’s geotechnical report; although 1 did make a single site visit,
no additional soil explorations or testing were performed as a part of this review.

Discussion

To provide casy reference to the owner's geotechnical report, this discussion is organized following the
format of that report.

Section of K&A Page Comments

report number

Executive 2 In the summary of their scope, the last bullet item is “Pertinent hazard
Summary zones such as the 100-year flood zonc and elevation.” It appears in this

summary that the site was not reviewed with consideration of the
mapped Spring Street Landslide which is identified in the 2004
Orcgon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries publication
OFR 0-04-09; the site is mapped in that report as a Holocene Active
Landslide (Als). Evidence that supports the active landslide mapping
includes: the disturbed terrain within the fallen landslide blocks
indicative of recent slope movement; high contrast of lidar images that
suggest landslide blocks that have had little time to erode since they
last moved; tilted shore pine within the arca of the planned new
development; and historical distress to the two closest homes (roughly
15 {t north and 75 south of the project) on cither side of the property
caused by ground movement in the past 30 years or so. Later in the
report, there is reference to “landslide debris extending to depths as




CG18-1311
Geotechnical Peer Review K & A Geotechnical Report Columbia
West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13™ St and NW 14 St Geotechnical
Page 2
much as approximately 16-feet below the ground surface.” (Section
2.3.3, page 5)
2.2 Surface In the second to last paragraph, “there is little evidence of on-going
Conditions severe surface erosion or mass slope movement. We did not observe

indications of slopec movement in the roadway such as cracks with
differential movement.” In contrast to the report, at our brief site visit,
we did obscrve deep erosion on and just downslope of the steep slide
scarp (the steep slope immediately west of NW Spring Street) and in
areas associated with both of the significant springs still flowing in
August (roughly uphill of each of the planned new duplexcs). Old
landslide scarps and displaced material cannot effectively be judged to
be stable based on isolated site obscrvations alone, which represent
just a snapshot in time even over the course of several months. It is
common practice to set up a comprehensive monitoring system that
can provide data over the course of one or more wet seasons to base
the opinion of current slope stability. For this project, a system would
likely include at least two slope movement sensors (in-place
inclinometers or other in-ground methods that cxtend at least 20 ft
below the suspected slide interface to continuously measurc changes in
slope at several locations relative to NW Spring Strect and other
stationary points cast of NW Spring Street), numerous surface
monitoring points that are routinely surveyed, vibrating wire
piczometers to continuously measure shallow and deep groundwater
pressures, and a continuous rain gauge (if continuous local rainfall is
not available). Since landslides are most active during high rainfall
years, the goal would be to install the geotechnical instrumentation as
soon as possible and monitor over a duration that includes at least one
high-rainfall season, (which may take more than one year). Premature
conclusions on stability can only be avoided by monitoring through a
season that exceeds normal rainfall, hopefully monitoring over a
season of record rainfall. Global climate change may provide record
rainfall as soon as this year or next year.

2.327Zone 1

The report refers to the steep slope west of NE Spring St as a “steep
embankment’’; normally this word choice would not be an issue, but in
this case, only the upper two feet or so is described as potential road
fill and a better description of this steep slope is eroded “slide scarp”
from the landslide(s) that resulted in the hummocky terrain and
displaced blocks of sandstone and siltstone that currently form the
lower slope. It is not known if the recent erosion causing some nearly
vertical slopes on this scarp is associated with recent slope movement
or just surfacc erosion, but these features should be properly described.

2.4.1 Geologic
Setting

This report referenced a short, four-page, 1991 Schlicker report that
sumimarized a reconnaissance site visit to the property and described
the old landslide to have “apparently been stable for many years. The
arca west of Spring Street probably moved initially prior to the Jump
Off Joc landslide that began about 1942 and continued until recently.”

109



CG18-1311

Geotechnical Peer Review K & A Geotechnical Report Columbia
West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13" St and NW 14" St Geotechnical

Page 3

It does not statc that the “old landslide area on the site is relatively
stable’ as indicated in the K & A report. The 1991 Schlicker report
also recommends at least two borings drilled to at least 50 ft in depth
and laboratory tests to include direct shear on carcfully obtained
samples, which were not a part of the K & A analysis. References to
slopc stability and recommendations for potential development in the
other published geological reports were not provided in the K & A
report. A more recent report (i.e. 2016) on the adjacent property to the
north by Schlicker that points out recent slope movements were not
mentioned in the K& A report.

3.1.2 Slope
Movement and
Appendix C

The first half of this section provides a general summary of K & A’s
discussion on the active coastal erosion and landsliding at the site, as
well as carthquake hazards, which, although brief. does acknowledge
some of the real hazards at the site. They refer to the surveyed cross
section that “indicates the overall concave shape of the ground surface
due to the historic slope movement.” Then on page 9, the narrative on
the slope stability numerical analysis using Slide software concludes
“In the current static condition, the site is stable, with minimum FOS
(Factor of Safcty) in the range of 1.4 to 1.6...within the generally-
accepted limits for development” even though their modeled
carthquake conditions will likely result in a slope failure. Even if the
modeling is correct, it indicates failure during an earthquake, which
should not be acceptable. The calculation sheets and assumptions in
their model are not included in the report for our review, but there
does appear to be some crrors in the design model that would result in
a reduced stability from that which is shown. The K & A model
indicates the potential slide planc is along thc geologic contact
between the old landslide debris and the underlying siltstone (Nye
Formation) based on their limited explorations, but actually, the old
landslide interface is more likely dipping roughly 15° west along shear
zone(s) within the Nye Formation mudstone layers; the past
landsliding has been described as translational sliding on weak layers
within the marine mudstone layers, which dip 15° to the west. Also,
the ground water clevation shown on the model does not represent the
surface water that flows across the middle section of the site as springs
even during our mid-August site visit. We expect there are cven more
springs during the wetter half of the yecar when landslides arc gencrally
more active. Lastly, although soil samples were taken and tested for
moisture, no N-values or other soil propertics were tested that could be
used to better refine the material properties (unit weight, cohesion,
phi) that determine the soil strengths in the model. We expect that a
model that better represents the actual site conditions would have a
lower static and dynamic FOS.

3.1.3 Beach
Regression

Although the K & A report cites a 0.3 to 0.4 feet per year general
beach regression (DOGAMI source that was not referenced), the long-
term (past 100 years) sea cliff retreat between the ocean and Spring

110



CG18-1311

Geotechnical Peer Review K & A Geotechnical Report
West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13" St and NW 14" St

Page 4

Columbia
Geotechnical

Street and between NW 12 St and NW 14" St is closer to several fect
a year, with a 100-year average up to five feet per year (Figure 9.2,
The Pacific Northwest Coast, by Paul Komar).

3.1.6 Liquetaction

Although the K & A report “found no evidence of loose, saturated
clean sands in the arca investigated”, the boring logs found SAND
down to 6 ft close to onc of the groundwater seeps and the dynamic
probe identified sands down to 16 ft. It appears that the landslide
debris has sufficient sand content and adequate high ground water to
further investigate the potential for liquefaction.

3.1.7 Tsunami

10

The K & A report states that “the majority of the project site is situated
above the statutory tsunami inundation line (at 30 fi clevation), but the
current mapping by the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral
Industries has the entire property including NW Spring Strect entirely
within the area of influcnce of a local Cascadia Earthquake and
Tsunami. Regardless of the current City or County codes, which we
did not rescarch, the current understanding of the hazards derived from
the updated science should be considered for any new construction.

3.3.1 General
Foundation
Recommendations

11

The K & A report rccommends deep foundation elements within the
underlying siltstone for the planned structures. In addition to axial
support of all futurc loads, the deep foundation elements (piles) should
also be designed to withstand all lateral loads anticipated from
landsliding (depths and displacements determined from long-term, in-
ground monitoring system). Sufficient pile cmbedments into stable
siltstone should be determined from the in-ground monitoring and
appropriate pile design.

3.4.1 General
Recommendations

14

The K & A report recommends site development with “the minimum
amount of carthwork necessary for access and foundation
construction.” In addition to limiting grading to that which is
absolutely necessary, it appears that any unbalanced cuts and/or fills
have the potential to initiate futurce slope instability (both houscs on
cither side of this planned development have experienced uncxpected
ground movement). All cuts that will require retaining walls, gabions,
stone armoring, or fills (including MSE fill) of any height should be
designed to transfer all surface loads to the underlying siltstone with
similar pile embedments and surface grade beams as the deep
foundations for the planned structures. No new surface loads should be
allowed. All existing fill that was placed on the property should be
removed {rom the site.

3.4.1 Drainage

15

Although the K & A report describes some sort of sheet flow design
for storm runoff, it is our cxperience that otherwise stable slopes often
fail when subjected to concentrated surface flow, including sheet flow
from dissipater systems; roof and driveway runoff should be plumbed
to an cxisting stormwater system and not allowed to “sheet-flow”
anywhcre on the sensitive property.

3.4.3 Foundation
Pads

It appears from the elevations provided that the planned single-family
residence on tax lot 1800 will require a suspended slab to access the

111



CG18-1311

Geotechnical Peer Review K & A Geotechnical Report
West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13™ St and NW 14" St

Page 5

Columbia
Geotechnical

house (garage) from the driveway at the planned elevation because the
lower floor clevation is six feet higher than the existing adjacent grade.
This detail should be better described. If fill was planned, additional
piles and grade beam system should be planned.

Geotechnical Site
Plan

The site plan should also have the planned structures and driveway
access shown so that the actual locations can be reviewed.

Field Developed
Cross Section

Relative to the edge of pavement, the horizontal locations for the
borings do not agree with the previous Geotechnical Site Plan. Also,
the groundwater clevation shown does not take into account the
springs that emanatc on the surface close to boring B-1 and west of
FC-2. The geologic units should be estimated, including the contact
between the disturbed and undisturbed siltstone. The 15° dip of the
underlying undisturbed siltstone and the estimated slide planc of the
past landsliding should be illustrated.

Conceptual Site
Plan

The topographic map is not adequate and representative of the actual
topography at the site. Elevation contours at least every two feet and
proposcd grading should be clearly shown on a more legible scale.

Appendix C All calculation sheets and assumptions in the final slope stability
Slope Stability models should be provided in the appendix.

Analysis

Appendix D Most of the details and literature research provided and the site
Geologic Hazard observations in the Geologic Hazard Assessment suggests the slope is
Assessment not stable. The report does not provide adequate support of a stable

slope. Referencing a 1991 report when there are more recent and more
thorough reports available does not provide enough basis to claim the
slope is stable. In section 11.0 Recommendations, “continued
translational movement of the landslide is relatively unlikely” is a
highly debatable statement: what data is this statement based on?

Summary of Professional Opinion

As a practicing geologist and civil engineer, I feel I must also add my professional opinion on coastal
management policy that is intended to protect the coastal environment and private investments. Unless the
ground can be proven to be stable and not at risk of causing or being affected by rencwed landsliding
and/or episodic coastal erosion, with current, accurate, and defendable data (sce second comment above
regarding a sample scope of a typical geotechnical instrumentation programy), arcas of old landslides that
are highly suspected of historic movement and areas with historic occan erosion as severe as at this site
should be avoided for future development.

112



CG18-1311
Geotechnical Pecr Review K & A Geotechnical Report
West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13" St and NW 14 St

Page 6

Please feel frce to contact me for any questions you may have regarding this report.

report revisions will require additional review.,

Sincerely,

Columbia Geotechnical, Inc.

o ;\\;D PROf
AT G BINER &%\
%) A
1 (& epozope \E

RUTH A WILMOTH

| Lot
Jm_ Mb;wa_Ji —(A ar&br::’or\:
T E1436 5 \«_ ‘> ’/- 7
\ /‘\\\’f{j’f:" g ’/'y
iy 'f*\f\ﬁ}i‘)
('?0}“—14,2:-
€[50/ 30

vaﬂ
(3]

By

Ruth A. Wilmoth, C.E.G., P.E.

Columbia
Geotechnical

[ expect subsequent

113



114

CG18-1311

Geotechnical Peer Review K & A Geotechnical Report Columbia
West of NW Spring St roughly between NW 13" St and NW 14 St Geotechnical
Page 7

INFORMATION ABOUT AND LIMITATIONS
OF YOUR GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

The professional services provided are tailored to the needs of each client as we understand
them, with the goal to contribute to the understanding and mitigation of the geotechnical aspects of
the project and to maintain a long-term professional relationship based on communication, trust, and
respect. The basis of our report includes site conditions revealed from the explorations, existing
literature realized during our review, and the synthesis of the data during our analysis and report .
preparation. Our work is performed in accordance with generally accepted engincering principles cﬂlllmllla
and practices in this arca at the time the report is prepared, but also limited by the scope approved by  Geotechnical
the owner. Geotechnical engineering (including geology and groundwater) is based extensively on judgment of
limited data and opinion, and as a result, it is less exact than other design disciplines. Our work involves making a
realistic estimate of the expected ground conditions before, during, and after construction, We make no warranty of
present or future conditions, either expressed or implied and we are not responsible for any deviation from the intent
of the report.

The report was written for the current owner(s), his/her contractor and designer, and for the development
indicated as we understand it. However, the report may not be adequate for all needs of the project’s contractors or
design professionals. We recommend the entire geotechnical report is provided to others so that portions of the
report are not taken out of context. We would be pleased to provide additional input during the design process, to
explain the relevant geotechnical, geological, and hydrogeological findings. to review plans and specifications
relative to these issues prior to construction, and to provide on-site observation and testing during construction.

Since the observational method forms the basis of geotechnical services, liability and other problems can result
when another firm is retained to provide construction or remediation obscrvation. In addition, sharing the best
available information between the owners, designers, and contractors helps prevent many costly construction
problems. If there is a change in ownership or scope of construction than what is described in the report, if site
conditions change, or if there is a lapse of time greater than three years between the date of the report and the start of
construction, the report should be reviewed and updated or replaced with a revised geotechnical report.

The report was prepared within the limitations of the scope and budget approved. The judgment and
recommendations pertain to the material tested/inspected only and arc not intended to be nor should they be
construed to represent a warranty of the subsurface conditions, but are forwarded to assist in the design and planning
process. Actual soil and water conditions are documented at locations, depths, and times noted; the exploration logs
illustratc our opinion of the subsurface conditions revealed by observation and sampling. Sample intervals may miss
changes in geology or groundwater and the soil descriptions and interfaces between layers are interpretive and often
gradual. Geotechnical sampling also generally produces large arcas between explorations that may vary, though we
use judgment to make assumptions regarding the overall subsurface soil and groundwater conditions. Unanticipated
conditions are commonly encountered in construction and cannot be fully determined from soil explorations. If a
more refined analysis is desired to confirn or refine some of our assumptions, we recommend additional
explorations, soil sampling, and soil testing. If any conditions are discovercd by the owner or contractor before or
during construction that differ from thosc described in the report, we ask to be contacted for review of implications
to our recommendations, with revised recommendations provided if necessary. Actual subsurface conditions may be
determined only during the earthwork/foundation phase of construction, at which time geotechnical
recommendations can also be refined, if necessary. When conditions are more favorable than initially assumed, we
can provide design or construction changes that save money.

Steep or unstable slopes carry additional inherent risk that belongs to the owners; property owners are
responsible for taking the risks associated with future development on their property. Based on his/her experience,
the contractors should detcrmine the best method for specific earthwork components; the safety of the site is the
responsibility of the contractor.




EXHIBIT

E-7

115

=
o
§
g
=

Derrick Tokos

Cy —

From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 29, 2018 3:11 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Spring St 1-MP-18 appeal, Komar

Attachments: Spring St Komar chapt 9 The Jump off Joe Fiasco.pdf

See attached, submitted with permission of the author (August 27, 2018): Paul D. Komar, Professor Emeritus
of Oceanography at Oregon State University, Geology and Geophysics.

The Pacific Northwest Coast, Living with the Shores of Oregon and Washington.

1998, Third printing 2000. Duke University Press, Durham, NC.

The Living with the Shore series is funded by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

The peer review report (see pages 3/4 under Beach Regression) by Columbia Geotechnical, Inc. (submitted
8/29/2018) includes a citation from the attached. The entire chapter, The Jump-off Joe Fiasco, is a cautionary
tale with dire consequences, particularly applicable to the current proposal.

Please enter into the record and please acknowledge receipt.

Regards,

Mona Linstromberg

Family home - 1442 NW Spring St., Newport, OR 97365

Mailing address - 831 E. Buck Creek Rd., Tidewater, OR 97390



9 The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco

The rocky promontory called Jump-Off Joe was once one of the most pic-
turesque spots on the Oregon coast (fig. 9.1). Legend has it that Joe, an In-
dian, jumped to his death while being pursued for a crime he had not com-
mitted. His lover, Mishi, who also jumped but survived, put a curse on the
bluff. In view of subsequent events at Jump-Off Joe, the curse seems to have
had its intended effect.

In 1942, a large landslide in the bluff at Jump-Off Joe carried more than a
dozen homes to their destruction (Sayre and Komar 1988). In spite of con-
tinued slumping, a condominium was built on the remaining bluff in 1982.
A certified geologist had determined that the site was stable even though it
was adjacent to the 1942 landslide and in the area with the highest rate of
erosion on the entire Oregon coast, and the Newport city government gave
its approval to the project. Within three years, before the construction was
even completed, slope retreat caused the foundation to fail, and the city or-
dered the destruction of the unfinished structure. The developers, the con-
tractor, a lumber company, and the insurance company that had insured
the project against slippage went bankrupt. Creditors with claims of $1 mil-
lion were paid between 18 cents and 1 cent on the dollar. The consulting ge-
ologist lost his certification.

The debate over Jump-Off Joe was the most divisive land-use battle ever
fought on the Oregon coast, and people still have strong feelings about the
project. It was a classic confrontation between developers who thought
their project would help a city grow and environmentalists who wanted to
preserve the coastline. In the end, the issue was decided by Nature.

History of Erosion at Jump-Off Joe

Newport was founded in the 1860s by settlers who were attracted by the
natural resources of the area, particularly the timber and abundant oysters.

Ly (GO 0g le

116



LRARLR 5 TART RUGHRD 9\
N\ HATAE R GHXS OF \.s*\c

m TARRK.RNAT HPOT WWERE mcn 9\\1 V\.vxtb ~o r.mnwe_':. wx\', TOWMD
THae ‘su\\u'.;, A0 BURTE AND ARLNAE i FLgei, BOT \\Y.\ﬂ& BGRAY WAS
WESLEY  Rnoalhd

Figure 9.1 The picturesque Jump-Off Joe sea arch inspired early tourists to
pen lines of descriptive poetry. From the Oregon Historical Society, Portland.

The beauty of the coast also attracted tourists, who began to arrive in sig-
nificant numbers in the 1890s.

One of the major tourist attractions in the Newport area was Jump-Off
Joe, a rocky promontory just north of Nye Beach (figs. 9.1 and 9.2).
Through the years Jump-Off Joe has been a much-photographed spot, and
its rapid erosion is thus well documented (fig. 9.3). The earliest photo-
graphs, taken in the late 1800s, show the promontory still connected to the
coast. Later photos show its separation and development into an arch. The
arch eventually collapsed, and the resulting stacks continued to erode, so
that today only small nubs remain, visible at low tide. After the loss of the
original promontory, the name Jump-Off Joe was adopted for the area in
general and has been used to refer to the landslide that developed in the
1940s as well as to the small remnant of terrace left behind as a promontory.

Development of the Jump-Off Joe area began in the early 1900s (Price
1975). Some landsliding endangered structures as early as 1921 (Baldwin
1985), but most of the damage occurred when a large slump developed over
a period of months from late 1942 to spring 1943 (figs. 9.4 and 9.5). The
slump is located between Sixth and Eleventh Streets, and the escarpment is
west of and parallel to Coast Street (fig. 9.2). The 1942—43 slump involved
about 15 acres and affected 15 houses. A few homes rode the slump block
down intact and were occupied until 1966 (see figure 9.5). Eventually they
were in danger of being undermined by wave erosion of the toe of the slide
and were intentionally burned.

The Yaquina Bay News of March 11, 1943, made an interesting suggestion
regarding the cause of the slump and earlier activity: “There was a forma-

162

Oigrized by G o0 IQ
b

117



tion of soapstone underneath and when the earth became saturated with
water it would form a stream causing a crevice and pushing the ground up.”
The state geologist investigated the site a few weeks later and provided the
earliest scientific account of the slump (Lowry and Allen 1945). The Jump-
Off Joe bluff is a remnant of a marine terrace. Tertiary marine mudstones
contained within the bluff are layered and dip steeply toward the sea (see fig.
8.10); most of the slumping takes place on shear zones within these mud-
stones.

The bluff retreat at Jump-Off Joe over the past century is documented in
coastal charts and aerial photographs (Stembridge 1975¢). Figure 9.2 shows
the location of the cliff edge in 1868, 1939, and 1967. This diagram also shows
that major slumping took place more than a century ago just north of the
1942—43 slump. The two slumps left a small segment of uneroded bluff be-
tween them, and it was this segment that became the site of condominium
construction in 1982. Figure 9.2 indicates that the long-term sea cliff retreat

Figure 9.2 CIliff retreat at Nye Beach, Newport, from 1868 to 1976. Cliff edge lines
were determined from old charts and aerial photographs (Stembridge 1975¢). The
black squares represent homes affected by the 1942—43 landslide.

Jumpoff Joe
Nye Beach

Cliff Retreat
L 1868 - 1967
__ (Stembridge, 1976)

‘_ o} 500 f1.

o 100 200m
[T S

1982
Condominium

1942-43
Landslide

R

Yaquina

PACIFIC OCEAN

Nye Beach
Turnaround

The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco 163

Digiized by GO Og {ﬁf

118



Figure 9.3 Photographs of Jump-Off Joe taken by tourists in 1880 (top), c. 1915
(middle), and 1978 (bottom). From the Lincoln County Historical Society, Newport.

164

zcdl by Googie

119



was spatially variable but averaged several feet per year, a rate that is by far
the highest on the Oregon coast.

An inventory of geological hazards along the Lincoln County coastline
completed in 1975 gives an erosion rate of 7 feet per year for Jump-Off Joe
and correctly concludes that such active landslides should remain undevel-
oped. This conclusion is ironic in view of the fact that the chief author of

this report was to become the principal consulting geologist for the devel-
opers of Jump-Off Joe.

Figure 9.4 Photos taken on February 3, 1943, show some of the damage caused by

the 1942-43 landslide at Jump-Off Joe. From the Lincoln County Historical Society,
Newport, Oregon.

The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco 165

Digltized by Google

120



Figure 9.5 Aerial view of the 1942—43 landslide area in 1961. Some of the houses on
the slump block were occupied until 1965. From the Lincoln County Historical Soci-
ety, Newport, Oregon.

The Development of jump-Off Joe

The story of condominium development at Jump-Off Joe begins in 1964
when the developers, Mr. and Mrs. Anderson of Newport, acquired the
down-dropped block involved in the 1942—43 landslide and the adjacent
uneroded bluff at the end of Eleventh Street (fig. 9.2; Sayre and Komar
1988). The city gave the Andersons these parcels in exchange for land to the
north of the bluff.

The earliest geological investigation carried out for the developers, con-
ducted by the well-known engineering firm of Shannon and Wilson, indi-
cated that the down-dropped slump block was still active, as evidenced by
fissures, its irregular hummocky topography, and back-tilted trees (see fig.
8.12). The investigators noted that wave erosion at the toe of the block was
causing constant movement into the intertidal zone.

In spite of this reported slump activity and known high rates of erosion
on the Jump-Off Joe bluff, the Andersons decided to go ahead with their
plans for development. Grading and removal of vegetation on the down-
dropped block began in December 1980 (fig. 9.6). Opposition to the project
appeared along with the bulldozers. By mid-February 1981, the developers’
attorney and geologist were meeting with neighboring homeowners to as-
sure them of the appropriateness and benefits of the project.

Shannon and Wilson prepared a geotechnical report of the site for the
developers that acknowledged the geological hazards at the site but pro-
posed three measures to stabilize it:

166

Digitized by GOOSIQ

121



1. A drain field to control groundwater seepage

2. Reduction of the steep slope paralleling Coast Street to a 1:2 slope using a
combination of cut and fill

3. Construction of a seawall at the toe of the 1942—43 slump

On the basis of this report, a plan for the construction of 39 single-family
homes was submitted to the Newport Planning Commission in early March
1981. Several opponents of the project also made presentations to the Plan-
ning Commission, arguing that the project endangered nearby private
property, questioning the plans for reducing the landslide hazard, and stat-
ing that development should not be considered so close to the beach. In ad-
dition, a representative of the Oregon Land Conservation and Develop-
ment Commission (Lcpc) indicated that statewide land-use planning goals
were not being satisfied. Oregon requires that all cities and counties have
comprehensive land-use plans and that all plans conform to goals set by the
Lcoc (see chapter 10).

The Newport Planning Commission found the project attractive because
it proposed new homes for a part of the city characterized by smaller, older
homes, but postponed a decision on the subdivision. The next meeting of
the Planning Commission was held in mid-April and focused on geological
and geotechnical testimony from experts on both sides of the issue. The op-
ponents were now represented by the Friends of Lincoln County (rLc), a
group formed in the 1970s to oppose the development of wetlands in the
Newport area. The rLc brought several letters from geologists and oceanog-

Figure 9.6 Grading on the 1942—43 Jump-Off Joe slump block in December 1980 in
preparation for its development. From the Lincoln County Historical Society, New-
port.

The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco 167

Digitized by Cl 0()8 [C

—_—

122



raphers that raised questions about the proposed hazards mitigation. An
engineering geologist from Oregon State University questioned whether the
developers’ consultants had located the toe of the 1942-43 slump. If the fail-
ure zone was deeper than suspected and the toe was actually seaward of the
proposed seawall, construction of the wall would further destabilize the
slump block rather than providing support. Once again the Planning Com-
mission postponed its decision.

The developers finally convinced the Planning Commission at a meeting
in late April, and the project was given tentative approval as long as certain
conditions were met. These included the completion of a detailed geotech-
nical study, an independent review of the developers’ plans for stabilizing
the block, and the establishment of beach access. In response, the rLc hired
legal counsel and a professional geologist and asked the Newport City
Council to review the Planning Commission’s decision, alleging that the
project violated state land-use goals. The pLC’s attorney charged that the
city government was unresponsive to the involvement of citizen groups in
its decision-making procedures. A prodevelopment member of the Plan-
ning Commission and City Council characterized the FLc as combative and
unwilling to compromise (Sayre and Komar 1988). The developers’ attorney
felt that too many conditions were placed on the developers at this stage of
their plans and that the City Council took too long in ratifying the Planning
Commission’s decision. The City Council was trying to balance the oppos-
ing points of view and did not see any need for urgency. It did not complete
its review until January 1982, more than six months later.

In the meantime, in May 1981, the Andersons advertised the property for
sale. They were unable to find a buyer and continued with their develop-
ment plans.

The detailed geotechnical study of the site requested of the developers by
the Planning Commission was completed by Shannon and Wilson in July
1981 (Sayre and Komar 1988). Deeper drilling did reveal an older failure
zone which had been active when the slump was much larger than present.
At the city’s request, the engineering firm CH M-Hill reviewed the report.
Their resulting assessment noted that adding fill to reduce the slope along
Coast Street would place a large load on the slump block, reducing its sta-
bility as well as occupying space originally planned for development. Cut-
ting this slope would also require the purchase of private property and
would expose a larger area to surface water erosion. They recommended
that the developers take additional measures to stabilize the scarp.

The engineering report also placed the rate of erosion in the Jump-Off
Joe area at several feet per year and expressed concern that the site and its
seawall might become a peninsula over time, requiring the construction of
wing walls. The designed seawall was not tall enough to stop overtopping by
ocean waves, which would saturate the backfill and increase the weight the

168

Digitized by GOOg[€

123



seawall was required to hold. Overtopping could also wash away some of
the backfill. In addition, the report concluded that the footings were not
deep enough to protect the structure from wave scour.

In early 1982, the developers applied to the Oregon Division of State
Lands (pst) for a permit to build a seawall, because Oregon’s removal-fill
law applied to the excavation and backfilling operations that would be in-
volved in the construction. The pst denied the application, stating that the
seawall would produce only an illusion of safety in an area of known geo-
logical hazards, and that there would be no public benefit from its con-
struction. The developers filed an appeal but later withdrew it.

In mid-January 1982, the City Council agreed with the Planning Com-
mission’s decision to allow the slump block to be resubdivided and devel-
oped, but then announced a few days later that it would reconsider its deci-
sion at a February 1 meeting. Most likely the council was going to postpone
the decision once again because a cul-de-sac in the plan required a variance
that had not been applied for. However, before the council could take that
action, the Andersons suddenly withdrew their plans for development on
the landslide itself and announced new plans to build 10 condominiums on
the small remnant of bluff adjacent to the landslide. Their application for a
building permit for that construction was granted a few days later.

A report written by the Andersons’ consulting geologist was the first
study prepared for the developers that focused on this small section of
uneroded bluff. It was completed in the fall of 1981 while preliminary work
was still under way on the down-dropped block. The report acknowledged
the close proximity of massive landslides to the immediate north and south
but concluded that the rate of cliff retreat was only 1 foot per year or less at
the bluff itself, based on a comparison of aerial photographs taken in 1939
and 1972. The geologist did not explain the disagreement between this esti-
mate and the 7-foot-per-year erosion rate given in the report he prepared
for Lincoln County in 1975 (Rohleder et al. 1975), a rate that was confirmed
by the 1981 CH M-Hill study. Based on his new lower rate of estimated ero-
sion, the geologist established a setback line that would keep structures on
the bluff safe from cliff retreat for 20 years. This setback line was followed in
the later construction.

The 1981 report by the developers’ geologist appears to have been critical
in the City Council’s decision to approve construction on the bluff (Sayre
and Komar 1988). City Planner Jan Monroe said that “if (the geologist)
hadn’t issued that report, they would never have given the project a build-
ing permit. If a person meets all the requirements and goes through the
steps, they are issued a (building) permit. We have no discretionary author-
ity to deny a permit based on gut feeling or knowing it’s not good sense”
(Oregonian, July 21, 1985, E10).

Shannon and Wilson reviewed the hazards report prepared by the geolo-

The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco 169

Digitizod by Google

124



gist for the developers and suggested that a drainage system be installed. A
6-inch pipe was placed beneath the condominium to control groundwater
saturation. It would later burst and accelerate erosion on the site.

The opponents of the development were unable to stop the construction
of the condominium on the remnant of uneroded bluff. Building began in
earnest in March 1982 (fig. 9.7), and by the end of the year all but the inte-
rior was completed. The precarious position of the building, on a rapidly
eroding bluff with landslides on both sides (fig. 9.8), should have been
ample warning to potential buyers. Opponents of the development who
lived near the construction site placed signs in their front yards as an addi-
tional warning of the landslide hazard (fig. 9.9).

Each unit was to sell for $250,000, but sales were slow. The early 1980s
was a time of high interest rates and a depressed real estate market. Con-
struction was halted in December 1982 before the interior was completed.
The developers had been unable to obtain a construction loan and ran out
of money. Most of the subcontractors had placed liens on the condo-
minium. An appraisal placed the value of the unfinished project at $1 mil-
lion (Sayre and Komar 1988).

As early as September 1981, the Andersons had stopped making payments
on a loan for the subdivision project, although this was not known publicly
until near the end of 1982. Accumulated interest during the delay and de-
mands by their lending institution ultimately led in late 1982 to foreclosure
and auction of the down-dropped landslide block. The land was sold to the

Figure 9.7 Condominiums under construction in 1981 on the ter-
race remnant at Jump-Off Joe. From the Newport News-Times.

Digitized by GOOS!@

125



Figure 9.8 This site on a rapidly eroding bluff with landslides on both sides was ex-
tremely precarious for development. The southwestern portion of the structure
(lower right) is already beginning to tilt.

bank for more than $850,000. Within a year, this bank found itself in
trouble because of poor loan practices and was forced to merge with an-
other bank.

The Andersons filed for bankruptcy in May 1983. Just prior to that, they
purchased insurance against slippage of the condominiums. The insurance
premiums were paid by a committee of the 19 secured creditors who held
liens on the construction; among this group was the city of Newport (Sayre
and Komar 1988).

By September 1984, sloughing of the bluff had undermined the perimeter
fence around the condominium. The drainage pipe burst, probably due to

Figure 9.9 The
Friends of Lin-
coln County
erected lawn signs
in the Jump-Off
Joe area to dis-
courage buyers.
From the Newport
News-Times.

The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco 171

Digitized by GOOg[Q

126



Figure 9.10 The
foundation of this
condominium failed
during renewed
slumping in 1985. The
stress placed on the
building by the ground
movement and loss of
support caused the
windows to shatter.

Figure 9.11 The final demolition of the condominiums in October 1985 brought to
an end the contention over developing the Jump-Off Joe landslide site. From the
Newport News-Times.

172

Dugitized by GOOSI@

127



slippage, exacerbating the problem. A larger slump developed on the rem-
nant bluff, causing the foundation to fail (fig. 9.10). Slump movement was
not directly seaward, but had a southerly component, suggesting that re-
grading of the 1942—43 slump surface during development may have been a
contributing factor. In January 198s, the city ordered the demolition of the
condominiums, and they were torn down later that year (fig. 9.11). The sal-
vager paid the city $4,000.

The developers filed a $375,000 claim with the insurance company, but
the claim was not settled for more than a year because the insurance com-
pany had also filed for bankruptcy. By the time the company was ready to
investigate the claim, the condominium had been destroyed by the city. In
the end, the insurance company paid out $225,000. After administrative ex-
penses, legal fees, and other costs were subtracted, there was only $131,000
left to meet the secured creditors’ claims, which totaled $720,000 (Sayre and
Komar 1988). The largest settlements went to the contractor and the lumber
company, both of which were also bankrupt. The 43 unsecured creditors,
including the developers’ attorney and their consulting geologist, requested
a total of $283,000 but received only $3,544.

The Oregon State Board of Geologist Examiners filed a complaint against
the developers’ geologist over this and five other projects (Sayre and Komar
1989). The board decided to revoke his certification, citing in a news re-
lease his “incompetence and gross negligence.” The Newport City Council
adopted a new subdivision ordinance and a new comprehensive plan.
Friends of Lincoln County was involved in the proceedings and contended
that no development should be allowed at Jump-Off Joe. Nevertheless, the
area remains zoned for high-density multifamily dwellings, although now
with a geological hazards overlay that allows the city to request additional
information and more exploration. The ownership of the bluff is still in
question, but the down-dropped block is owned by a Los Angeles devel-
oper. The city hopes eventually to acquire the land.

The Jump-Off Joe Fiasco 173

Digitized by Google

128



Derrick Tokos

1]

= EXHIBIT

==

129

=
From: Derrick Tokos
Sent: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 9:35 AM
To: 'Mona Linstromberg'
Cc Sean Malone
Subject: RE: Notice issues - 1-SIR-18 and 1-GP-18 - #1

I'will include this email in the record. You are correct that the mail notice we issued didn’t pick up the six properties
listed. Of those six, three received the notice via email because they were on the city’s distribution list of interested
parties. The remaining three will receive notice of the appeal hearing for the Geologic Permit (along with everyone else)
once that hearing date is set. With regards to the Shoreland Review... we will reach out to those owners to see if they
would like to provide comment.

Derrick

From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym@peak.org]
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:07 PM

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Cc: Sean Malone <seanmalone8@hotmail.com>
Subject: Fw: Notice issues - 1-SIR-18 and 1-GP-18 - #1

I do apologize in that my notes on the files for 1-SIR-18 and 1-GP-18 made sense to me yesterday. This is the
first of multiple emails. Maybe they will be easier to track.

First is my observation that K and D Engineering and Mr. Lund submitted comment after the July 31
deadline. This information should be most appropriately considered in an appeal of your decision.

Also, | didn't see the following email include in the record of either 1-SIR-18 or 1-GP-18. If not included in
both, please do so. A procedural error is a procedural error.

Thank you,

Mona Linstromberg
Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Derrick Tokos

Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 1:51 PM

To: 'Mona Linstromberg'

Cc: Sean Malone ; Oregon Shores/CoastWatch Phillip Johnson
Subject: RE: Notice issues - 1-SIR-18 and 1-GP-18

Hi Mona,

I will follow-up with Sherri who prepared the notice to see how she calculated the notification area. The individual you
listed, Chris Schneller, provided comment on both applications. She is on the email distribution list of interested
stakeholders that | used to distribute copies of the decision involving the geologic permit (File No. 1-GP-18) and the
notice and opportunity to comment on the Shoreland Review (File 1-SIR-18). If there are any property owners that did
not receive notice by mail or email, then we will reach out to them so that they are aware of the land use applications.

1



130

Thank you for bringing this to my attention. At this time, we do not intend to re-notice either of the permits.

Derrvick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym@peak.org]
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 1:12 PM
To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>

Cc: Sean Malone <seanmalone8@hotmail.com>; Oregon Shores/CoastWatch Phillip Johnson <orshores@teleport.com>
Subject: Notice issues - 1-SIR-18 and 1-GP-18

Derrick, when you sent me the 18 page 1-SIR-18 land use application, | shared it with Elaine Karnes. Shortly
thereafter, Elaine commented how odd it was that Chris Schneller wasn't on the notice list. Today when we
were trying to determine (to err on the side of caution) the names of those within 200', it was determined

using the County website that not only was Chris left off the formal notice for people within 200 ft. but also

five other properties were not noticed (see following list). It appears the City only used tax lot 1800 as the lot
determining those within 200’

Notice for the 1-DG-18 appeal was sent to those of us who were on the City's email list. We have not seen the
formal notice list for those within the 200' required to be noticed. | can only guess that the same notice list
was mailed as was mailed re 1-SIR-18.

Twenty percent seems a significant number not noticed. | request that both the 1-DP-18 appeal (if, indeed,
the list was the same) and comment period for 1-SIR-18 be re-noticed.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Mona Linstromberg

11-11-05-BC-02400-00
1310 NW Spring St.
Bauman, Mary E.

PO Box 1355

Newport, OR 97365

11-11-05-BC-03600-00
1242 NW Spring St.
Deliseo, Patricia A.
1242 NW Spring St.
Newport, OR 97365



11-11-05-BC-03701-00

. 1245 NW Spring St.

Weatherill, James G. & Weatherill, Lana R.
25804 NE Olson Rd.
Battle Ground, WA 98604

11-11-05-BC-03700-00
1235 NW Spring St.
Reinhard, Carol S. Trustee
21680 Butte Ranch Rd.
Bend, OR 97702

11-11-05-BC-03500-00

1234 NW Spring St.

Waffenschmidt, John L. & Schneller, Christine C.
1234 NW Spring St.

Newport, OR 97365

11-11-05-BC-03800-00
1225 NW Spring St.
Spectrum Properties LLC
301 S. Redwood St.
Canby, OR 97013

Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

@ Virus-free. www.avg.com

131



-

= EXHIBIT &

: ™
E-9 3
Derrick Tokos
From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:42 PM
To: Derrick Tokos
Cc Sean Malone; Oregon Shores/CoastWatch Phillip Johnson
Subject: Fw: Spring St. Oregon Shores - #7
Attachments: Lund Shoreland Impact Review Comment 7.30.2018.pdf

Derrick, please see the attached submitted into the record 1-SIR-18. Please enter into the record 1-GP-18.
Thank you,

Mona Linstromberg
Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection



OREGON SHORES
CONSERVATION COALITION

July 30,2018

Derrick Tokos
Community Development Director

Newport Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Hwy
Newport, Oregon 97365

Via Email to: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov

Re: File No. 1-SIR-18, Lund Shoreland Resources Impact Review Application
Comments of Oregon Shores Conservation Coalition

Dear Mr. Tokos:

Please accept these comments from the Oregon Shores Conservation Coalition (*Oregon
Shores”) to be included in the record for File No. 1-SIR-18. Oregon Shores is a non-profit
organization dedicated to preserving the natural communities, ecosystems and landscapes of the

Oregon coast while conserving the public’s access. Please notify me of any decisions related to
the permit.

The applicant, William Lund, seeks approval for development of three homesites adjacent to
the Jump Off Joe Park and outstanding natural area boundary. Pursuant to NMC Section
14.38.050(B), development adjacent to a park or outstanding natural area must be located no
closer than 25 feet from the boundary. Within the setback area, the development shall maintain
natural vegetation whenever possible. If natural vegetation cannot be maintained, it shall be
replaced within one year and a bond may be required to cover the cost of re-vegetation.

It appears that Mr. Lund’s proposed development would remove vegetation within the 25-
foot setback. The Planning Department should carefully evaluate the rationale for why natural
vegetation will not be maintained and ensure compliance with re-vegetation requirements.

133



Oregon Shores Conservation Coalition
Public Comment for Lund Application 1-SIR-2018

The preservation of natural vegetation is particularly important given the topography and
location of the subject property. According to the geologic report prepared for this property, the
site contains “[IJoose, poorly-graded sandy soils on the ground surface which, if left un-
vegetated, could result in a severe surface erosion hazard.” (K&A Engineering Report, June 29,
2018, at 3). The site is within the area of high coastal erosion hazard and existing land sliding
identified by DOGAMI. (Open-file report O-04-09).

Given the increases in storm surge and wave height we are already experiencing on the
Oregon Coast, and given what we know of further predicted changes on the coast resulting from
long-term climate change and cyclical climatic events such as El Nifio, coastal erosion of
shorefront properties is likely to increase. Preservation of natural features such as parks and
outstanding natural resource areas is not only mandated by Newport’s Comprehensive Plan, but
also serves to protect our public beaches in the face of a changing climate. Oregon Shores
believes a broader policy change is needed to adequately address these issues in light of our
improved understanding of the dynamic forces on Oregon’s coast and the ways these landscapes
are responding to climate change. Meanwhile, addressing the present case under the existing
policy, that policy should be applied strictly to achieve the maximum benefit in terms of
protecting shoreline natural areas.

Sincerely,

N

PR,

Phillip Johnson

Executive Director

Oregon Shores Conservation Coalition
P.O. Box 33

Seal Rock, OR 97376

(503) 754-9303
phillip@oregonshores.org

134



EXHIBIT
-10

135

Derrick Tokos

From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>

Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:36 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: Sean Malone; Matt & Lisa

Subject: Fw: Shoreline Impact Permit testimony for Lund Development Proposal - #6

Attachments: Newport City Letter July 21.docx

Derrick, please see the attached submitted into the record 1-SIR-18. Please enter into the record 1-GP-18.

S

Thank you,

Mona Linstromberg
Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Matt and Lisa Thomas

Sent: Saturday, July 21, 2018 4:40 PM

To: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov

Cc: Elaine Karnes ; Mona Linstromberg

Subject: Shoreline Impact Permit testimony for Lund Development Proposal

Hello Derrick,

Please find attached my comments relating to the potential impact of the Lund proposal to the adjacent
Outstanding Natural Area.

Thank you,

Lisa Thomas
1437 Thompson St.

¥ Virus-free. www.avg.com



136

July 21, 2018

Derrick Tokos
Director, Community Development
Newport, Oregon

Dear Mr. Tokos,

First, thank you for keeping those of us who have expressed interest and concern re: the Lund development
proposal informed. We very much appreciate the transparency.

I’'m writing to provide testimony relating to the Shoreline Impact Permit associated with the Lund development
proposal on Spring Street (Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903). | am opposed to the proposed development for several
reasons, including the fact that it will likely have negative impacts to the city-owned Outstanding Natural Area to
the West of his property. | am concerned that in this unstable and actively eroding substrate, a 25 ft. buffer would
be insufficient to protect the adjacent natural area from potential impacts from the proposed development, such as
the spread of erosional downcutting or slumping, deposition of erosional material from the property above, and
invasion of non-native plants. | have expertise in these areas as an ecologist with the National Park Service (27
years, now retired) and as a former board member of the Natural Areas Association.

| am also opposed to the county vacating the Jumpoff Joe Road right of way on the east side of the Lund property.
In addition to having historical significance as the old stage-coach route, this right of way could form an important
piece of a proper beach access point for the surrounding neighborhood. It also provides a protective buffer to
Spring Street, which could be vulnerable to slumping or erosion if the mitigation measure proposed in the geologic
report for the proposed Lund development were not adequately implemented.

| have recently taken some time to familiarize myself with the City of Newport Comprehensive Plan. The Natural
Features section lists two goals for Ocean Shorelands:

Goal 1: To protect life and property, to reduce costs to the public, and to minimize damage to the natural resources
of the coastal zone that might result from inappropriate development in environmentally hazardous areas.

Goal 2: To protect and, where practical, enhance identified environmentally sensitive areas.

Under the Policy 1 section of Goal 1 (p. 47), the Comprehensive Plan states that it is the applicant’s burden to show
that construction in an environmentally hazardous area is feasible and safe. In a previous section of the plan (p. 28)
Jumpoff Joe is cited as an example of a particularly unstable area.

In the vicinity of Jumpoff Joe [sic] in Newport, the sea coast has retreated as much as several hundred feet
since the turn of the century. A number of homes have been destroyed or badly damaged in recent years
[the 1940's] as a result of landslides in this area. Before any additional shoreline areas are developed, the
stability of the slope should be studied by soil engineers and geologists. Often an apparently stable slope
can be reactivated by the addition of houses and streets.

I am not a geologist, and so am not specifically qualified to comment on the adequacy or flaws of the geologic
assessment submitted by Mr. Lund. Perhaps the proposed mitigating actions will reduce the risk associated with
development. However, given the long list of real geologic hazards for the site (slope movement, beach regression,
tsunami-damage, earthquake-associated ground acceleration and lateral spreading, etc.), do they provide sufficient
protection to both city property and infrastructure and that of neighboring landowners, should a natural hazard, or
the construction project itself, re-activate landslide activity along the slope?



137

Given the likelihood and potential severity that earthquakes and tsunamis pose to Newport and surrounding
coastal towns, conservative governance would ask public officials to prioritize protecting the city’s existing
infrastructure as well as public and private property over promoting more and more development, regardless of the
associated risk. |1 would encourage the city to take a more proactive position by denying development on this small
piece of shoreland, thus retaining its natural resistance to storm and earthquake damage through heavy vegetation
cover. This has to be far more cost-effective than attempting to mitigate loss of infrastructure following storm,
tsunami, or earthquake associated erosion and landslides. This course of action would both be in keeping with the
goals of the Comprehensive Plan, as well as the 2040 Plan, and would be responsive to the concerns voiced by a

large number of neighbors and community members who are committed to protecting the beach and shoreland
that benefit us individually and as a community.

Newport is taking a number of steps to plan for this community’s future, and | commend the city leaders for this.
The Newport 2040 Vision and Strategic Plan acknowledges the surrounding natural beauty and access to nature as
core values of our community and asks us to “prioritize conservation of significant open spaces and natural
resource areas, including beaches and headlands, .......” More difficult than writing a strategic plan however, is
applying the values and principles it expresses on a daily basis as small changes are proposed and considered.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment.

Sincerely,

Lisa Potter Thomas
1437 NW Thompson St.
Newport, OR 97365



[e 0]
™
—i

EXHIBIT

B

Derrick Tokos

PENGAD-Bayonne, N, J.

E—
From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:32 PM
To: Derrick Tokos
Cc Sean Malone
Subject: Spring St comment Natural area - #5
Attachments: Spring St comment with attch Natural area.pdf

Derrick, please see attached comment submitted into the record 1-SIR-18. Please enter it into the record of 1-
GP-18. '

Thank you,
Mona Linstromberg

Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection



July 31, 2018

File No. 1-SIR-18
Applicant: William Lund
Location: Map 11-11-05BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903

Comment: Proposed development’s adverse impact on Jump Off Joe Natural Area

Oregon Statewide Land Use Goal 17 speaks to conserving, protecting, where appropriate
developing and, where appropriate, restoring “the resources and benefits of all coastal shorelands,
recognizing their value for protection and maintenance of water quality, fish and wildlife habitat,
water-dependent uses, economic resources and recreation and aesthetics.” This proposed intrusive
development, as evidenced by the site plan and “supported’ by the approved Geotechnical Report

issued by K&A Engineering, is not appropriate development in this area adjacent to the Jump Off
Joe Natural Area.

See also the Newport Comprehensive Plan pages 48 and 49:
Goal 2: To protect and, where practical, enhance environmentally sensitive areas.

Policy 8: Development in beach and dune areas other than older, stabilized dunes shall only be
permitted if the following issues are examined and appropriate findings are made:

>The type of use proposed and the adverse effects it might have on the site
and adjacent areas;

>Temporary and permanent stabilization programs and the planned
maintenance of new and existing vegetation;

>Methods for protecting the surrounding area from any adverse effects of the
development; and

>Hazards to life, public and private property, and the natural environment that
may be caused by the proposed use.

The Jump Off Joe Natural Area is such an environmentally sensitive area, and NMC Section
14.38.050 (B) 1s the codified response to Goal 17 (and 18) and Newport’s Comprehensive Plan.
The following aspects from the site plan (supported by the geotechnical report) illustrate how this
proposed intrusive development will have adverse impacts on the Jump Off Joe Natural Area. These
issues have not been thoroughly examined, if at all, with appropriate findings:

1. See page 9 Geotechnical Report, 3.1.3 Beach Regression:
...For this site, we believe that long-term regression may be less than this range due to several
mitigating features specific to the project site:

Bullet 3: - High densities of existing vegetation in Zones 2 and 1.

139



Looking at the site plan, it is obvious that the proposed extensive road/retaining wall/driveway
system will lay waste to a significant portion of existing vegetation. Add to that the ten inch and
larger trees (to say nothing of the eight/nine inch trees not even listed) slated to be removed. These
larger trees help anchor the soil/vegetation in this active slide area. ' Removing them will seriously
impact the Jump Off Joe Natural Area which is at the base of this active slide area and will be the
depository of debris from inevitable beach regression (in addition to other hazard conditions)
resulting in further collapse of this project site. Attached are two articles referencing the Jump Off
Joe debacle. History repeating itself?

2. See pages 15 &16 Geotechnical Report, Foundation pads, second paragraph page 16:

We recommend that all soils excavated from basement areas and foundation pad should be

removed from the project site and disposed of off-site -or- utilized for MSE fill embankments for

the driveway.
There are multiple mentions in the geotechnical report of “fill”, discussing which should be used
and which should not. If fill is removed from the site, as suggested above, and appropriate fill
brought to the site, more detail is needed about the loaded weight of the trucks used to haul and the
number of trips made in a day. The noise and commotion generated by this activity could adversely
impact the Jump Off Joe Natural Area. An accommodation must be reached to lessen the impact to
wildlife (especially nesting birds) in this natural habitat area during construction. Has the Oregon
Department of Fish and Wildlife been contacted and apprised of specific concerns? Another worry
is the impact of large loaded trucks on Spring Street itself throughout this project.

3. See page 15 Geotechnical report, Foundation pads:

Our understanding is that, at the time of this report, two-story “daylight” designs for

single-family residences are being considered.
The plan is to build two story single family dwellings (whether a “daylight” design or not) on this
project site. Goal 17 and the Comprehensive Plan prioritize “protecting” natural areas. The City
code does not allow development “in” a designated natural area. The Jump Off Joe Natural Area, a
public space, can only be truly protected from adverse visual impact if the structures are limited to
one story, typically 15 feet. Otherwise, as planned, these structures will be looming over the Jump
Off Joe Natural Area, belying any pretense that this area is a natural haven for the public’s use and
enjoyment. In addition, the City requires development to have a setback of 25 feet to encourage
preservation of vegetation and must therefore require a bond, given the developer’s past
performance, to ensure that vegetation in the buffer be replaced, as stipulated, covering the cost of
such replacement.

If approved, this plan must include strict conditions that address site specific problems. This area is
rich with history from the historic Jump Off Joe Road county ROW to the recent disastrous
development in the area of Jump Off Joe directly south of this proposed development. We cannot
add further disastrous development. Strict conditions are necessary to protect the Jump Off Joe
Natural Area. Given the applicant’s previous propensity to devastate vegetation, along with the site

! See pages 47 and 48 of the Newport Comprehensive Plan, Goal 1, Policy 6: Nonstructural
solutions to problems of erosion or flooding shall be preferred to structural solutions. Where flood
and erosion control structures are shown to be necessary, they shall be designed to minimize
adverse impacts on water currents, erosion, and accretion patterns

140



plan’s intent to continue removing vegetation, a plan more sensitive to preserving trees and
vegetation is necessary. Given the heavy equipment needed at construction sites (exacerbated by
the coming and going of fill) a plan to mitigate the impact of heavy traffic on the natural area and
wildlife habitat is needed. And given the plan for extensive and intrusive structures so near the
Jump Off Joe Natural Area, the height of such structures should be limited to fifteen feet.

For all the above reasons, this application should be denied, but, if not, the above conditions should
be attached to the approval to better protect the Jump Off Joe Natural Area.

Please enter in the record.
Regards,

Mona Linstromberg

141



Slippery slope
Newport News-Times

Posted: Friday, Mar 26th, 2010
BY: Larry Coonrod

LEFT: Started in 1982, this condominium at the end of NW

1 1th Street in the Jump Off Joe area of Newport was starting to
collapse by 1985. The structure was never completed. (Photo
courtesy of the Lincoln County Historical Society)

RIGHT: All that remains of the Beachland condominiums today
is part of the foundation. The project was one of the most
controversial and contested developments ever undertaken in
Newport. It would eventually leave several individuals and
businesses bankrupt. (Photo by Larry Coonrod)

Historic Jump Off Joe development revisited in wake of
proposed building code changes

It was one of the most contentious land use battles ever fought on the Oregon coast.
Today, only part of a condominium foundation at the end of NW 11th Street remains of a
development project at Jump Off Joe in Newport. But the memory of that nearly 30-year-
old debacle is playing a fresh role in a controversial proposal by the City of Newport to
put building restrictions on coastal property deemed to be in geologically hazardous
areas.

Opponents and proponents of changes to the building code point to the episode to bolster
their arguments.

142



A rock outcropping resembling a slipper with an archway in the middle, Jump Off Joe
was once one of the most photographed landmarks on the Oregon coast. When settlers
first came to the area in the 1860s, the rock formation jutted out from the base of the
bluff. By the end of the 19th Century, erosion had separated the hill and the rock. After a
series of fierce winter storms, the archway collapsed. Today, nothing remains.

Legend has it the area got its name after an Indian named Joseph being pursued by other
Indians leapt to his death from the bluffs at the urging of an Indian maiden saying, “Jump
Joseph.”

The truth behind the tale is debatable. What is certain is that a development of the area by
owners Richard and Barbara Anderson starting in 1980 carried professional reputations,
personal fortunes and several businesses over the cliff.

The bulldozing of trees in the scenic headland in preparation for starting the 39 unit
Shelter Cove subdivision sparked community outrage.

Richard Anderson answered back, saying, “You may have to make it look ugly before
you make it look pretty.”

Locals were incredulous anyone would build on the face of a known active geological
hazard area.

And known it was. Landslides began endangering homes in the Jump Off Joe area as
early as 1921. In 1943, the earth opened a massive hole between NW Sixth and NW 11th
streets when a 1,000-foot long strip of land 200-feet wide slid away, destroying 15
homes. According to geological estimates, the shoreline has retreated close to 500 feet in
some places since 1868.

A Waldport geologist produced a geological report attesting to the stability of the
Anderson’s building site. In fact, he said, the development would make the bluff more
stable. Interestingly enough, while conducting a geological hazard survey for Lincoln
County six years earlier, the same geologist had concluded the Jump Off area should

never be developed, according to Paul D. Komar in his book “The Pacific Northwest
Coast.

The group Friends of Lincoln County fought the development, but the Newport Planning
Commission approved the development on March 9, 1981. The city council didn’t give
its final approval until February 1982, adding a new subdivision ordinance that would
lead the Anderson’s to drop plans for a subdivision and start construction on the 10-unit
Beachside Estate condominiums at the top of the bluff.

During the council’s deliberation, Councilor Clyde Hamstreet, the developer of the
Embarcadero hotel and marina, was reported to have said of the development that, “It
would be a lab experiment on a grand scale.”

143



The Department of State Lands dashed the Anderson’s hope of slowing the erosion of

their property when it turned down their application to build a 21-foot high, 820-foot long
sea wall.

The wall, DSL said, “could produce an illusion of safety and security in a known
geological hazard area.”

Work began on the Beachland condominiums in 1982 on the north end of the Jump Off
Joe property. The Anderson’s geologist said the building was setback far enough to be
safe for 20 years. By 1985, nearly three years after the Anderson’s had stopped
construction because of financial woes, the condos were rapidly being destroyed as
erosion weakened the building’s foundation, causing it to visibly sink.

The Anderson’s eventually ended up filing for bankruptcy. Much of the land went to a
bank after they defaulted on over $800,000 in loans.

The Friends of Lincoln County was left owing money after the bruising battle.

Citing “incompetence and gross negligence” the Oregon State Board of Geology
Examiners revoked the license of the geologist who claimed development would make
the site more stable, according to Komar.

The contractor, a lumber company and an insurance company all went bankrupt from the
debacle. Creditors received between a penny and 18 cents on the dollar, according to
Komar.

After much legal wrangling with the Anderson’s insurance company and others, the city
had the building torn down.

How much the City of Newport spent on legal fees isn’t readily determinable 30-years
later, Community Development Director Derrick Tokos said.

The Jump Off Joe episode and other cases of severe erosion along the coastline is one
reason the planning commission looked at building restrictions in high hazard areas,
Tokos said.

“Should we be doing something more proactive in the highest risk areas, so that chances
of something not being able to be removed from the property are reduced?” he said.

At a March 22 meeting, the planning commission moved toward adopting a geological
hazard area ordinance that would recommend, but not mandate owners consider building
readily removable structures in active hazard areas.

Newport attorney Chris Minor, whose firm represented the city at the time, said he
remembers the episode as a battle of dueling geologists.

144



“The coast is a risky place. My personal view is that there should be some way of letting
people find out what the risks are before they decide to buy or build,” Minor said. “But
government can’t predict the future and tell us where the erosion is all going to be. If
somebody can afford to take their chances, they should be allowed to do so, as long as
it’s not an outrageous risk.”

Today, the city owns much of the Anderson’s former property, which continues to erode.
The only people ever likely to live there are transients who camp in the scrub brush along
the bottom of the fallen bluff.

Reporter Larry Coonrod can be reached at 541-265-8571 ext 211 or
larry @newportnewstimes.com

145



id, Dave Odgers, .
that the conference had

final’ c!tatlon. Odgers
2 It'séowehaveachance

theyarealleging to, to

_it. and they have a
hear what our thinking

S VR

el kAP 2

OTICE
; Pl Aﬁ“""'-"

e
)

P

1w T
R




itinued on Page A1

. o
llalsohuntseals;
.have always received more
on than _.other whales,
dst said, .attributing their

ity to recent efforts made -

them in captivity and train
Nhale trainers have been
teach the huge black and
\ammais io:do iricks, and
agerquist’ said, has given
the idea the killer whales
the ferocious killers they
je out to be.

nyoumentionkillerwhales,

mntinued on Page A11

v

slease
e

ie of attorney-client privi-
lode said he could not issue
ifon because “the city coun-
ough tﬁ%ﬁ& manager, has
:q.d.lpgl{oﬁug%g};t‘llg_x'ecord_in

N ST

enda |

ent was not being released..:*

qr'e a.ﬁ'a.idthat S
*- ment plans couldy
“‘been subject to.s
“addition to_posin

dividual propertie

0.

kY

o

Sch

X

ool studentsisolated |



o'obtat piEtching

: State ‘Economic’,

partgnmthavebeen'

erneeds tobedone
further damage or
curs, commission-

» continue the pro-
in development of
sing. The cominis-
liocated $3,000 per
ors building afford-
thin the Urban Re-

or sb‘ee‘t, participa-
1d $100,000 for re-
streets within the

R ‘Jh:';p)miwinfﬁlq’&'ﬁkﬁ—A 2

¥ e BA5k between Northwest, High

Street and Betty Wheeler field: This

is the park that traverses the can-
yon between these two sites: . . .
« $30,000 for participatifig with

 property owners in installation of

new sidewalk projects. -,
« $20,000 for controlling
on the properties owned by thecom-
mission, which includes theViet-
nam Memorial site. g
The commission’s executive. di-
rector, Sam Sasaki, said that’this
year's budgeted. expenditures;are
the same as last year, but the{tax:
rate will actually go down, due tgan
increase in assessed pro val-
ues. : £

I

erosion -

-. A AR U M G S ALY PG RS

the original estimated cost of this
demolition. :

~ways. to secure the area from tres-

e Heard that the Oregon Division '

"of State Lands has not accepted
urban renewal's proposal for the
seawall renovation on the Bayfront.
DSL wants, the city to mitigate for
ariy wetland lost through the de-
positing of rock or other material
into the bay during the course of
rebuilding the wall. The commis-
sion authorized Sasaki tobeginlook-
ing for mitigation property. It is
estimated that about half an acre
will be required.. " S

between the subject property and
the beach.” -~ , )
- However, this landslide, accord-
ing to the report, now resis on a
nearly level surface and is not ca-

* pable of further sliding. “Rather it
acts as a buttress to the toe of the
subject property,” the report states.
It farther states that movement in
the vicinity of the site is limited to
small local slumps, since the driv-
ing force is no longer present to
activate a large slide. A0

O i e is riow Jaoktagat LT Bore L i
G e R o ]lvlmlrj"'{z)ff loe Continued from Page Al

. Inaddition to recommendirig that, -’
a geotechnical study be performed,
Schilicker &Associates suggest that-

s atleast two test holes should be
drilled approximately 50 feet in
depth; : '

“e laboratory tests include a direct
shear being done; )
s consideration be made for slope
support, including crib walls;
o various foundations systems be
considered if development of the
site is feasible. : ,

sficial to those clients
\ it Some topics Cov-
g skills, self-esteem
n, and assertiveness
also additional testing
sals, and educational
=mployment Develop-
-eed on and put into
ent, the' client’s case-
d the life skills instruc-
is planis for seff-suffi-
years. -

e's JOBS program be-
jforme. | have been a
ars,-and 1 have volun-
ate in every program
it. Also, because there
1s available for many
sen stuck in minimum
»w from personal expe-
rkable JOBS program
needed. :

arry and fear that the -

sausted. before’my in-
obaen completed. lam

studying for a certificate in accountihﬁg
andbusiness management, and will evenz
tually attain my C:P.A. gy
Senator Stan Bunn, Governor Barbara
Roberts, as well as. many agencies sup<
port the JOBS program. These include.
the Employment Division, Community.
Services Consortium, Career Pathways,-
and Lincoln County Health Departments
Theysupportthe JOBS program because
it helps. get people off welfare perma-:
nently. .~ iz - %
| believe the JOBS program is a very’:

important component 1o the success of . .

many low-income individuals; therefore,
3

the program néeds continued support
fromthe whole community, including state -
officials as’ well ‘as businessmen and °

Ultimate insult

To the editor;i57 . Hie
For those individuals who stood up
when their country called, then gave the

ulimate sacrifice-in-Vietnam — for our

president to show:up-at the Vietnam
Memorial, this has to’be the ultimate
insult for those courageous individuals
who gave theirfives. .

For 20 years, I've been hoping that my

fellow comrades did not die in vain in -

Vietnam, but | now have my doubts, after
watching PresidentClinton’s appearance
at the wall on. television this Memorial
Day. Presiderit Clinton Is well known for
his symbolism;over substance and hypo-

* critical thetoric, bitare there nolimits and

women. Working together, JOBS partici- 4 no shame for:this president?

pants and the community help.create a
educated work force. With -

strong and
continued support, this program.is and
will continue to be beneficial to the better-
‘ment of our whole country. . 3.

© .. . . carolL, Carroll

“Yachats

- Vietnam veterans hiave long been an-
. noyed that it's ‘always those ‘who have
‘never been therethat choose to speak
*'the most about Vietnam: Now we have a
. presidentwho did,-% vt
- ey

i

[
3
£

hing he could to ‘

avoid serving in \:ﬁetnam, even to the
extent of running to.our adversary and
dansuncing those unfortunate Americans
who putit all on the fine when our country
asked them to. ;

A bumper sticker | saw the other day
pretty much sums up this country's

present lack of political leadership:

“Dori't biame me, | didn't vote forthe .-

draft dodger.” ‘.
But to try io finish on a positive note,
things could be worse, Bill Clinton could
have married Jane Fonda. :
L Keith Kruse

Lincoln City-

Bowling alley permit
To the edifor,
It seems strange the Newport politi-
. cians can’t compromise and allow a con-
ditional use permit for. a much needed
entertainmentfacility—one 'msure would

be used by many local individuals, from
the very young to seniors, churct: and

"school groups, and area tournament .

teams. - y ]

Besides the zoning concerns by a few
for the bowling alley, is the denial by the
coungcil because the business is not visi-

‘tor-oriented enough? .

. Several years ago, the council was
confronted by the illegal use, anc nct
zoned as such, of the south jetty propeity

"as a campground and visitors RY park.

The eye-soreis still there, but apparantiy
we dor'twantto run offthe visitors, so this
can be over looked.
| know we can’t go helter-skelter cn
zoning changes but my .gosh, it seems
the local people should be heard'and we
hedge a little when we have someone
willing to build a business which would
benefit and be enjoyed by many in our
ccmmunity. ;
Dallas Willison
South Beach

Sy
(4

bl

:'";Qd the juveniles
.ag they were

ati tleam ta ~teans hao

tody for Assault 4 Domestic and andlodged -

at the Lincoin County Jail. Flatt was also ™. way 20. Arescue vehicle, two ambutances,

cited for Criminal Mischief2. -
1n-E4 a2 m Cnomnlainant renariad to offi-

W T A
* “hicle accidentnear Milepast3onU.S. High-

' and two officers res| FEE
& penchd s

The motor lifeboat Victary towed the 32-

_ foot fishing vessel Swift Sure Il due to an :

engine failure. Two persons were aboard,
i.hJune 12 ! R

June 13 :

The motor lifeboat 44400 towed the 25- |
foot pleasure craft Myster-E due to engine
failure. Five persons were aboard. . -

48 APA Laiiimd AL PV
7




area to announce the
.developer’s plans for a

" “The city requires a geo-
logic report for. such build-
Ang'permits, and the devel-

such a statement, the
s J:permit will not be issued. .

‘were posted recently in the

possible geological hazard
area. : i

er has filed one, although

Jump-off Joes

«' Driving along Somie ouit- what it is safé to assume
‘of-the-way road along the .  would be a lot more money .
~ocean shouldn't be the only  to hire their own geologist to
-way a person finds out that 'dispute the report. :
- construction is being Mike Shoberg, Newport
Planned on a = City planner,
eologically. e called that “a
ﬁazar%ous zone. -%M major process.”
But that's how We agree.
the neighbors of ED ITORIAL And the burden
what could be > Enz— ison the’ :
called Jump-off’ *neighbbrs, who
Joe Revisited learned about ~ don't want their own prop-

. a plan to build houses erty damaged by a develop-
north of the notorious ment in a sensitive area,
landmark and west of . and who say that someone
Spring Street.© should have learned some-

An application for a thing from the ill-fated
building permit has been development several years
filed with the city of New- ago just south at Jump-off
port to build several resi- Joe, where condominiums
dences on a bluff perched under construction had to
above the Pacific. Because be demolished because of:

" the proposal does not unstable ground.

Involve a variance, no People in the neighbor-
hearing before the city hood acknowledge that
Planning commission is )\ portions. of the area have
required. Signs, however, - already cracked off and

fallen away. Erosion and
landslides are not unusual
in the area. ;
And it's no longer an

- Issue of “Let the buyer
beware” or the foolishness
of building houses on sznd.

- It's no longer an issue off
pro-development vs anti-

i states a geotechnical development.
- fil report will be necessary in’ It's time for the city of
. | the future to define what Newport to look at its
. |§ needs to be done to safely - oceanfront Property and
develop in the area. - - evaluate the zoning in those
", City staff acknowledge . areas. Does it make sense
that when the report carries to allow building on geologi-

cally sensitive areas, unless

ntlthe additfonal infor- - have enough money to
mation is obtained. But the prove that such building
ity will not make a deter- - would be hazardous?
mination on whether the ‘We don't think so. It’s
geologic report is adequate -  time to recognize, as a
+ just that it exists. former resident called it,
The only option left to “the power of Mother
those who think such a

Nature.” And the city of

sbuildis destabﬂize . Newport needs to take the -
‘#hegidundsitieré they live - ledd in looking at its zoring.
“Isfor-the neighbors of the  'and acknowledging that not
proposed development to . every piece of property in
pay $150 to-appeal the - the city is prime develop-
permit application,.and pay - ment land.

| Léttefs

.. People in the neighborhood * :*

.|+ ing her tenire, .-

Will miss Ovaitt
To the editor, - A

It is with:great sadness that we, the
Residents.Of. Old Town, (ROQOT), write
this“Letterof Commendationforourfriend
and port manager, Lorrain Ovaitt.

Ovaitt brought a level of confidence
and esteem to the Port of Alsea, which
had never existed before, especially be-
tween the immediate neighbors and the

“port. :

Her honesty and directness and above :

all, love for our beautiful bay, will long be

-remembered by those who realize what
could have been, if all that bridge debris
had not been removed. All the commis-
sioners should be applauded, but it was
the port manager who took the heat and
struck an independent course leading to
success.

Yet, it is the daily overseeiﬁg_-_of" ;

Waldport's mostlucrative asset, ourwon-
derfully important river and bay during a

_time of funding turmoil, that js her “mag-
SIUM OPUSITE it ik e Gty

; Ifon‘lyothergovémmen,talbddies'oou!d_ ‘fand Youw'd“have a bett:
.come up to the Port of Alsea’s high stan-- , i dindiv

dards! We congratulate Ovaitt on a job
well done, ‘and look to a continuation of
the “good neighbor” policy institutgd dur-

ioners.
nts Of

3

understand some det:
going on in Yachats..v
this. policy, and is the
Would Grethe Cooper
a fee if she wrote a Ie
racall attempt on her
fended herself in the s
pose.you cotild call the
“sUipportinga political ¢:
wouldn't be “running"
.ould not be defined.at
° Maybe the policy irrit
the News-Times exists
not just a business fo
-, chain that owns it. Rea:
comments, questionsai
our’community and its ¢
of the reasons that thi
some time in.the comm
~ fore it's slipped into i
around afish, .
_ Therg doesn't have
- the policy about what le
the editorial page: How:
galure of the editing that gi
ublication, | think wa'd i

»-allowed individuals toex;
~ cal dpinions-without fé
~-agree with them, exert e

decide Whose comments
‘and whose were fot. Co,
» you couild dothat anywa

TS WKV AAE A mn thad




m-nfwsvwm wmwwsmwmml
Wﬂmw

By Brooke Brannon

Georgla-Paciﬁc Corp which op-.
erates the To iedo pulp and paper .
oximately

ﬁn m-the state
following invesﬁgaﬁon into:
safety and ‘heaith violations:

due inparttoaFeb. 5 explosion at
the 'l‘oledomill that killed two.mill ...
workers and seriously lnjured two
"others. B

An inthigaﬂon was conducted

stential ‘fine is; reportedly-

"Willful vlolat;ons are deﬁned as:
‘those that are' deliberate or have .
been p ointed out to the company :
before, buthavenotbemconecm
OSHAmediacontactJanWagner
wowdnotdiscussdetaﬂs andsaid;
“The inves'dgation is not oﬂicially
.closed yet.” " " ;
G-P’s regional communicatlons
- manager inPortland; Dave! Odgers, .
confirmed that the conference had
been held, but said’
' divulge details."
' "They were inthigaﬁng general

i eindAvree at the mill. not<

150




‘Derrick Tokos

From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>

Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:26 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: Sean Malone

Subject: Spring St. 1,GP,18 incomplete Geotechnical report - #4
Attachments: Spring St 1,SIR,18 comment with attch incomplete geo report.pdf

Ooops, the previous email was #3. Please see attached my comment submitted into the record for 1-SIR-
18. Please submit into the record 1-GP-18.

Thank you,

Mona Linstromberg
Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection



July 31, 2018

File No. 1-SIR-18
Applicant: William Lund
Location: Map 11-11-05BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900, 1903

Comment: Shoreland Resources Impact Review Application based on flawed and
incomplete approved Geotechnical Report.

The conundrum is making comment on an application/site plan based on a flawed !and
incomplete geotechnical report. Mr. Tokos’ 12/13/17 comments on K and A’s initial
geologic report and his 6/21/18 comments on the revised geologic report provided insight
into the review process. Not having the technical background, my review is based on
inconsistencies, omissions and common sense.

1) See page 16 of the current K and A Geotechnical Report, 3.4.4.2 Cut Embankment :
Stability for cut embankments along the east side of the driveway should be provided a
gravity retaining

Information is missing as the above sentence/thought is incomplete.

2) On page 3 of the Geotechnical Report, Introduction: This report documents our
geotechnical investigation of site conditions that exist on tax lots 1900 and 1903 located
on the west side of NW Spring Street just north of NW 13th Street in Newport, Oregon.

Because the above statement omits mention of tax lot 1800, it alerted me to look for other
omissions relating to tax lot 1800:
a. See Appendix C, Slope Stability Analysis. Information is provided for tax lots
1900 and 1903 but comparable information is not provided for tax lot 1800.
b. See Appendix E, Reference Reports. Not all the information provided for tax
lots 1900 and 1903 is provided for tax lot 1800.

See also the July 26, 2018 communication from Lincoln County Counsel regarding File
#1-GP-18 (approved) and Notice #1-SIR-18 which includes technical comments by the

county’s engineer (see attached). His comments enumerate omissions in the geotechnical
review.

The above is evidence the approved K & A Geotechnical Report is flawed and incomplete.
Information omitted could be significant. The Shoreland Resources Impact Review

! See 7/25/18 communication from Mr. Gless (G.H.Schlicker & Associates) entered in the record, and
7/26/18 comment submitted by Tim Gross. Dropbox documents linked in Mr/ Gless’s email are included in
the record: K &A Engineering Report is included by reference, G.H. Schlicker 1991 Report (Appendix E) is

attached.. Also in the record are Gless’ reports on TL 1800 and 1409 NW Spring St, adjacent to and north of
TL 1800.

152



Application is intrinsically dependent on the report. As such, this application must be
denied.

Please enter in the record.

Mona Linstromberg
831 E. Buck Creek Rd.
Tidewater, OR 97390

Family home:
1442 NW Spring St.
Newport, OR 97390

153



154

Office of Lincoln County Legal Counsel e ot

= 3 225 West Olive Street, Room 110 Kristin Yuille
Newport, Oregon 97365 Assistant County Counsel

M‘ au“'y (541) 265-4108 o JerCry He(r;bagel
Fax: (541) 265-4176 ssistant County Counse!

- QOETN... www.co.lincoln.or.us/countycounsel Janet Hz’:;;i‘;z

To:  Derrick Tokos, Newport Community Development Director
Re:  Your File #1-GP-18 and Notice #1-SIR-18

Date: July 26, 2018

The following comments are offered by Lincoln County in response to the decision and
notice above referenced. They are not appeals of either matter. Instead they are intended to
address questions the County has received about the proposed development highlighted in the
applications before the City of Newport.

It appears from the submitted conceptual site plan that the road improvements, retaining
walls and driveway accesses are all located within the right of way of County Road 500. This is a
public road right of way (County Road) under County jurisdiction; therefore these improvements
would require a permit from the County. Public access on the improvements will be required to be
allowed and maintained. After conferring with the City we understand a 20 foot road width would
be acceptable under the City adopted fire code for these improvements. Assuming the geotechnical
information is otherwise acceptable to and approved by the City as evidenced by the decision in
File # 1-GP-18, structures or disturbance of the right of way related to road improvements
(including but not limited to retaining walls, cut embankments, and fills) could be located within
the right of way but would require separate applications and permits from the County. The County
would also require that road improvements not impede or block possible future public access to

the beach continuing north on the right of way. The technical comments of the County Engineer
are attached.

The applicant and other property owners have filed a petition to vacate the County Road
500 right of way shown on the site plan. The vacation request includes proposed construction of
an alternative replacement beach access (trail) by the applicant as generally shown on the site plan.
The vacation process is separate from the city’s permit process. The vacation procedures are
outlined in ORS Chapter 368 and Lincoln County Code Chapter 6. If the vacation is approved by
the County after public hearing, and including concurrence by the City as required under law, then
no permits would be required by the County.



Please place these comments into the record.
Submitted on behalf of Lincoln County by:

Wayne Belmont, Lincoln County Counsel
Roy Kinion, Lincoln County Public Works Director (Road Official)
James “Steve” Hodge, Lincoln County Engineer

Comments of Steve Hodge:

I have reviewed the Geotechnical Engineering Report (GER) prepared and written by Michael
Remboldt, P.E., G.E. and Gary Sandstrom, C.E.G. (K & A Engineering, Inc. and Gary C.
Sandstrom, Geologist, LLC, respectively). This report was written to satisfy the requirements of
the 2014 Oregon Structural Specialty Code. Chapter 18, Soils and Foundations, specifically
addresses the reporting requirements of the above mentioned report.

While the field investigation addresses most of the issues regarding questionable soils, the GER
does not provide all of the boring logs from their field work. The conceptual site plan indicates
four borings were performed to describe the soil profile. Only boring log B-1 and B-3 were
included in this report. Four hand auger profiles (HA-1, AH-2, HA-2 and HA-3) are presented as
is the readings of the Dynamic Probe (FC-1, FC-2, FC-3, FC-4). Test results showing the
Plasticity Index, Expansion Index, and ASTM D are not included in this report nor are there results
of any compressive strength tests.

The report provides adequate review of Section 1803.5.5 Deep Foundations. Boring logs indicate
a soil strata capable of supporting deep foundations lay in this area. The report describes type of
pile, installation procedures, bearing pressures, and installation procedures. It does not speak to
pile spacings or reductions for group action.

The report suggests MSE retaining walls for fill slopes and Gabion Baskets for cut slopes. The
provided boring logs suggest these technologies would be sufficient for the intended purposes;
however, additional analysis is required for design. Specifically, modeled lateral forces generated
by earthquake against gabion wall.

It i1s my opinion that this report meets the requirements of the 2014 Oregon Structural Specialty
Code however additional investigation and testing is necessary to support design.

Steve Hodge, P.E.
County Engineer

Lincoln County Public Works
880 NE 7th Street

Newport, OR 97365
541-574-1212
JHodge@co.lincoln.or.us

155



* EXHIBIT | g
E-I3 -
Derrick Tokos
From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:18 PM
To: Derrick Tokos
Cc: Sean Malone; Tim Gross
Subject: Fw: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering
Report (June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.
Attachments: TAC Short_Vitae_2018.docx

Derrick, please see the attached. The date on this is July 31 which was when | received it. Maybe it was paper
clipped with another comment but | did not see it in the 1-SIR-18 file. Please include it in the record if it was
not done so. Please also include it into the record of 1-GP-18.

= s PRl

Thank you,
Mona Linstromberg
Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Tim Cross

Sent: Monday, July 30, 2018 9:07 AM
To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: Mona Linstromberg

Subject: Re: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29, 2018)
prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Dear Derrick and Mona,
I don’t see why my background and credentials are relevant, but if you insist . . .

I am a geologist (MSc-University of Michigan; PhD, University of Southern California). I retired from practice
in 2016. I wrote to you as a homeowner, not as a consulting geologist. I wrote out of concern that the slope
stability models run by K&A Engineering were based on incorrect boundary conditions, thus rendering the
models meaningless (not wrong, not correct, rather meaningless). I am not employed by anyone for any reason.
Attached is a resume.

Virus-free. www.avg.com

On Jul 26, 2018, at 11:36 AM, Derrick Tokos <d.tokos@newportoregon.gov> wrote:

Hi Mona,

Thank you for your comments. I'll forward your note, and the email from Mr. Cross, to Bill Lund and
K&A Engineering to see what their thoughts are regarding your request for additional time.



157

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym @ peak.org]
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:13 AM

To: Tim Cross <timothyacross@comcast.net>; Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Re: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report
(June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Derrick, in discussion with Mr. Cross and other neighbors, we feel that the substantial comment
provided by Mr. Cross justifies your extending the appeal date until K and A has an opportunity
to address the information provided. We do realize that Mr. Lund would have to agree so we
are preparing as if the July 31 deadline still holds but wanted to make this formal request.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this email and also receipt of Mr. Cross' comment?
Please enter this in the record.

Thank you, Mona Linstromberg

Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Tim Cross

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 10:11 AM

To: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov

Cc: lindym@peak.org

Subject: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report
(June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Dear Derrick and Mona,

I don’t see why my background and credentials are relevant, but if you insist . . .

I am a geologist (MSc-University of Michigan; PhD, University of Southern California). I retired from practice
in 2016. I wrote to you as a homeowner, not as a consulting geologist. I wrote out of concern that the slope
stability models run by K&A Engineering were based on incorrect boundary conditions, thus rendering the
models meaningless (not wrong, not correct, rather meaningless). I am not employed by anyone for any reason.
Attached is a resumé.

> On Jul 26, 2018, at 11:36 AM, Derrick Tokos <d.tokos@newportoregon.gov> wrote:
2



158

L >
> Hi Mona,
>

> Thank you for your comments. I’ll forward your note, and the email from Mr. Cross, to Bill Lund and K&A

Engineering to see what their thoughts are regarding your request for additional time.
>

> Derrick 1. Tokos, AICP

> Community Development Director
> City of Newport

> 169 SW Coast Highway

> Newport, OR 97365

> ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644

> d.tokos@newportoregon.gov <mailto:d.tokos@newportoregon.gov>
>

>

> From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym@peak.org]

> Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:13 AM

> To: Tim Cross <timothyacross@comecast.net>; Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>

> Subject: Re: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June
29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

>

> Derrick, in discussion with Mr. Cross and other neighbors, we feel that the substantial comment provided by
Mr. Cross justifies your extending the appeal date until K and A has an opportunity to address the information
provided. We do realize that Mr. Lund would have to agree so we are preparing as if the July 31 deadline still

holds but wanted to make this formal request.
>

> Could you please acknowledge receipt of this email and also receipt of Mr. Cross' comment?
>

> Please enter this in the record.
>

> Thank you, Mona Linstromberg
>
>

> Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection
>

> From: Tim Cross <mailto:timothyacross@comcast.net>

> Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 10:11 AM

> To: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov <mailto:D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
> Cc: lindym@peak.org <mailto:lindym@peak.org>

> Subject: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29,
2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

This email has been checked for viruses by AVG.
https://www.avg.com



159

Curriculum Vitae of T. A. Cross 6/2015 Page i

Timothy A. Cross
1102 SW Russ Lane
McMinnville, OR 97128

timothyacross@comcast.net

tacross@mines.edu

Tim is Emeritus Professor of Geology at the Colorado School of Mines. He held positions in both
academia and industry, and retired as a consulting geologist in 2016. He was a consultant to and
advisor in stratigraphy with several petroleum companies. He holds two U.S. patents for
stratigraphic inversion.

After a first career in structural geology and tectonics, his research of the past two-plus decades
has pursued his goal of making stratigraphy a more accurate and predictive science. In
collaboration with students and colleagues, he developed the discipline of high-resolution genetic
stratigraphy and the new technology of stratigraphic inversion. Over the years, this research
produced new concepts and systematic methods of stratigraphic analysis and correlation that
supply objective, quantitative and more accurate predictions about petrophysical, geometric and
volumetric arrangements of sedimentary rocks. He used these concepts and methods, along with
stratigraphic inversion for: reservoir characterization, rezonation and production augmentation;
stratigraphic prediction in exploration; and, as an aid to seismic interpretation.

Formal Education

Ph.D. (1976) University of Southern California (Geology). Dissertation: “Changing patterns of Cenozoic
igneous activity in the western United States: Relation to absolute North American plate motion”

M.S. (1969) The University of Michigan (Geology). Thesis: “The Mississippian Lake Valley Formation of the
Sacramento Mountains, New Mexico: An environmental interpretation”

B.A. (1967) Oberlin College (Geology). Honors Thesis: “Taxonomy, distribution and ecology of living benthic
foraminifera, Barbados”

Professional Experience

9/86 — 2016 President, Strategic Stratigraphy, Inc.

10/02 - 7/16 Consulting Geologist

9/01 —10/02 Senior Scientist, Platte River Associates, Inc.

10/01 — present Emeritus Professor of Geology, Colorado School of Mines
1/90 — 6/90 Professeur Invité, Universite Louis Pasteur, Strasbourg, France
8/84 —9/01 Professor of Geology, Colorado School of Mines

6/83 —7/84 Research Associate, EPR Co.

4/81 —5/83 Senior Research Specialist, EPR Co.

6/79 —3/81 Research Specialist, EPR Co.

6/78 — 6/79 Associate Professor of Geology, Purdue University
9/75—5/78 Assistant Professor of Geology, University of North Dakota
9/72 - 8/75 Graduate studies, University of Southern California

1/70 - 8/72 Exploration Geologist, Texaco, Inc.

5/69 - 1/70 Development Geologist, Texaco, Inc.

Professional Interests and Specialization

SEDIMENTOLOGY:: process-response sedimentology and high-resolution facies analysis of carbonate and
siliciclastic sedimentary rocks from all environments; geology of sedimentary rocks associated with
petroleum, coal and oil shale.

BASIN ANALYSIS: sedimentation and subsidence of rift, intracratonal and foreland basins; origin and
development of the foreland fold and thrust belt and basement-involved uplifts of the Rocky Mountains;

integration of well log, core, and seismic data for improved understanding of stratal geometries and basin
architecture.



Curriculum Vitae of T. A. Cross 6/2015 Page =

STRATIGRAPHY: development and application of genetic stratigraphic concepts for stratigraphic prediction,

forward and inverse numerical stratigraphic models; stratigraphic prediction for petroleum exploration and
production through stratigraphic inverse modeling; reservoir characterization, zonation and production
enhancement; field verification of stratal architecture and facies distributions in sedimentary basins.

Industry Activities and Affiliations (reverse chronological order)

Stratigraphic analysis and reservoir characterization, several blocks in Llanos basin, Colombia (Hocol)
Stratigraphic analysis and reservoir characterization, San Francisco field, Colombia (Hocol)

Stratigraphic analysis and reservoir characterization, Costayaco field, Putumayo basin, Colombia (Gran
Tierra)

Stratigraphic analysis and reservoir characterization, FuYu Formation, Daging Anticline, China (Daqing
Oilfield Company)

Core and stratigraphic analysis of the Capella oilfield, Colombia (Emerald Energy)

Stratigraphic analysis, reservoir characterization and stratigraphic inversion, FuYu Formation, Daqing
oilfield, China (Daqing Qilfield Company)

Reservoir rezonation of Statfjord Field, North Sea (Statoil)

Reservoir reezonation of Snorre Field, North Sea (Statoil)

Regional stratigraphic analysis of Oriente basin, Ecuador (Occidental)

Reservoir characterization of Occidental fields, Oriente basin, Ecuador (Occidental)
Director of the CSM Geoscience Inversion Consortium

Developed and applied world's first stratigraphic inverse modeling technology and high-resolution
correlation strategies to carbonate strata of the Mission Canyon Fm., Williston Basin, North Dakota (USA)

Scientific Advisor (Stratigraphy, Sedimentology, Stratigraphic Modeling) for EIf Exploration Production,
Pau, France

Scientific Advisor (Stratigraphy, Sedimentology, Stratigraphic Modeling) for Statoil, Stavanger, Norway

Developed and applied high-resolution stratigraphic correlation techniques for continental and shallow
marine strata at exploration and reservoir scales to Cusiana Field, Llanos Basin, and Middle Magdalena
Basin, Colombia (sponsored by Ecopetrol and ICP)

Established correlations and reservoir zonation for Cusiana field, Llanos basin, Colombia (sponsored by
Ecopetrol)

Developed and applied world's first stratigraphic inverse modeling technology and high-resolution
correlation strategies to continental and shallow marine strata of the Brent Group (North Sea) and Mesa
Verde Group (San Juan Basin, USA) under the sponsorship of Statoil, Saga, Mobil, Conoco and EIf
Exploration Production

Developed and applied high-resolution stratigraphic correlation techniques for deep-marine strata, Tertiary,
North Sea (sponsored by Statoil)

Developed and applied high-resolution stratigraphic correlation techniques for deep-marine strata,
Pennsylvanian, Anadarko Basin, USA (sponsored by Amoco)

Applied high-resolution stratigraphic correlation techniques in shallow marine tidal strata for reservoir
zonation and behind-pipe oil identification of the Carito Field, Venezuela (sponsored by PDVSA)

Developed correlation strategies for aggrading braided stream strata and applied to the Sincor field,
Orinoco heavy oil belt, Venezuela (sponsored by Sincor).

Recent Publications

160



161

Curriculum Vitae of T. A. Cross 6/2015 Page o

Cross, T.A., and Kusumanegara, Y, 2017, Stratigraphic controls on petrophysical attributes and fluid-flow
pathways in an exhumed fluvial reservoir: Mountain Geologist, v. 54, p. 129-145.

Feng Zhi-qiang, Zhang Shun, Cross, Timothy A., Feng Zi-hui, Xie Xi-nong, Zhao Bo, Fu Xiu-li, and Wang
Cheng-shan, Lacustrine turbidite channels and fans in the Mesozoic Songliao Basin, China: Basin
Research, v. 22, p. 96-107.

Feng Zhi-qiang, Jia Cheng-zao, Xie Xi-nong, Zhang Shun, Feng Zi-hui, and Cross, Timothy A., 2010,
Tectonostratigraphic units and stratigraphic sequences of the nonmarine Songliao basin, northeast China:
Basin Research, v. 22, p. 79-95.

Kjemperud, A.V., Schomacker, E.R., and Cross, T.A., 2008, Architecture and stratigraphy of alluvial deposits,

Morrison Formation (Upper Jurassic), Utah: American Association of Petroleum Geologists Bulletin, v. 92,
p- 1055-1076.

Gerhard, L.C., and Cross, T.A., 2005, Measurements of the generation and distribution of carbonate sediments
of Buck Island Channel, St. Croix, U.S. virgin Islands, with observations about sediments in fringing
lagoons: Atoll Research Bulletin, no 536, p. 157-176.

Gardner, M.H., Cross, T.A., and Levorsen, M., 2004, Stacking Patterns, Sediment Volume Partitioning, and
Facies Differentiation in Shallow-Marine and Coastal-Plain Strata of the Cretaceous Ferron Sandstone,
Utah: AAPG Studies in Geology, v. 50, p. 5-124.

Anderson, D.S., and Cross, T.A., 2001, Large-scale cycle architecture in continental strata, Hornelen basin
(Devonian), Norway: Journal of Sedimentary Research, v. 71, p. 255-271.

Horn, B.W., Cross, T.A., Hornbeck, J.A., Vielma, M., and Zavala, M., 2001, Stratigraphic controls on reservoir
strata: A comparison of fluvial and tidal reservoirs in the Almond Formation, Coal Gulch, Wamsuttter,
Echo Springs and Table rock fields, Washakie Basin, Wyoming: Wyoming Geological Association
Guidebook, 52" Field Conference, p. 149-161.

Cross, T.A., 2000, Stratigraphic controls on reservoir attributes in continental strata: Earth Science Frontiers, v.
7, p. 322-350.

Cross, T.A., and Lessenger, M.A., 1999, Construction and application of a stratigraphic inverse model, in J.W.
Harbaugh, W.L. Watney, E.C. Rankey, R. Slingerland, R.H. Goldstein, and E.K. Franseen, eds, Numerical

Experiments in Stratigraphy: Recent Advances in Stratigraphic and Sedimentologic Computer Simulations:
SEPM Special Publication 62, p. 69-83.

Cross, T.A., and Lessenger, M.A., 1998, Sediment volume partitioning: rationale for stratigraphic model
evaluation and high-resolution stratigraphic correlation, in F.M. Gradstein, K.O. Sandvik, and N.J. Milton,

eds., Sequence Stratigraphy Concepts and Applications: Norwegian Petroleum Society Special Publication
8, p. 171-195.

Cross, T.A., and Homewood, P.W., 1997, Amanz Gressly’s Role in Founding Modern Stratigraphy: Geological
Society of America Bulletin, v. 109, p. 1617-1630.

Cross, T.A., and Lessenger, M.A., 1997, Correlation strategies for clastic wedges, in E.B. Coalson, J.C.
Osmond, And E.T. Williams, eds., Innovative Applications of Petroleum Technology in the Rocky
Mountain Area: Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists, Denver, p. 183-203.

Deng Hongwen, Wang Hongliang, and Cross, T.A., 1997, Application of high-resolution stratigraphic
correlation approaches to fluvial reservoirs: Proceedings of the 30th International Geological Congress, v.
11, p. 55-59.

Ramon, J.C., and Cross, T.A., 1997, Characterization and prediction of reservoir architecture and petrophysical
properties in fluvial channel sandstones, Middle Magdalena Basin, Colombia: Ciencia, Tecnologia y
Futuro, v. 1, no. 3, p. 19-46.

Lessenger, M.A., and Cross, T.A., 1996, An inverse stratigraphic simulation model—Is stratigraphic inversion
possible?: Energy Exploration & Exploitation, v. 14, no. 6, p. 627-637.

Cross, T.A., 1994, Applications of high-resolution sequence stratigraphy to reservoir analysis: The Interstate Oil
and Gas Compact Commission 1993 Annual Bulletin, p. 24-39.



Curriculum Vitae of T. A. Cross 6/2015 Page 4

Gardner, M.H., and Cross, T.A., 1994, Middle Cretaceous paleogeograpahy of Utah, in M.V. Caputo, J.A.
Peterson, and K.J. Franczyk, eds., Mesozoic Systems of the Rocky Mountain region, USA: Rocky
Mountain Section SEPM (Society for Sedimentary Geology), Denver, p. 471-502.

Cross, T.A., 1993, The geosciences in review: Coal: Geotimes, v. 38, p. 12.

Cross, T.A., Baker, M.R., Chapin, M.A., Clark, M.S., Gardner, M.H., Hanson, M.S., Lessenger, M.A., Little,
L.D., McDonough, K.J., Sonnenfeld, M.D., Valasek, D.W., Williams, M.R., and Witter, D.N., 1993,
Applications of high-resolution sequence stratigraphy to reservoir analysis, in R. Eschard, and B. Doligez,
eds., Subsurface Reservoir Characterization from Outcrop Observations: Proceedings of the 7th IFP
Exploration and Production Research Conference: Paris, Technip, p. 11-33.

Gardner, M.H., and Cross, T.A., 1993, Incorporating depositional and preservational process systems in
reservoir characterization: Examples from the Upper Cretaceous Ferron Sandstone, Utah, USA, in R.
Eschard, and B. Doligez, eds., Subsurface Reservoir Characterization from Outcrop Observations:
Proceedings of the 7th IFP Exploration and Production Research Conference: Paris, Technip.

Sonnenfeld, M.D., and Cross, T.A., 1993, Volumetric partitioning and facies differentiation within the Permian
Upper San Andres Formation of Last Chance Canyon, Guadalupe Mountains, New Mexico, in R.G. Loucks
and J.F. Sarg, eds., Recent advances and applications of carbonate sequence stratigraphy: American
Association of Petroleum Geologists Memoir 57, p. 435-474.

Books and Book Contributions
Cross, T.A., 2002, Genetic Stratigraphy: Geological Publishing House, PRC, 253 p. (in Chinese).
Cross, T.A., Dodge, R.L., Howard, J.C., and Siraki, E.S., 1995, Basin Analysis: [HRDC, Boston, 210 p.

Cross, T.A., 1993, Foreword to Subsurface Reservoir Characterization from Outcrop Observations: Proceedings
of the 7th IFP Exploration and Production Research Conference: Paris, Technip, p. v-x.

Cross, T.A., and Raynolds, R.G., 1993, Illustration of Correlation Techniques, Facies Prediction and Reservoir
Compartment Identification through Genetic Stratigraphy—Gallup Sandstone and Mesa Verde Croup
(Cretaceous), Four-Corners Region, USA: Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists 1993 Fall Field Trip,
45 p.

Cross, T.A., 1993, Applications of High-Resolution Sequence Stratigraphy in Petroleum Exploration and

Production—Short Course Notes: Canadian Society of Petroleum Geologists, Calgary, Alberta, August 15,
1993, 290 p.

Cross, T. A., 1990, ed., Quantitative Dynamic Stratigraphy: New Jersey, Prentice Hall, 622 p.

Patents

Cross, T.A., and Lessenger, M.A., 2001, Method for predicting stratigraphy: U.S. Patent 6,246,963

Cross, T.A., and Lessenger, M.A., 2004, Method of predicting three-dimensional stratigraphy using inverse
optimization techniques: U.S. Patent 6,754,588

Professional Service

Editor-in-Chief, Contributions to Sedimentary Geology (1997-2006)
Associate editor, Journal of Sedimentary Research (1992-1998)
Associate editor, Sedimentary Geology (1988-current)

Associate editor, Geological Society of America Bulletin (1995-1999)
Associate editor, Bulletin of Canadian Petroleum Geology (1993-1996)
Associate editor, Geological Society of America Bulletin (1992-1995)
Associate editor, Basin Research (1990-1995)

Associate editor, Sedimentology (1986 - 6/91)

Professional Society Affiliations

162



Curriculum Vitae of T. A. Cross 6/2015

American Association of Petroleum Geologists
Geological Society of America (Fellow)

International Association of Sedimentologists

Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists

Society of Economic Paleontologists and Mineralogists
Coal Geology Division, Geological Society of America
Sedimentology Division, Geological Society of America

Page o

163



EXHIBIT
E-14

164

PENGAD-Bayonne, M. J.

Derrick Tokos

"From: Mona Linstromberg <lindym@peak.org>
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 10:12 PM
, To: Derrick Tokos
Cc: Sean Malone; Tim Gross
Subject: Fw: attachment included; sorry I forgot in first email - #2
Attachments: question about K&A Geotechnical Engineering Report.pdf

Derrick, please find attached Mr. Cross' comment submitted into the record for 1-SIR-1. Please enter into the
record for 1-GP-18.

>

Thank you,

Mona Linstromberg :
Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Tim Cross
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:56 AM
To: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.qov

Cc: lindym@peak.org

Subject: attachment included; sorry I forgot in first email




TO: Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director, City of Newport, OR

FROM: Timothy A. Cross, Homeowner, 1522 NW Spring St., Newport, OR

DATE: July 23,2018

SUBJECT: Objection to the slope stability conclusion reached in the Geotechnical
Engineering Report (June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc., pertaining
to Tax Lots 1800, 1900 and 1903

I have read this report with a focus on the geological assessment of potential
hazards on these properties, specifically on the assessment of land stability. K& A
Engineering used incorrect boundary assumptions in the slope stability equilibrium-
limit models they ran, which led to their recommendation that the study site was
stable.

I refer to their ‘Field-Developed Cross Section’ of the study site shown in Appendix A,
and the subsequent slope stability analyses of Appendix C. The cross section plots
the elevation of the top of the Nye Formation in borings B-1 and B-3, and establishes
the structural dip of the top of the Nye Formation as 13° to 15° to the west. This
structural dip is in complete agreement with all other structural dip values and
directions published on the 1976 geological map in the Newport region.

However, in assigning the boundary conditions for the computer model runs in their
slope stability analysis, they assumed that the structural dip of the Nye Formation
was approximately 0° instead of 13° to 15° to the west. There is absolutely no
justification for this change in dip. It is curious that the change in dip occurs at the
exact position of their borehole.

The projected 0° dip versus a projected 13° - 15° dip of the top of the Nye formation
results in a huge change in the overburden (“marine terrace” plus dune sand)
thickness and, therefore, a huge change in the volume of material susceptible to
mass movement. In the appended illustration I show the original ‘Field-Developed
Cross Section’ and a modified version with a 13° dip of the Nye Formation to the
west. In the original version, thin “marine terrace” sediments sit on a stable, solid,
sub-horizontal platform of Nye Formation. In the revised cross section, a thick,
westward-facing wedge of unconsolidated sediment sits on a westward-inclined
surface formed by the top of the Nye Formation. Alternations of more muddy and
less muddy sand/silt layers within the Nye formation provide potential slip surfaces
within the westward-dipping strata. Slip along such surfaces could easily provoke
instability and mass movement of overlying “marine terrace” sediment. The
westward-dipping top of the Nye Formation is another potential surface for slippage
and consequent mass movement of the overlying “marine terrace” sediment. Water
percolating through the unconsolidated sediment will pond on top of the
significantly less porous and permeable Nye Formation, and effectively lubricate
that surface. The increased volume of unconsolidated sediment above the Nye
Formation, in contrast to that calculated in the original ‘Field-Developed Cross
Section,’ increases the likelihood of mass failure should the toe-of-slope dune sand
be removed or reduced by erosion.

165



The K & A Geotechnical Engineering Report used the geometry of their cross section
as boundary conditions for their slope stability modeling. From their models, they
concluded that in the current static condition, the slope is stable. Inasmuch as the
geometry of their cross section is wrong, and therefore the boundary conditions for
their models are incorrect, the models are meaningless and their conclusions are
indefensible.

I hope this information is useful to you in your evaluation process. Please pass along
this concern to K & A Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. so they can recalculate the slope
stability probabilities using the more appropriate boundary conditions.

Sincerely,

Timothy A. Cross

303 885 8528 (mobile)
503 474 0322 (landline)

166



167

ANCIENT SLOPE MOVEMENT

_.| RECENTSHALLOW | _ __+ OLD | STREET
FILL

SCARP | 255"

FC-1/B-1
(FC-3/B-3

EXTENSION OF SILSTONE RIDGE
E. EDGE BEACH

—_——

0 EXIST. GROUND SURFCE
ASSUMED SURFACE OF SILTSTONE
SCALE: 1"=50'
GROUNDWATER =
Z
s
o s
@ gz
~ ~ w
i ol G}
U] Q
L] w
EXTENSION OF SILSTONE RIDGE

E. EDGE BEACH




= EXHIBIT [
| S
: E-15

Derrick Tokos g

From: John and Chris <honekiri@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 2:01 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: 1-GP-18 Lund Development Proposal

On page 7 of the Geologic Hazard Assessment by Gary C. Sandstrom, Geologist, which is page 49 of
the Geotechnical Report, he states in "Section 10.0 Conclusions" "erosion will eventually undercut the
cliff/bluff in the site vicinity, but in our opinion at a rate not likely to significantly effect the homesite
vicinity within the design life of the structure if the recommended mitigations are followed".

There is no legal definition of "the design life of the structure". While individual components of a
structure age and need to be replaced, as long as those components are maintained and replaced
when necessary a structure has no "design life" and can perform its function for hundreds of

years. Even in Newport, a relatively young city, there are already viable structures over 100 years
old.

Mr. Sandstrom's basis for his conclusion regarding erosion and undercutting is flawed by his

assumption of a "design life of the structure" as are any recommendations based on that
conclusion.

Please acknowledge receipt of this email and enter it into the record for application 1-GP-18. Thank you in advance.

Sincerely,
Chris Schneller
Spring Street Homeowner



: EXHIBIT
E-1lb

169

Derrick Tokos

From: John and Chris <honekiri@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 1:11 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: 1-GP-18 Lund Development Proposal

The Conceptual Site Plan in the 1-GP-18 decision packet shows water being collected from the areas of
development and routed to the lower level of the site near its boundaries with adjoining properties. There the
water is released to the ground at three locations at a "Storm Drain Energy Dissipater and Level Spreader for 20
Year Rain Event". Concentrating the water from the site development and releasing back at these locations
would put the adjoining properties at risk from saturated soils and potential surface runoff. If the development
were allowed to proceed, the City should require that all storm water from the development be collected and
routed offsite into the City's storm water system as is normally required for new development in the City.

Please acknowledge receipt of this email and enter it into the record for application 1-GP-18. Thank you in
advance.

Sincerely,
Chris Schneller
Spring Street Homeowner



170

Derrick Tokos

From: Anne Sigleo <asigleo@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 11:50 AM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Spring St Development File#1-GP-18
Mr Derrick Tokos

Community Development Director

City of Newport

169 SW Coast Hwy

Newport, Oregon 97365
Dear Mr Tokos,

I have read carefully the Geologic Report for File#1-GP-18 for Mr Lund by K&D Engineering, Inc and find that they have
done a thorough job of studying both the site and previous geological reports including those of DOGOMI and Schlicker &
Associates. My only addition would be a more complete description of the Beach Access Plan. | would strongly suggest to
Mr Lund that if he were to make restoring beach access a priority it would go a long way towards appeasing the
neighborhood concerns.

Sincerely Yours,

Anne C. Sigleo
Geoscientist (retired)
1541 NW Spring Street
Newport, Oregon 97365



EXHIBIT

D-1

PENGAD-Bayonns, N, J.

G lgnare x > B3 Meeting %7 gill Tracker £3 Ta Manager caRules (Y, E;. ib a’}) £ Find
ol < z & . ")d G- 3 Team Email v Done _ P Actions ~ i, tn b S R Y Relsted ~ %
) orwar 2 ow  Tran:
& lunk - Detete £pt) EA‘I):Y [E) More - (2 Reply & Defete £ Create New - ?ve Unraz’ad e?on_e ?Jp‘ ‘sae {3 Select = e
Delete Respond Quick Steps [ Move Tags 5 Editing Zoom
Wed 9/12/2018 4:29 P
Derrick Tokos howell97217 @gmail.com
Prezence unknoy
Planning Commission Hearing on
‘Blaine Karnes's  'MonaLndsbomberg;  Jamce Wikham  Chns’;  "Carla Perr @ ®. @ @ v M CTRCAPRIGmsn.com;  Cmurt_baumar hoo.com;  Hope Ruddell;  'Carol Remhard;  magpie995@yshoa.com’;  'Anne Hartung;  ‘Sean Malone’s  'Cameronla Folette’; ‘robertrenhardir @yahoo.com’;
To tee daviss  ‘howellg7217¢bgmat.cont; i d.com’;  ‘er ble g ‘bufus@charter.net’;  wefick@yahoo.com’;s  'pdbldr@nevportnet.com’;  joriynch k.01g’; imcogeacl.com’;  'ore bon.com’;  ‘mcdowelks 1@yshoo.com’;  ‘lnpd@msn.com';
rluther 12@charter.nat’; org’s  'winkergp: think.net;  ‘howe97217@gmal.com’;  kenhartung33@yahoo.com’;  kngn@peak.org;  bunkarbrent il.com’;  'magg e .com’

- File1-GP-18-A Natice.pdf
A= 177KE

Good afternoon,

to the P ing Cor ion, who will hald a public hearing at 7:00 pm on September
24% in the City Hall Council Chambers (169 SW Coast Hwy). individuals directly involved in the appeal or within the legal notice boundary would have received written notice of the hearing. For those of you that are not aware of the appeal hearing, attached is a copy of the notice.
ty wy pp 3 ¥ ppe: ng Py

You are receiving this email because you expressed interest in staying informed about Bill Lund’s development plans for property he purchased adjacent to NW Spring Street. His geologic permit has been app

This is what is referred to as a de novo (i.e. full evidentiary) hearing, meaning that you are weicome to attend and provide testimony as to why you believe the project does or does not meet the approval criteria. Relevant approval criteria are included in the notice.

Dervick 1. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

171



EXHIBIT

172

CITY OF NEWPORT D-3
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING!

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Planning Commission of the City of Newport, Oregon, will hold
a public hearing to consider an appeal of an administrative decision approving a Geological Permit Application (#1-
GP-18).

File No: # 1-GP-18-A

Appellants: Mona Linstromberg, Elaine Karnes, Christine Schneller, Robert Earle, Teresa Amen & Pat
Linstromberg (Power of Attorney, Leslie Hogan) (Sean Malone, Attorney, Authorized Agent).

Applicants: William Lund, P.O. Box 22, Seal Rock, Oregon 97376

Request: Appeal challenging the substantive elements of the applicant’s June 29, 2018 geologic report, prepared
by K&A Engineering, Inc., that concluded the site is suitable for the development of three home sites. Such report
was the basis of the approved Geologic Permit. A peer review report, by Columbia Geotechnical, dated August 15,
2018, was submitted in support of the appeal.

Location: West of NW Spring St (Lincoln County Assessor’s Tax Map 11-11-05-BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900 &
1903).

Applicable Criteria: City of Newport regulations for development within mapped geologic hazards areas are
contained in Chapter 14.21 of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC), and all standards listed in this chapter are
relevant to the permit application on appeal. Pursuant to NMC Chapter 14.21.050(D), an application for a geologic
permit must include a geologic report, prepared by a certified engineering geologist, establishing that the site is
suitable for the proposed development. Further, an engineering report, prepared by a licensed civil engineer,
geotechnical engineer, or certified engineering geologist (to the extent qualified), must be provided if engineering
remediation is anticipated to make the site suitable for the proposed development (NMC 14.21.050(E)). Guidelines
for the preparation of Geologic Reports are set forth in NMC 14.21.060 and require that reports be consistent with
generally accepted scientific and engineering principals, including minimum standards identified in cited
documents published by the Oregon State Board of Geologist Examiners and the Department of Land Conservation
and Development. Appellants challenging substantive elements of a geologic report are required to submit their
own analysis, prepared by a certified engineering geologist NMC 14.21.120).

Testimony: Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the criteria described above or other criteria in the
Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances which the person believes to apply to the decision; failure to
raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties an opportunity to respond to the issue
precludes an appeal based on that issue; submit testimony in written or oral form; send letters to Planning
Department (address under "Reports") by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing; oral testimony will be taken during the
course of the public hearing.

Reports: The staff report may be reviewed or a copy purchased at the Newport Community Development
Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, Oregon, 97365 seven days prior to the hearing. The
application materials and the applicable criteria are available for inspection at no cost or copies may be purchased
at this address.

Contact: Derrick Tokos, Planning Director, Community Development Department, (541-574-0629) (address
above).

Time/Place of Hearing: Monday, September 24, 2018; 7:00 p.m.; City Hall Council Chambers (address above).
MAILED: August31,2018.

PUBLISH: September 14, 2018/News-Times.

'This notice is being sent to affected property owners within 200 feet of the subject property (according to Lincoln County tax records), affected public utilities within Lincoln
County, and affected city departments.



THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY

Subject Properties
File No. -GP-I8-A

o S0 100 150 200 Feet

S.W.1/4 N.W.1/4 SEC.5 T.11S. R.11W. W.M.

LINCOLN COUNTY
1" = 100'

SEE MAP 11 1105 BB

SEE MAP 11 11 05

|
\ - 5 “
SEE
SUPP. MAP NW 15TH ST *
NO. 3 oue 31
A A, i
3 1200 15) 1100 100
SEE 3 g Cses3t 5
cS 8514 1300 S
SUPPLEMENTAL & §iits 3 65 2005 S cs2ms 48,
Cs 9184
MAP NO. 1 = No2 | nr 4
400 13
T R 2 2
i
SO Al7§ 4 J
' 34 12 3 400
1803 48  cswmr 3 3 ks [NV G 4 E 3
) b cszsee (I 2%}
: P L § e
T
1802 ’umos s 00 " 0% 0 A
; e 1 . e |, [Teo0csseR
= U v m—— . it N
1800 e :i i iZI () NW 14TH ST %
T2 i e - sy - a
3 2000 3| s &0 & s
L we 6 gy, S -
21w «  w]_2600 B R a
5 2601 . g
Q =
& ]
g 8t @
5 41
2
z T
2
z

'
1 [o13

| NW 13TH ST
Pt
ur-zni = 4006" " EH
3701 1
%
5 ] 6% cssrr! g Y
'
3 s 3700 1
-1/ 7 oot
f---- l‘l; TTETTETTTTTT " €s 1118
35 é"/ 3 35 * 8 cs 702 i 3%
-2 3 i
o g
d g N 3801 : 3 N
e 9 cssmi® g -
............ :
o ks o [s ®20
< s B iy "
J— NW 12TH ST 5
wasn

SEEMAP 11 1105CB

I '
116 COR |
]

[P N,

1111 05BC
NEWPORT

Cancelied
1000

1801

T3

NEWPORT
1111 05BC



AGATE BEACH CONSTRUCTION INC
PO BOX 39
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

BEWLEY LAURA SUE
393 NW CRESWELL LN
ALBANY, OR 97321

DELISEO PATRICIA A
1242 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

FRANK BROTHERS IMPLEMENT CO
ADDRESS UNKNOWN,

HOFER VANDEHEY ROBERTA
20481 WINLOCK LN
FOSSIL, OR 97830

LOOKOUT CONDOMINIUM THE
ASSOCIATION OF UNIT OWNERS
433 N COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MOSSBARGER JOHN T &
MOSSBARGER MARCIA L
PO BOX 1362
NEWPORT, OR 97365

PERKINS CAROL J
1417 NW THOMPSON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

REINHARD CAROL S TRUSTEE
21680 BUTTE RANCH RD
BEND, OR 97702

STARK NEAL E TRUSTEE
5034 SW VERMONT ST
PORTLAND, OR 97219

ANDERSON LONNA
PO BOX 6432
MIRAMAR BEACH, FL. 32550

CITY OF NEWPORT
CITY MANAGER
169 SW COAST HWY
NEWPORT, OR 97365

EARLE ROBERT M &
AMEN TERESA D
3684 FELTON ST S
SALEM, OR 97302

GAUVIN JEFFREY M
1409 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

LARSEN STAURT
PO BOX 1759
NEWPORT, OR 97365

MARTIN ELENA KAY
1405 NW THOMPSON ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

NEFF ROY S 1l
32655 GLAISYER HILL RD
COTTAGE GROVE, OR 97424

PESTANA JANICE &
PESTANA RICKY
2450 SE TAYLOR ST
PORTLAND, OR 97214

SOTILLE MATT &
SOTILLE KAREN
3574 SE GRANT ST
PORTLAND, OR 97214

STOROZHENKO OLENA
169 SE VIEW DR
NEWPORT, OR 97365

<
N~
i

BAUMAN MARY E
PO BOX 1355
NEWPORT, OR 97365

COLE RONALD SCOTT TRUSTEE
9127 NW HERON ST
SEAL ROCK, OR 97376

FAHRENDORF JOSEPH B TSTEE &
FAHRENDORF JANET M TSTEE
1143 MANOR DR
SONOMA, CA 95476

GREGORY DAVID E &
BENEDETTI CHRISTINE M
424 SW 297TH
FEDERAL WAY, WA 98023

LINSTROMBERG PAT JOAN TTEE
ATTN LESLIE HOGAN
931 WASHINGTON SW
ALBANY, OR 97321

MCDOWELL MINDY &
MCDOWELL SCOTT
6553 S MADISON CT

CENTENNIAL, CO 80121

ORANGE LINDA J &

HUFFMAN ARDIS L

1420 NW SPRING ST

NEWPORT, OR 97365

POPE MAX A & ROBERTA |
PO BOX 86
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SPECTRUM PROPERTIES LLC
301 S REDWOOD ST
CANBY, OR 97013

WAFFENSCHMIDT JOHN L &
SCHNELLER CHRISTINE C
1234 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365



WETHERILL JAMES G &
WETHERILL LANA R
25804 NE OLSON RD

BATTLE GROUND, WA 98604

KARNES ELAINE
PO BOX 1754
NEWPORT, OR 97365

WHALES SPOUT CONDOMINIUM
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
370 SW COLUMBIA
BEND, OR 97702

LINSTROMBERG MONA
831 EBUCKCKRD
TIDEWATER, OR 97390

Exhibit “A”
Adjacent Property Owners Within 200 FT

File No. 1-GP-18-A

Lo

N~
—
WILLETT CONRAD J &
GAILE

1426 NW SPRING ST
NEWPORT, OR 97365

SEAN MALONE, ATTORNEY
259 E 5™ AVE
EUGENE, OR 97401



Email: Lisa Phipps
DLCD Coastal Services Center
lisa.phipps@state.or.us

Joseph Lease
Building Official

Victor Mettle
Code Administrator/Planner

Ted Smith
Library

Oregon Dept of Parks & Recreation

By email
park.info@oregon.gov

Rob Murphy
Fire Chief

Mark Miranda
Police Chief

Jim Protiva
Parks & Rec

EXHIBIT ‘B’
(Affected Agencies)

176

Oregon Division of State Lands

775 Summer St NE

Salem OR 97310-1337

Tim Gross
Public Works

Mike Murzynsky
Finance Director

Spencer Nebel
City Manager

(1-GP-18-A)



Tax Lots 1800, 1900 & 1903 200 Ft Adj acent Property Owners

Negg:znz 4 pou A0 R L
MAP Y NW 15th St o

G :35?
1013’
2 ® (32000 EE8’%‘1600

93.33° F Yy

3 2100 ““ i
by o

44;07 o 5 3f 1500 z

93.332" 2200 '; ‘K

200, 11 "10 1400

. 6@933- J_ w 12@ 67'
T {,'

%mm

4

W’TH@WSON ST 8l

qg S 16, 53400
SS0E oo QP\@&\})?TH ST L
: ? 58 C”*"“\\\ 1250207
______ e N 78503 4 58100 5
TR — 7 . _;, 25500 _.' 4200
0 83 700 & 5°02 en £300

1250

0702 &‘Pﬁ

1250

NIt NWL 12TH s11-
135

MEh === % |80 [ 65 o ; ) g
~~~~~~ 5 510 <O .
al il &ORS’OQ J 2 Leof o uo~55 175
i 5802

E;%
: 11301 | 2? 2

7
U209 302 . 801
\ 22

1

8
9

A SPRING §

Printed 08/31/2018
Lincoln County government use only. Use for any other purpose is entirely at the risk of the user.

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. Users should review the primary information sources to ascertain their usablllty



CITY OF NEWPORT
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING

The Planning Commission of the City of Newport, Oregon, will hold a public hearing to consider an appeal of an
administrative decision approving a Geological Permit Application (#1-GP-18) submitted by Mona Linstromberg, Elaine
Karnes, Christine Schneller, Robert Earle, Teresa Amen & Pat Linstromberg (Power of Attorney, Leslie Hogan)(Sean
Malone, Attorney, Authorized Agent) for an appeal challenging the substantive elements of the applicant’s June 29, 2018
geologic report, prepared by K&A Engineering, Inc., that concluded the site is suitable for the development of three home
sites. Such report was the basis of the approved Geologic Permit. A peer review report, by Columbia Geotechnical, dated
August 15, 2018, was submitted in support of the appeal. The property is located West of NW Spring St (Lincoln County
Assessor’s Tax Map 11-11-05-BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900 & 1903). City of Newport regulations for development within
mapped geologic hazards areas are contained in Chapter 14.21 of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC), and all standards
listed in this chapter are relevant to the permit application on appeal. Pursuant to NMC Chapter 14.21.050(D), an
application for a geologic permit must include a geologic report, prepared by a certified engineering geologist,
establishing that the site is suitable for the proposed development. Further, an engineering report, prepared by a licensed
civil engineer, geotechnical engineer, or certified engineering geologist (to the extent qualified), must be provided if
engineering remediation is anticipated to make the site suitable for the proposed development (NMC 14.21.050(E)).
Guidelines for the preparation of Geologic Reports are set forth in NMC 14.21.060 and require that reports be consistent
with generally accepted scientific and engineering principals, including minimum standards identified in cited documents
published by the Oregon State Board of Geologist Examiners and the Department of Land Conservation and
Development. Appellants challenging substantive elements of a geologic report are required to submit their own analysis,
prepared by a certified engineering geologist (NMC 14.21.120). Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the
criteria described above or other criteria in the Comprehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances which the person
believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the city and the parties an
opportunity to respond to that issue precludes an appeal, including to the Land Use Board of Appeals, based on that issue.
Testimony may be submitted in written or oral form. Oral and written testimony will be taken during the course of the
public hearing. Letters to the Community Development/Planning Department, City Hall, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport,
OR 97365, must be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the hearing or be personally entered into the record during the
hearing. The hearing will include a report by staff, testimony (both oral and written) from those in favor or opposed to the
application, rebuttal by the applicant, and questions and deliberation by the Planning Commission. Pursuant to ORS
197.763 (6), any person prior to the conclusion of the initial public hearing may request a continuance of the public
hearing or that the record is left open for at least seven days to present additional evidence, arguments, or testimony
regarding the application. The staff report may be reviewed or a copy purchased at the Newport Community Development
Department seven days prior to the hearing. The application materials, the applicable criteria, and other file materials are
available for inspection at no cost; or copies may be purchased for reasonable cost at the above address. Contact Derrick
Tokos, Community Development Director, (541) 574-0626, d.tokos@newportoregon.gov (mailing address above).

FOR PUBLICATION ONCE ON FRIDAY, September 14, 2018)



e M

“pe siaar UUIDET Nas more

the team must do like run- than doubled and more play-
ning a mile, doing burpeesor ers are on the way.

several minutes of

planking. “I got two that need to get

After a handball was com- their paperwork, and I’m like

game 1 school history.

“It feels good,” Fruechte
said. “We did it so we are al]
proud of each other that we
were able to pull off the win.”

NEws & T
SUBSCRIBE

541-265-

8571

FRIDAY

EDITION:d gé
5:00pm Tuesday
'00;;'“0“

NOTICE OF SHERIFF'S
SALE #18-1436
On October 2, 2018, at
the hour of 10:00 a.m.,
at the Lincoln Counw
Sheriff's Office, 225
(C:)‘l:;e fStl\i Rm I?toao in the
of New, on,
the defendant's rier?ter-
est will be sold, subject
to redemption, in the
real propert commonly
known as: 6340 N. High-
way 101, Otis, OR 97368,
The court case number is
17CV48999,  JP. Mor-
an Mort?atgffef( l}cqulletlon
., plaintiff(s) vs. Bran-
dloﬁ gﬁh’van; Parties in
Possession, defendanty(s).
This is a public auction
to the highest bidder for
cash or cashier's check,
in hand. For more details
go to http://www.oregon-
sheriffssales.org/county/
lincoin/
A-24, A-31, S-07, S-14
(87-14).

REQUEST FOR
QUOTATIONS
The Port of Newport is

PuBLIC NOTICEsS

requesting competitive  are described below.
guotatlons for hydraulic  Bids for cash payment will
redging at the NOAA be accepted until 10:00
Marine OPeratlons Cen-  am, September 20, 2018.
ter — Pacific Facility start- Interested parties may
ing November 2018. The contact Longview Hilis
Scope of work includes Manager at (541)265-
maintenance dredging 3576 to make arrange-
of 22,900 cubic yards to ments to inspect e
the design depths speci-  home. Bids may be sub-
ed in the Joint Permit mitted to 1Lor})gvnew Hills
application. Bids are due MHC, LLC, 1450 NE 58th
by October 1st, 2018, Street, Newport, Oregon
Aﬁ RFQ documents can 97365, for the follow-
be found at https://www. ing home: 11980 Gold-
portofnewport.com/bids-  en West Homes, Home

rfps.php ID #263686, X-Plate
S-7,'8-14 (03-1 4) #X210641, manufacturer's
ID #CC662R4AB:; located

PUBLIC SALE at 1638 NE 50th Street,

Safe-Lock Storage locat-  Space 38, Newport, Ore-
ed at 3639 SE Ash St, ?on 97365; owner/tenant:
South Beach, OR 97368 Betty Lucille Owens,
will hold a public fore- Jack Lavid Owens, David
closure sale on Saturday, Owens, personal repre-
September 29 at 10:00  sentative.

Al\f Personal property of  S-7,5-14 (12-14)

the following people will

be sold:

D03~ Carl Johnson, H1g RIN
Maarzﬁnw'?ggsﬁeggnsﬁgﬁ Tfheﬂi: !al‘(l_?lltng Cf°"'{"'m555i%"
i I of the of Newport,
tioned above may contact Oregon, will hold a Bub-

us prior to the sale at ; s
lic hearing to consider
ggs’ag{gﬁogh 4, S-1g an appealgof an adminis-
(06-'19) ' ' trative decision approv-
: Apicationdfesl Lo
T ication -GP-
NOTICE OF saLe RN (E1-GP.18)
OF ABANDONED stromberg, Elaine Karnes,
MANUFACTURED Christine “Schneller, Rob-
HOME ert Earle, Teresa Amen &
1longview Hills MHC, Pat Linstromberg (Power

LLC will sell the below- of Attorney, Leslie Hogan)
described manufactured Sean Malone, Attorney,
home b{ private sealed uthorized Agent? for an
bid for the highest offer apgeal challenging  the
received. The home has sy stantive elements of
been abandoned. The the applicant's June 29,
home, tenant and owner 2018 geologic report, pre-

Cl/ltl'lg

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC
G

home sites. Such report  includin

deep 1nto the set. It wasn’t
until the very end that To-
ledo was able to pull away
with a 25-18 win. Otis said
the team became a little
tired, but head coach Crys-
tal Taylor saw something
else.

“T don’t want to say that
they got comfortable” the
first-year head coach said.
“But we have to be more dijs-
ciplined in that third set to
make sure that we take care
of the ball”

The Boomers have now
won four-straight after win-
ning only two of their first
five games. .

ared by K8A Engineer- and require thatreportsbe il include a report by
ng, Inc., that concluded  consistent with g
the site is suitable for accepted scient
the development of three engineerin

enerally  staff, testimony (both oral
fic and and written) from those in
g principals, favor or opposed to the
minimum stan- application, rebuttal by

was the basis of the dards Identified in cited the applicant, and ques-

apProved Geologic Per- documents
mit. A peer review report, the Oregon
by Columbia Geotech- Geologist Ex

ublished by  tions and deliberation by
tate Board of  the Planning  Commis-
aminers and  sion, Pursuant to ORS

nical, dated August 15, the Department of Land 197.763 (6), any person
2018, was submitted in Conservation and Devel- rior to the conclusion of
support of the appeal. The opment. Appellants chal- he initial public hearing

y Is located West lenging su|

stantive ele- may uest a continu-

propert )
of NW Spring St {Lincoln  mentsofa geologic report  ance of the public hearin,
County Assessor's Tax are required to submit or that the record is ;eﬁ
Map 11-11-05-BC, Tax their own analysis, pre-  open for at least seven
Lots 1800, 1900 & 1903).  pared by a certified engi- days to present additional

City of Newport reguia- neering " geolol
CF J 14.21.128).

tions  for eveiopment

within mapped geologic  and evidence
hazards areas are con- directed toward

st (NMC evidence, arguments, or
stimony testimony regarding the
must be  application: ~The staff
the cri-  rgport may be reviewed

tained in Chapter 14.21 terla described above or or a copy purchased at
of the NeVépo Municipal  other criteria in the Com-  the Newport Community

Code (NM

and all stan-  prehensive Plan and it Development Department

dards listec) in this chap- implementing ordinances seven days prior to the
ter are relevant to the per- which the person believes hearing. The application
mit application on appeal.  to apply to the decision, materials, the applicable
Pursuant to NMC Chapter  Failure to raise an issue criteria, and other file

14.21.050(D), an applica-  with sufficiey
tion for a geologic permit ity to afford

must include a geologic  the parties an o
report, prepared by a cer-  to respond to
tified engineering~ geolo- precludes
gist, estal lishing that the  includin to the Lan

nt specific-  materials are available for
the city and  inspection at no cost; or
portunity  copies may be purchased
hat issue  for reasonable cost at the
an agpﬁgé above address. Contact

Derrick Tokos, Communi-

site is suitable for the Board of Appeals, based tg Development Director,
(541

Erﬂ)osed development.  on that issu
urther, an engineer-  may be sub

e. Testimony
mitted in writ- newportoregon.gov {mail-

) 574-0626, d.tokos@

ingfi report, prepared by ten or oral form. Oral and ing address above).
a lic - 1

ensed civil engineer,  written testimony will be
the course
Cc hearing. ———

geotechnical engineer, or taken durin
e Commu- BOARD MEETING

Certified engineering geol-  of the pul
ogist (to the extent quaii-  Letters to th,

14 (10-14)

fied), must be provided  nity Develo ment/Plan- Community Services
if engineering remediation nin?1Depa ment, City  Consortium's Governing

is anticipate to make the  Haj
site sui

posed development (NMC ~ be received b
14.21.050(E)).  Guidelines the day of {
for the preparation of  or be personally entere
Geologic Reports are set into the reco
forth iIn NMC 14.21.060 the hearing. T

69 SW Coast Hwy, Board meeting will be
able for the pro- Newport, OR 97365, must  held Monday,” Septem-
5:00 p.m. ber 24,2018, "at 10:00am
I} hearing in the Newport regional

Office Hilan Castie Con-

rd during  ference Room at 120 NE
he hearing Avery Street. The meet-

Do s 1eSE ana ASTHIA Knott leap for a block during
Toledo’s 3-0 win over Myrtle Point on Tuesday, Sept. 11.
(Photo courtesy of Aaron Wawrak)

“I think that they are re-
ally starting to play togeth-
er, calling the ball and doing
the things that we are ask-
ing them to do” Taylor said.
“Defensively we have really
worked hard to make sure
that they are ready for any
type of ball that comes over
the net. They are talking.
Offensively they are setting
each other up really well and
they are working together.”

The challenge now for the
Boomers with the remain-

a t

tal Budget #1 for Fiscal change is

in a?enda will address 14.36.010, the Commis-
on of Su}:)plemen- slon must find that the atthe public hearing. The
required by proposed code amend-

ing schedule coming against
league opponents is keeping
that same energy and excite-
ment for the rest of the sea-
son to keep their postseason
hopes alive. But Otis isn’t
worried about that,

“We all have that energy
and passion for this game
that other teams don’t have,”
she said. “Our chemistry to-
gether, we just make each
other excited for anything
and that will help us in fu-
ture games.”

sented during testimony

Year 2018-19, among  public necessity and the ments, additional mate-

other matters. The meetf- general welfare of the rig| for the amendments,

ing is open to the public; fommunity In order for it  and any other material in
)

all interested persons are

welcome to attend, tion to the Cit
5 that the amen

adgpted. Testimony and Development Department
ence mustbe directed  (address above). Contact
tow?l';d thﬁ‘reque'st ﬁ'%?ve errick Tokos, Communi-
i ; or other criteria, inc| ng t
ties Health District Board criteria | within iha Com> (g
rehensive Plan and its al X
g ordinances, S-14 (18-14)

S-14 (04-14)

__PUBLIC NOTICE evi
The Pacific  Communi-

of Directors will hold a

Regular meeting on Mon- ﬁnpi oot

make a recommenda- the file may be reviewed

Council or a Copy purchased at
ments be  the Newport Community

Development Director
41) 574-0626 (address
bove)

day, September 17, at which the person believes

4:00 p.m. in the Educa-
gon Cg_;nfer%nce,rﬂo%m at
amaritan Pacific Com- 3
munities Hospital, 930 With suffi

fo_apply to the decision. NOTICE OF SHERIFF's
Fallure to raise an issue SALE #18-1517
iclent specific- On October 23, 2018, at

SW Abbey St., Newport, !ty to afford the city and the hour of 10:00a.m.. at

Oregon. The meeting
agenda includes meeting
minutes, financial reports
and facilité reports.
/s/Lisa ly,  Recorder.

the parties an o
to respond to
prelcg.gdest tﬁn 0 ap ﬁal,

meluding to the Land Use of  Newport, Oregon,
Board of Appeais, based the defe’:ldant's lr?ter-

portunity  1ho |incoin county Sher-

that ISSUS itps office, 925 Olive

St., Rm 203, in the clty

PACIFIC COMMl%NITIES on that issue. Testimony est will be sold, subject
C

HEALTH DISTRI

may be  submitted in to redemption,” in the

For additional information ~ Written or oral form. Oral real property commonly
contact 541-574-1803 or ‘95""10"3' Wa"'l‘dbewtgﬁgg known as: 3174 NE Johna

testimon

Wwww.pchdistrict.org. H Loop, Neotsu, OR 97364.
§ - during the course of the
S-14 87 14) public hearing. The hear- ,E“", ;83"4‘6(?22,5 ﬂ‘;’{}gﬁf

ing ma% include a

o 0
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC
HEARING by sta

star Mortgage LLC D/B/A

re&;)rt
testimony  from Mr. Coop, plaintifi(s) vs.

the applicant and fbo- JamesA.Fossum, Patrions

The Newport Planning ponents, testimony

Commission will hold a opponents,

continued public hearing the applicant
on Monday, S;e&t)ember tions gﬁd deliberation by

24, 2018, at P-M.  the Plannin,

Ann Fossum; Wells Fargo

rebuttal by Bank, N.A.; Occupants of
, and ques- the Property defec?dam(s).

This is a public auction

Commission. to the highest bidder for

in the CGity Hal Councii Written testimony sent to cash or cashiers check.

Chambers™ to consider i
File No. 3--18, revisions },’}2,,?‘}',;‘,;’;,“,:}',?
to the Newport Municipal ment, City Hal

Code (NMC) 14.01.020 (ot Fiwy,

velop- 1 nd. For more details

ﬁ) Depart- 7 go http://www.oregon-

169 Sw sherlffssales.org/county/

Newport, OR lincoln/

and 14.03.060 to provide 97365, must be received
for extended stay hotel by 5:00 p.m. the day of (S1g—?)'5 )8-21, S-28, 0-05
and motel uses. Pursu- iy hearing to be included

ant to Newport Munici- s part o

the hearing or [’1"“'.?"{??‘-‘,’}"‘1?".‘“{*1‘3*'?:‘:"*.”“1
MR weg

a
pal Code (NMC) Section must be personally pre- |

179

« s s a AR



Derrick Tokos

80

EXHIBIT S

Ceil

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dear Mr. Tokos,

PENGAD-Bayonne, N. J.

Sean Malone <seanmalone8@hotmail.com>
Tuesday, July 31, 2018 3:03 PM

Derrick Tokos; Elaine Karnes; Mona Linstromberg
Appeal of Geologic Permit # 1-GP-18

I am writing to confirm that | represent the appellants in the appeal of Geologic Permit #1-GP-18. My contact
information and phone number are below my signature. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to

contact me.
Thank you,

Sean Malone

Attorney at Law

259 E. Fifth Ave.

Suite 200-C

Eugene, OR 97401

ph. 303.859.0403
seanmalone8@hotmail.com




EXHIBIT &
—
¢-2

Derrick Tokos

PENGAD-Bayonne, N. J.

—
From: James Hogan <qwizats@peak.org>
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 9:31 AM
To: Derrick Tokos
Subject: appeal of approved geotechnical report, 1-gp-18

Dear Derrick Tokos:

Pat Linstromberg wants to sign on to the the appeal of the approved Geotechnical Report, 1-GP-18. She
received notice from the City.

|, Leslie Hogan, have Pat Linstromberg's (mother) Power of Attorney.
Pat Linstromberg can be reached in care of me at the following address:
931 Washington St. SW

Albany, OR 97321

Phone 541-924-0130
email gwizats@peak.org




= EXHIBINS
e =
Derrick Tokos g
From: Teresa Amen <teresa.amen22@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 9:44 AM
To: Derrick Tokos
Subject: Re: Response to notice of Decision and City of Newport Public Notice

Derrick Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

July 31, 2018

Mr. Tokos,

Robert Earle and I, Teresa Amen, property owners of 1320 NW Spring St., Newport, OR, are e-mailing you to
be added to the Land Use Application submitted to appeal File Number 1-GP-18, regarding property west of
Spring St., Tax Assessor's Map Number 11-11-05-BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900 & 1903.

Our contact information is as follows:
Robert Earle
Teresa Amen

Mailing address:
3684 Felton St. S
Salem, OR 97302

Phone Numbers:

Cell 503-580-5972 - Robert Earle
Cell 503-551-5982 - Teresa Amen
Home 503-585-2681

E-mail address:
Teresa. Amen22@Gmail.com

If you have any questions, or concerns regarding this request please contact us ASAP.
Respectively,

Robert Earle
Teresa Amen

On Mon, Jul 30, 2018 at 8:59 AM, Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@newportoregon.gov> wrote:

Hi Teresa,



™
(e ]

-
Please accept this response as confirmation that your email and the attached letter are included in the case record of
both permit applications.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: Teresa Amen [mailto:teresa.amen22 @gmail.com]

Sent: Sunday, July 29, 2018 3:33 PM

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>

Subject: Response to notice of Decision and City of Newport Public Notice

Mr. Tokos,

Attached is the response to the Notice of Decision and City Of Newport Public Notice regarding property to
the west of NW Spring St.

Please note the response includes three property owners, who live in their dwellings and DO NOT rent them
for income. We have each owned our properties for many years. An example of the years we have owned our
properties, the property owned by my husband, Robert Earle, and I has been in his family since 1970.

We are each sincerely concerned about the proposed development and the negative impact to the community
and all neighboring properties.

Please submit the attached as comments to File Number 1-GP-18 and File Number 1-SIR-18.

Thank-you,



Teresa Amen

& Virus-free. www.avast.com

184



EXHIBIT

[Kp}
o0}
i
City of Newport OF Newpg
Land Use Application JUL 5 , RT
Applicant Name(s): Property Owner Name(s) if other than applicant RECEI"VEA
(see attachment #1) William Lund o
Applicant Mailing Address: Property Owner Mailing Address:
(#1) PO Box 22, SealRock, OR 97376
Applicant Phone No. Property Owner Phone No.
(#1) 541-979-9560
Applicant Email Property Owner Email
(#1) wlund_albany@yahoo.com

Authorized Representative(s): Person authorized to submit and act on this application on appiicant’s behalf

(see attachment #2)

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

(#2)

Authorized Representative Telephone No.

(#2)

Authorized Representative Email. (ﬁ 2)

Project Information

Property Location: Street name if oddress # not assigned

west of NW Spring St.

Tax Assessor’s Map No.: 11-11-05-BC Tax Lot(s): 1800, 1900, 1903

Zone Designation: Legal Description: Add additional sheets if necessery

Comp.Plan Designation:

Brief description of Land Use Request(s):
Examples:

1 Mo erty fine 5 feet south Appeal Decision #1-GP-18 (attachment #3)

2. Variance of 2 feet from the required 15-foot
front vard setback

Existing Structures: if any

Topography and Vegetation:

sloping shoreland, native trees & vegetation, black berries

Application Type (please check all that apply)

[J Annexation [ Interpretation [[] UGB Amendment
Appeal [J minor Replat [] vacation
[[] Comp Plan/Map Amendment [ Partition [[] variance/Adjustment
[] Conditional Use Permit [[] Planned Development [Clec

rc D Property Line Adjustment DStaff

[ staff [C]Shoreland Impact [ zone ord/Map
D Design Review E Subdivision H Amendment
L__] Geologic Permit Temporary Use Permit Other

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No. Assigned: "G?QM‘%"A

Date Received: 7 [77, I l 6 Fee Amount: ﬁgga’ Date Accepted as Complete:
Received By: D"T Receipt No. (21_‘ &O Accepted By:

City Hall
169, SW Coast Hwy
Newport, OR 97365
541.574.0629

Page 1



186

I understand that | am responsible for addressing the legal criteria relevant to my application and that the
burden of proof justifying an approval of my application is with me. | also understand that this responsibility

is independent of any opinions expressed in the Community Development & Planning Department Staff
Report concerning the applicable criteria.

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all information provided in this application is accurate.

Olodirie dedatlo 751/z08
pr 7&‘”‘% 7/ 31 /2018
AN e =

Y3/ 20.®
ApptieaitSignature(s) Date Signed
Property Owner Signature(s) Date Signed
Authorized Representative Signature(s) Date Signed

Please note application will not be accepted without all applicable signatures.

Please ask staff for a list of application submittal requirements for your specific type of request.

JUL 31 2018
i RECEIvEp

Community Development & Planning Department® 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365» Derrick |. Tokos, AICP, Director

110



City of Newport

Land Use Application

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE - COMPLETE ALL BOXES - USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NEEDED

N~

00—
r I rint Form

Applicant Name(s):

Property Owner Name(s):

Applicant Mailing Address:

Property Owner Mailing Address:

Applicant Telephone No.:

E-mail:

Property Owner Telephone No.:

E-mail:

Authorized Representative(s):

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

Authorized Representative Telephone No.:

E-Mail:

Project Information

Property Location:

Tax Assessor's Map No.:

Zone Designation:

Comp Plan Designation:

Legal Description:

Tax Lot(s):

n

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):

Existing Structures:

Topography and Vegetation:

APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

Date Received:

Received By:

File No. Assigned:

D Temporary Use Permit
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Fee Amount;

Receipt No.:

D Annexation [:l Interpretation |:| UGB Amendment
D Appeal l:l Minor Replat [ vacation
] Comp Plan/Map Amendment (] Partition ] Variance/Adjustment
(] Conditional Use Permit (] Planned Development [Clrc
Lec (1 property Line Adjustment [ staf
D Staff D Shoreland Impact D Zone Ord/Map Amendment
J Design Review )
D Geologic Permit [:l pieisen D Other

Date Accepted as Complete:

Accepted By:

Community Development & Planning Department= 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365+

1/10

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director




Attachment #1 to Appeal of #1-GP-18

Applicant Name

Applicant Mailing Address
Applicant Telephone No.
Applicant E-mail

Mona Linstromberg

831 E. BuckCk. Rd., Tidewater, OR 97390
541-528-3512

lindym@peak.org

Elaine Karnes

P.0. Box 1754, Newport, OR 97365
541-961-0340

karnese@peak.org

Christine Schneller

1234 NW Spring St, Newport OR 97365
541-265-9882

honekiri@gmail.com

Robert Earle &

Teresa Amen

3684 Felton St. S, Salem OR 97302
teresa.amen22@gmail.com

Pat Linstromberg

(Power of Attorney, Leslie Hogan)

931 Washington SW, Albbany, OR 97321
541-924-0130

qwizats@peak.org

188



Attachment #2 to Appeal of #1-GP-18

Authorized Representative
Authorized Representative Mailing Address
Authorized Representative Telephone No.

Authorized Representative E-mail

Sean Malone, Attorney
259 E 5th Ave, Eugene, OR
303-859-0403

seanmalone8@hotmail.com

189



Attachment #3 to Appeal of #1-GP-18
(Application Submittal Requirements)
(1)  #1-GP-18,July 16,2018

(2)  Standingto Appeal: Since there was no notice allowing public comment or
public hearing allowing public comment, the appellants are relying on our standing
as aggrieved parties and affected neighbors. Applicants have issued comment to
the record on an associated application.

(3)  The appellants contend that the Geologic Engineering Report and Geologic
Hazards Assessment (dated June 29,2018, prepared by Michael Remboldt and Gary
Sandstrom) contains inconsistencies, errors and omissions. The appellants will
submit a geologic report and citizen comment to support the appeal.

(4) Appeal to be heard de novo.

190



EXHIBIS
—

&1

Derrick Tokos

From: Teresa Amen <teresa.amen22@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, July 29, 2018 3:33 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Response to notice of Decision and City of Newport Public Notice
Attachments: Derrick Tokos.docx

Mr. Tokos,

Attached is the response to the Notice of Decision and City Of Newport Public Notice regarding property to the
west of NW Spring St.

Please note the response includes three property owners, who live in their dwellings and DO NOT rent them for
income. We have each owned our properties for many years. An example of the years we have owned our
properties, the property owned by my husband, Robert Earle, and I has been in his family since 1970.

We are each sincerely concerned about the proposed development and the negative impact to the community
and all neighboring properties.

Please submit the attached as comments to File Number 1-GP-18 and File Number 1-SIR-18.

Thank-you,
Teresa Amen

Virus-free. www.avast.com



City of Newport
Att: Derrick Tokos

Community Development Director

Newport, Oregon 97365

Date: July 28, 2018

192

Subject: Development Proposal File Number 1-GP-18 and the Shoreland Resources Impact Review File

Number 1-SIR-18

Dear Mr. Tokos,

We are writing in regards to the proposed development of the area west of NW Spring St. ( Lincoln
County Assessor’s Tax Map 11-11-05-BC, Tax Lots 1800, 1900 & 1903) in the documented geologic

hazard area and adjacent to an outstanding ocean shorelands natural area.

We strongly believe the proposed development will have a negative impact on the public health, safety

and welfare, endangers the street and neighboring homes.

Respectively,

Robert Earle

Teresa Amen

1320 NW Spring St.
Newport, Oregon 97365

Mary Bauman
1310 NW Spring St.
Newport, Oregon 97365

Nancy Luther
1312 NW Thompson St.
Newport, Oregon 97365



™
EXHIBIO
-2

Derrick Tokos

From: Brent bunker <bunkerbrent1956@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, July 27, 2018 5:16 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Spring Street development

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

It is sad to see that someone wants to build on something that had been used by the public as a beach access for
the neighborhood that I have lived in for the past 29 years. It seems that it would be an eyesore and doesn’t
look like a stable area. I have seen lots of changes in the geology of the area since I have lived here. Hope it
doesn’t happen. Brent Bunker



Derrick Tokos

From: Ann Howell <howell97217@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, July 27, 2018 3:54 PM

To: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Bill Lund and his project in Nye Beach

The DispatchLike Page
November 13, 2012 -

Vanishing Ocean City With Bunk Mann
(A Continuing Series Looking Back At Ocean City’s Rich History.)

Legendary developer James B. Caine built his summer home known as “Crystal House” directly on the beach just north of the Carousel Hotel in
1968. The cottage featured a living room with a fountain in the middle, three bedrooms and three bathrooms with sunken tubs and square toilets.
Built on piling, the Crystal House extended into the surf during high tides.

Caine’s cottage created controversy from the beginning and played a role in arguments about public beach access vs. private ownership rights. Bobby
Baker of the Carousel Hotel and Washington, D.C. political fame unsuccessfully filed suit to have it declared a public nuisance and torn down.

Caine sold the house in the 1980s and the State of Maryland bought it from a later owner. In July of 1990, the state had it quietly removed and today
no trace of the Crystal House remains on the beach at 118th Street.

Photo courtesy Ann Showell

Mr Tokos,
At the public meeting held a while ago for the neighborhood to hear about
Mr. Lund's plans and offer some thoughts, I spoke about a house in Ocean

City, Maryland, and suggested that just because you can, doesn't mean you
should.

He is a brief article about that house.



o)
o
—

c

I still feel this way about Mr. Lund's houses, even more so, since ther
were some earthquakes recently off the southern Oregon Coast.

I know there are lots of other opportunities in Newport/Nye and wish Mr
Lund could finance one of them instead.

Sincerely,
Ann Howell
1535 NW Hurbert St



EXHIBIT &

B-4

1

Derrick Tokos

From: John Waffenschmidt <honekiri@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, July 27, 2018 9:37 AM

To: Derrick Tokos

Cc: rkinion@co.lincoln.or.us

Subject: Re: Jump Off Joe County Road

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Derrick,

Thank you for your response. The way I am understanding what you said is that permits to use the county road
must be obtained, but not until after the geologic review is final.
Chris Schneller

On Jul 26, 2018, at 3:04 PM, Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@newportoregon.gov> wrote:

Hi Chris,

Please accept this response as confirmation that | received your email and that it is a part of the official
record. The geologic permit that you reference was found to have satisfied the approval
standards. That decision will be final, if not appealed, on July 31, 2018.

Recommendations contained in geologic reports inform the engineering and design that goes into the
preparation of construction drawings and specifications, which is what Mr. Lund will have to submit, and
the City and County Public Works Departments will review, if and when the geologic report becomes
final. That is why geologic reviews occur before applicants obtain road access permits.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: John and Chris [mailto:honekiri@gmail.com]
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 9:21 AM

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@ NewportOregon.gov>
Cc: rkinion@co.lincoln.or.us
Subject: Fwd: Jump Off Joe County Road

Derrick,

Mr. Lund has applied to the City for a Geologic Hazard Permit for his development on Spring
Street. It is my understanding that before Mr. Lund could access his property from the County
Road as outlined in his Geologic Hazard Permit application he would have to obtain a road
access permit from Lincoln County. Mr. Lund's application also described construction of a road

1



bed and retaining walls within the County Road Right of Way. I understand that such
construction would also require a permit from the County.

Below is an email from Roy Kinion, Lincoln County Public Works Director, responding to my
inquiry as to if Mr. Lund had applied for a permit for access onto Jump Off Joe County Road or
for a permit for construction in the County Road Right of Way. Mr. Kinion states that the
County has not received applications for the permits.

Since Mr. Lund has not applied for either permit and both would be required for Mr. Lund to
proceed with the development as specified in his application it would seem premature for the
City to process the application for a Geologic Hazard Permit until such time as the County
approves permits for access onto and construction within the County Road.

In addition, it should be noted that without the permits from the County, the application fails to
meet the standard outlined in Newport Municipal Code 14.21.070 (A(2)) "Properties shall
possess access of sufficient width and grade to permit new buildings to be relocated or
dismantled and removed from the site."

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this matter.
Please send an acknowledgment of receiving this email.

Sincerely,
Chris Schneller
Spring Street homeowner

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Roy Kinion <rkinion@co.lincoln.or.us>
Date: Tue, Jul 24, 2018 at 3:30 PM

Subject: Re: Jump Off Joe County Road

To: John and Chris <honekiri ail.com>

Mr. Lund has not applied for any access permits or construction within a County right-of-way
permit at this time.

Roy L. Kinion
Public Works Director
Lincoln County, Oregon

541-574-1211
rkinion(@co.lincoln.or.us

On Mon, Jul 23, 2018 at 8:03 AM, John and Chris <honekiri@gmail.com> wrote:

Has Mr. Lund applied for an access permit onto Jump Off Joe County Road? Has he applied
- for a permit for construction within the right of way? If so, have either permit or any others
regarding Jump Off Joe County Road been approved by Lincoln County?

Thank you in advance,
Chris Schneller
| honekiri@gmail.com

197



: o
EXHIBIg

B-5

—_—

Derrick Tokos

From: Derrick Tokos

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 1:56 PM

To: 'Mona Linstromberg’

Subject: RE: Spring Street Slide Development
Will do.

From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym@peak.org]
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 12:14 PM

To: Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>
Subject: Fw: Spring Street Slide Development

Derrick, in tandem with Mr. Cross' comment submitted today, this email from Mr. Gless might be useful to K

and A in reconsidering its report as issued. Please enter Mr. Gless' comments into whatever record is being
built wherever appropriate.

Thank you.
Mona Linstromberg

Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: J. Douglas Gless
Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 2018 4:50 PM

To: Mona Linstromberg ; Bill Lund

Cc: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov
Subject: Spring Street Slide Development

Dear Mona and Bill,

Both of you have contacted HG Schlicker and Associates, Inc. regarding a proposed development at Tax Lots 1800, 1900,
and 1903; Map 11-11-05BC along Spring Street in Newport, Oregon. Please find three reports that we have completed
through the years in that immediate vicinity at this Dropbox link
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/cvy95b3m8edalvx/AAABuXd8b-siznzD9larRkQwa?dI=0 . Essentially, we have identified
the area as what appears to be active landslide, meaning that we have seen what appears to be evidence of the area
having had movement of the ground within the last few decades. In the past couple of decades there has been a
buildup of the dunes at the toe of the slope which has had a stabilizing influence on the site but we don’t believe it
would be prudent to rely on the assured continuation of this dune growth as these loose dune sands are highly
susceptible to erosion by storm waves and rip currents. Any substantial erosion of the dunes would have a large impact
on stability models that don’t account for the eroded condition.

Of the three reports, the 2016 report pertaining to TL 1800 should be considered the most up to date. That report
basically concludes that the Spring Street Slide is active as mapped by DOGAMI. The 1991 report prepared by Herbert
Schlicker for Mr. Hal Smith should be considered greatly out of date and | cannot agree with the conclusions drawn in it
relative to the statement, “the landslide rests on a nearly level surface and is not capable of further sliding.”

It is important to understand that any landslide that toes out at beach level and is subject to erosion is typically at a
greater risk than non-landslide oceanfront ground. It is also important to note that nearly any landslide can be
stabilized, however it is frequently not cost effective.



| hope this information helps in your decision making process.

Respectfully,
Doug

J Douglas Gless, RG, CEG, LHG
President/Principal Engineering Geologist
H.G. Schlicker & Associates, Inc.

607 Main Street, Suite 200

Oregon City, Oregon 97045

(503) 655-8113 Office

(503) 655-8173 Fax

(503) 807-3510 Cell

hgsa@teleport.com
www.hgschlicker.com

A& Virus-free. www.avg.com

199



EXHIBIT S
N
B-b

Derrick Tokos

From: Derrick Tokos

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:36 AM

To: 'Mona Linstromberg'; Tim Cross

Subject: RE: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering
Report (June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Hi Mona,

Thank you for your comments. I'll forward your note, and the email from Mr. Cross, to Bill Lund and K&A Engineering to
see what their thoughts are regarding your request for additional time.

Devrvick I. Tokos, AICP

Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym@peak.org]
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:13 AM
To: Tim Cross <timothyacross@comcast.net>; Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov>

Subject: Re: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29, 2018)
prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Derrick, in discussion with Mr. Cross and other neighbors, we feel that the substantial comment provided by
Mr. Cross justifies your extending the appeal date until K and A has an opportunity to address the information
provided. We do realize that Mr. Lund would have to agree so we are preparing as if the July 31 deadline still
holds but wanted to make this formal request.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this email and also receipt of Mr. Cross' comment?
Please enter this in the record.

Thank you, Mona Linstromberg

Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Tim Cross

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 10:11 AM
To: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov

Cc: lindym@peak.org

Subject: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29, 2018)
prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.




: EXHIBIT L
o
N

Office of Lincoln County Legal Counsel

225 West Olive Street, Room 110 Kristin Yuille
3 Newport, Oregon 97365 Assistant County Counsel

M (541) 265-4108 re Je::ry Hecr;bage
Fax: (541) 265-4176 ssistant County Counsel
cer SREGON . www.co.lincoln.or.us/countycounsel Janet H?:';r::;;

To:  Derrick Tokos, Newport Community Development Director
Re:  Your File #1-GP-18 and Notice #1-SIR-18

Date: July 26, 2018

The following comments are offered by Lincoln County in response to the decision and
notice above referenced. They are not appeals of either matter. Instead they are intended to
address questions the County has received about the proposed development highlighted in the
applications before the City of Newport.

It appears from the submitted conceptual site plan that the road improvements, retaining
walls and driveway accesses are all located within the right of way of County Road 500. This is a
public road right of way (County Road) under County jurisdiction; therefore these improvements
would require a permit from the County. Public access on the improvements will be required to be
allowed and maintained. After conferring with the City we understand a 20 foot road width would
be acceptable under the City adopted fire code for these improvements. Assuming the geotechnical
information is otherwise acceptable to and approved by the City as evidenced by the decision in
File # 1-GP-18, structures or disturbance of the right of way related to road improvements
(including but not limited to retaining walls, cut embankments, and fills) could be located within
the right of way but would require separate applications and permits from the County. The County
would also require that road improvements not impede or block possible future public access to

the beach continuing north on the right of way. The technical comments of the County Engineer
are attached.

The applicant and other property owners have filed a petition to vacate the County Road
500 right of way shown on the site plan. The vacation request includes proposed construction of
an alternative replacement beach access (trail) by the applicant as generally shown on the site plan.
The vacation process is separate from the city’s permit process. The vacation procedures are
outlined in ORS Chapter 368 and Lincoln County Code Chapter 6. If the vacation is approved by
the County after public hearing, and including concurrence by the City as required under law, then
no permits would be required by the County.



202

Please place these comments into the record.
Submitted on behalf of Lincoln County by:

Wayne Belmont, Lincoln County Counsel
Roy Kinion, Lincoln County Public Works Director (Road Official)
James “Steve” Hodge, Lincoln County Engineer

Comments of Steve Hodge:

I have reviewed the Geotechnical Engineering Report (GER) prepared and written by Michael
Remboldt, P.E., G.E. and Gary Sandstrom, C.E.G. (K & A Engineering, Inc. and Gary C.
Sandstrom, Geologist, LLC, respectively). This report was written to satisfy the requirements of
the 2014 Oregon Structural Specialty Code. Chapter 18, Soils and Foundations, specifically
addresses the reporting requirements of the above mentioned report.

While the field investigation addresses most of the issues regarding questionable soils, the GER
does not provide all of the boring logs from their field work. The conceptual site plan indicates
four borings were performed to describe the soil profile. Only boring log B-1 and B-3 were
included in this report. Four hand auger profiles (HA-1, AH-2, HA-2 and HA-3) are presented as
is the readings of the Dynamic Probe (FC-1, FC-2, FC-3, FC-4). Test results showing the
Plasticity Index, Expansion Index, and ASTM D are not included in this report nor are there results
of any compressive strength tests.

The report provides adequate review of Section 1803.5.5 Deep Foundations. Boring logs indicate
a soil strata capable of supporting deep foundations lay in this area. The report describes type of
pile, installation procedures, bearing pressures, and installation procedures. It does not speak to
pile spacings or reductions for group action.

The report suggests MSE retaining walls for fill slopes and Gabion Baskets for cut slopes. The
provided boring logs suggest these technologies would be sufficient for the intended purposes;
however, additional analysis is required for design. Specifically, modeled lateral forces generated
by earthquake against gabion wall.

It is my opinion that this report meets the requirements of the 2014 Oregon Structural Specialty
Code however additional investigation and testing is necessary to support design.

Steve Hodge, P.E.
County Engineer

Lincoln County Public Works
880 NE 7th Street

Newport, OR 97365
541-574-1212
JHodge@co.lincoln.or.us




EXHIBIT

| B¢
4

™
o
N

Derrick Tokos

From: Derrick Tokos

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:45 AM

To: 'Bill Lund’

Cc: P.E. Michael Remboldt

Subject: FW: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering
Report (June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Attachments: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering

Report (June 29, 2018) prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Hi Bill... attached is the email from Mr. Cross. Our office cannot unilaterally modify the 15-day appeal period specified in
the Newport Municipal Code. If you want to provide additional time so that K&A can respond to the email from Mr.
Cross before the appeal period closes, you would need to indicate in writing that you consent to some additional period
of time.

Please note that you and/or K&A would have an opportunity to respond prior to a public hearing before the Planning
Commission, if an appeal is filed within the 15-day period.

Derrick

From: Derrick Tokos

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:36 AM

To: 'Mona Linstromberg' <lindym@peak.org>; Tim Cross <timothyacross@comcast.net>

Subject: RE: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29, 2018)
prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.

Hi Mona,

Thank you for your comments. I'll forward your note, and the email from Mr. Cross, to Bill Lund and K&A Engineering to
see what their thoughts are regarding your request for additional time.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport

169 SW Coast Highway

Newport, OR 97365

ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

From: Mona Linstromberg [mailto:lindym@peak.org]

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:13 AM

To: Tim Cross <timothyacross@comcast.net>; Derrick Tokos <D.Tokos@ NewportOregon.gov>

Subject: Re: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29, 2018)
prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.




<
o

Derrick, in discussion with Mr. Cross and other neighbors, we feel that the substantial comment providecz?lj by
Mr. Cross justifies your extending the appeal date until K and A has an opportunity to address the information
provided. We do realize that Mr. Lund would have to agree so we are preparing as if the July 31 deadline still
holds but wanted to make this formal request.

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this email and also receipt of Mr. Cross' comment?
Please enter this in the record.

Thank you, Mona Linstromberg

Sent via my totally safe HARD WIRED internet connection

From: Tim Cross
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 10:11 AM

To: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov

Cc: lindym@peak.org

Subject: concern about analysis of slope stability presented in the Geotechnical Engineering Report (June 29, 2018)
prepared by K & A Engineering, Inc.



205

EXHIBIT

8T

Derrick Tokos

From: J. Douglas Gless <hgsa@teleport.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 2018 4:51 PM

To: Mona Linstromberg; Bill Lund

Cc: Derrick Tokos

Subject: Spring Street Slide Development

Dear Mona and Bill,

Both of you have contacted HG Schlicker and Associates, Inc. regarding a proposed development at Tax Lots 1800, 1900,
and 1903; Map 11-11-05BC along Spring Street in Newport, Oregon. Please find three reports that we have completed
through the years in that immediate vicinity at this Dropbox link
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/cvy95b3m8edalvx/AAABuXd8b-sjiznzD9larRkQwa?dI=0 . Essentially, we have identified
the area as what appears to be active landslide, meaning that we have seen what appears to be evidence of the area
having had movement of the ground within the last few decades. In the past couple of decades there has been a
buildup of the dunes at the toe of the slope which has had a stabilizing influence on the site but we don’t believe it
would be prudent to rely on the assured continuation of this dune growth as these loose dune sands are highly
susceptible to erosion by storm waves and rip currents. Any substantial erosion of the dunes would have a large impact
on stability models that don’t account for the eroded condition.

Of the three reports, the 2016 report pertaining to TL 1800 should be considered the most up to date. That report
basically concludes that the Spring Street Slide is active as mapped by DOGAMI. The 1991 report prepared by Herbert
Schlicker for Mr. Hal Smith should be considered greatly out of date and | cannot agree with the conclusions drawn in it
relative to the statement, “the landslide rests on a nearly level surface and is not capable of further sliding.”

It is important to understand that any landslide that toes out at beach level and is subject to erosion is typically at a
greater risk than non-landslide oceanfront ground. It is also important to note that nearly any landslide can be
stabilized, however it is frequently not cost effective.

I hope this information helps in your decision making process.

Respectfully,
Doug

J Douglas Gless, RG, CEG, LHG
President/Principal Engineering Geologist
H.G. Schlicker & Associates, Inc.

607 Main Street, Suite 200

Oregon City, Oregon 97045

(503) 655-8113 Office

(503) 655-8173 Fax

(503) 807-3510 Cell

hgsa@teleport.com
www.hgschlicker.com




206

Page 1 of 5

A H.G. Schlicker & Assodiates, ..

235 N.E. 122nd Avenue, Sulte 300 * Portland, Oregon 97230
(503) 257-9666

Project #91-781 August 29, 1991

To: Mr. Hal Smith
P.O. Box 753
Newport, OR 97365

Subject: Geologic Reconnaissance
Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, Block 37
N.W. Spring Street
Newport, Oregon

Dear Mr. Smith:
INTRODUCTION

This report presents the results of our preliminary
investigation of the above referenced property. We understand that
you plan to construct three or four single family homes adjacent
to Spring Street, or possibly a cluster near the west side of the
property.

The purpose for this: report is to provide information
concerning slope stability, foundation characteristics, and
buildability of the site. A geotechnical report will be necessary
providing the geologic conditions are reasonably favorable and
mitigation costs will not exceed the final land value.

SCOPE

No drilling .or excavation was be done for this preliminary
study. Work included a site visit, review of bublished and
unpublished geology and avail;ble reports of the area.

. GEOLOGY
Regional Geology

. The exposure along the sea cliffs at Jump Off Joe include the
Nye Mudstone overlain by the Astoria Formation and unconformably
overlain by the Coastal Terrace deposits. The Nye Mudstone and
remnants of the Coastal Terrace deposits are present in the
vicinity of the site.

GEOLOGISTS @ ENGINEERS ® ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTISTS

about:blank

7/25/2018



|

e o s e 4

ey = !

P . ==

about:blank

YT R F S L A e T e TS A ST 3
T R N R P S e e A AR

Project #91-781

Page 2
Geologic Units

Nve Mudgtone. The Nye is early Miocene in age. It is composed
of siltstone, fine silty sand beds and occasionally with layers of
volcanic sand and ash., It was deposited in marine environment and
has been broadly folded with dips in the vicinity of 20 degrees or
more except where distorted or modified by landsliding. Along the
beach the Nye has been deeply weathered and fractured.

Astoria Formation. The Astoria, of middle Miocene age,
overlies the older Nye Mudstone. It is composed of thin to thick
bedded fine to medium grained sandstone. It contains limey
concretions and sulfide nodules. In places it has convolute bedding
formed by submarine landslides before the unit became consolidated.
It crops out mainly in the surf in this area.

Coastal Terrace depositg. The Coastal Terraces are composed
of Pleistocene to Recent age, flat 1lying beds "of weakly
consolidated fine sand and silty sand but with medium to coarse
sand locally. The beds include brackish water deposits and
occasionally peat or other organics. At the site a peat layer a
foot or more thick is observed in the bluff exposures west of

Block 37. The disrupted condition of the material is the result of
landsliding.

SITE CONDITIONS
Tyvpography

The site 1lies between Spring Street on the east and the
Pacific Ocean on the west. The steepest slope adjacent to Spring
street is'about 24 degrees, however, the slope on lots 4 and 5 is
only about 10 degrees. Elevations on the site lie between 40 and
80 feet MSL. The land rises to 57 feet about 90 feet to the west

of the site and slopes to 10 feet MSL at the beach 110 feet west
of the site, '

Slope abil

The area from Jump Off Joe northwards and from Spring Street
west is old landslide. A prominent head scarp is present adjacent
to Spring Street between 13th street and 14th street encompassing
the eastern parts of lot 1 through 5, Block 37.

The slide debris appears to have moved towards the ocean as
a unit and a major slide mass lies between the subject property and

(A

N~
S Page 2 of 5

e bt

- et i

e ot e e

e s e o o ot

T e ot 7 == =

7/25/2018



about:blank

Project #91-781

+ Page 3

the beach. It is highly broken and distorted from sliding and is
being eroded by the ocean waves and driving rains. The landslide,
as it now exists, rests on a nearly level surface and is not
capable of further sliding. Rather it acts as a buttress to the toe

of the subject property. Small local slumps can occur along the
face of the bluff.

The east pért of Lots 3, 4 and 5, Block 37 slope moderately
steeply. The slope 'is probably overlain by a thin slide debris or

other material which may be capable of slope movement unless toe
support is provided.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The site dis wunderlain by Coastal Terrace deposits, Nye
Mudstone and possibly some Astoria rocks. The thickness of the
overlying material is unknown but is believed to be a relatively
thin deposit of 1landslide debris. Thick landslide debris,

distorted Coastal Terrace and Nye formation lie between the site
and the beach.

The bowl~-sghaped area present just east of Spring Street is an
older landslide that has apparently been stable for manv years.

The area west of Spring Street probably moved initially prior
to the Jump Off Joe landslide that began about 1942 and continued
until recently. Movement in the vicinity of the site is limited to

small local slumps since the driving force is no longer present to
activate a large slide.

Foundation conditions at the site depend upon the thickness
of the debris and the character of the sediments to depths which
might effect settlement or cause slope instability.

RECOMMENDATIONS

- Because of the sensitive nature of old landslides and debris
deposits, we recommend that:

1. A geotechnical study be performed to determine the thickness

and engineering characteristics of the material to a depth of

at least 50 feet unless drilling indicates competent material
at a shallower depth.

X Page 3of 5

R T T CAAPR

SRR
AN

PR

AT
T

ETMPRREI
PRI Lo

E AL

7/25/2018



Project #91-781 Page 4

2. at least two test holes should be drilled to approximately
50feet in depth,

3. Laboratory tests include direct shear be done.

4, Slope stability calculations be made,

It has been our pleasure to serve you. If you have any
questions concerning thisg report of the site, please contact us,

Respectfully submitted,
H.G. SCHLICKER AND,ASSOCIATES. INC.

OREGON

Herbert ¢. Schlicker, P.G., C.E.G.
President

HGS:mly

S Page 4 of 5

v ey

about:blank

7/25/2018



9' Page 5 of 5

R R T VR I SRy vy

LR

SO R AR R IR S AR T

BAY

YAQUINA

101 B [ pewy

7/25/2018

Appreved:

+2,3,4 & 5, BLOCK 37

-W. SPRING STREET
NEWPORT, OREGON

g

VICINITY MAP
PROJECT #91-781

LOoTSs 1
N

Baber ae729/9y
Scale: 1° 2 (g9

about:blank



211

" Geologic Hazards Investigation
Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC
Newport, Oregon

Prepared for:
Mr. Jon Lynch
306 E. Olive Street
Newport, Oregon 97365

Project #Y163915 | April 14,2016

% H.G. Schlicker & Associates, i



H.G. Schlicker & Associates, i

607 Main Street, Suite 200 + Oregon City, Oregon 97045
(503) 655-8113 - FAX (503) 655-8173

Project #Y163915 April 14,2016

To: Mzr. Jon Lynch
306 E. Olive Street
Newport, Oregon 97365

Subject: Geologic Hazards Investigation
Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC
Newport, Oregon

Dear Mr. Lynch:

The accompanying report presents the results of our geologic hazards investigation for the
above subject site.

After you have reviewed our report, we would be pleased to discuss the report and to
answer any questions you might have.

This opportunity to be of service is sincerely appremated If we can be of any further
-assistance, please contact us.

J. Douglds Gless, MSc, RG, CEG, LHG
President/Principal Engineering Geologist

JDG:cjh

GEOLOGISTS ® ENGINEERS © ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTISTS

212



213

Project #Y163915 ‘ April 14,2016
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
1.0 Introduction and General Information ...........couiiiri it iirenenneenens 1
2.0  Site Description. ................ R % S 1
3.0 Geologi_c Mapping, Investigation and Descriptions . ... ......coviiyi e, 2
3.1 N1 1T 0 PP 2
4.0  Slope Stability and Erosion . ................. P S ST S 3
5.0 Regional SeismicHazards .....,..... 00000 sdoeel e s dan ' cieeene... 4
6.0 FloodingHazards ....................covin.... | R R EEEEETETRERES 5
7.0 Climate Change ..........ciiiiiiitnninieeieineeenenennn e e Fawamadeaea 6
. 8.0  Conclusions and Recommendations ................ P 6
0.0  TMItAHONS 3ivems 5 Al L ol fad e A sl e 58 St AZELTE e b 7
1002 Disclosure vz dtamg & ar bo s e anm foob Winwesale s L 3 e Sl 7
11.0 References ........ Aot e e b han LTS PO R L7 ) N 7

FIGURES
Figure 1 - Location Map
Figure 2 - Plat Map
Figure 3 - Slope Profile A-A'
Figure 4 - Geologic Map Showing Landslides

APPENDIX
Appendix A - Site Photographs

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .

607 Main Street, Suite 200 - Oregon City, Oregon 97045
(503) 655-8113 - FAX (503) 655-8173

Project #Y163915 - April 14,2016

To: Myr. Jon Lynch
306 E. Olive Street
Newport, Oregon 97365

Subject: Geologic Hazards Investigation
Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC
Newport, Oregon

Dear Mr. Lynch:

1.0 Introduction and General Information

At your request and authorization, the undersigned representative of H.G. Schlicker and
Associates, Inc. (HGSA) visited the subject site on March 31, 2016 to complete a geologic
hazards investigation report for Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC in Newport, Oregon (Figures 1
and 2; Appendix A). It is our understanding that you are involved in a potential property transfer.

This report addresses the engineering geology and geologic hazards at the site. The scope
of our work consisted of a site visit, site observations and measurements, a slope profile, limited
review of the geologic literature, interpretation of topographic maps, Lidar and stereo aerial -
photographs, and preparation of this report which provides our findings, conclusions, and
recommendations.

2.0 Site Description

The site is located in landslide terrain on an elevated marine terrace and west facing
oceanfront slope in Newport, Oregon (Figures 1 and 2; Appendix A). The subject site consists of
a vacant, rectangular lot (Tax Lot 1800) at elevations of approximately 50 to 80 feet MSL on its
eastern side along N.W. Spring Street, which slopes steeply west from N.W. Spring Street down
to more gentle slopes at an elevation of approximately 20 feet MSL on the west side, adjacent to
the beach (Figures 3 and 4; Appendix A). The site is bound to its east by N.W. Spring Street, to
its north by an adjacent lot with an existing home, to its south by an undeveloped lot, and to its
west by the Pacific Ocean.

GEOLOGISTS ® ENGINEERS ® ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTISTS

214




215

Project #Y163915 ~ ' Page 2

3.0 Geologic Mapping, Investigation and Descriptions

The site lies in an area which has been mapped as a westerly-dipping sequence of
sedimentary rocks which include the Yaquina, Nye and Astoria Formations (Schlicker et al.,
1973). A relatively flat-lying sequence of marine terrace deposits overlies these sedlmentary
rocks in a narfow band along the Pacific Ocean, generally mantling wave-cut benches on tilted
strata of middle Miocene Astoria Formation (Schlicker et al., 1973; Priest, 1997). The Astoria
Formation consists of thick to thin bedded, very fine to medium-grained, micaceous,
carbonaceous, arkosic marine sandstone and sandy siltstone. These units are underlain by early
Miocene Nye Mudstone Formation, which consists of indurated, massive to indistinctly bedded,
gray, clayey siltstone and very fine-grained sandstone. Locally the Nye Mudstone and Astoria
Formations dip to the west at approximately 15 to 23 degrees (Schlicker et al., 1973; Priest and
Allan, 2004). The contact of the Nye and Astoria Formations is thought to be a primary cause of
the well-documented Jumpoff Joe landslide approximately % mile south of the site (where the
two formations outcrop), and the Spring Street landslide (the northern portion of which the -
subject site lies on). The precise location of this contact at the subject site is not known. No
faults or other structural features are krniown to occur at the site. Local faults mapped north and
south of the site are not known to be active, and the geologic age of their last movement is not
documented.

Outcrops at and near the site indicate that surficial materials in the area are dominated by
marine terrace deposits that have been disrupted by landsliding. These deposits are commonly
composed of iron-cemented sands, semi-consolidated sands, tuffaceous silts and gravels. Marine
terrace deposits are extensively exposed along the bluff south of the site in the scarp, body and
toe of the Spring Street landslide, and also on the bluff to the north of the site. The broad,
dissipative beach slopes at approximately 2 degrees and is primarily comprised of fine grained
sand. The back beach area of the western part of the site has transient dunes approximately 3 to 8
feet high.

Near surface materials on the western part of the site consist of disturbed marine terrace
sands and sandy silts, overlain by sandy organic soils and windblown dune sand. Based on our
site observations and HGSA’s prior work on other nearby proj ects we believe that terrace sands
are also present at depth on the western part of the site.

Fills are present adjacent to N.W. Spring Street where a small landslide has been partially
stabilized with rock ﬁll

3.1 Structures
Structural deformation.and faulting along the Oregon Coast is dominated 1E)y the Cascadia
Subduction zone (CSZ) which is a convergent plate boundary extending for approximately 680

miles from northern Vancouver Island to northern California. This convergent plate boundary is
defined by the subduction of the Juan de Fuca plate beneath the North America Plate, and forms

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associafes, ..



216

Project #Y163915 : Page 3

an offshore north-south trench apptoximately 60 miles west of the Oregon coast shoreline. A
resulting deformation front consisting of north-south oriented reverse faults is present along the
western edge of an accretionary wedge east of the trench, and a zone of margin-oblique folding
and faulting extends from the trench to the Oregon Coast (Geomatrix, 1995).

A north-northwesterly trending fault is exposed along the eastern part of the Jumpoff Joe
_headland, located approximately 800 feet south of the site, which dips to the east at
approximately 23 degrees. This fault is a normal fault with its upthrown side to the west. The
fault cuts Tertiary units with no evidence of recent activity.

‘The nearest mapped potentially active faults are the Yaquina Bay Fault located
approximately 1.3 miles south of the site, and the Yaquina Head Fault located approximately 1.9
miles north of the site. The Yaquina Bay Fault is a generally east-northeast trending oblique fault
that also has left-lateral strike-slip and either contractional or extensional dip-slip offset
components (Personius et al., 2003). This fault is believed to extend offshore for approximately
7 to 8 miles and may be a structurally controlling feature for the mouth of Yaquina Bay
(Goldfinger et al., 1996; Geomatrix, 1995). At Yaquina Bay, a 125,000 year old platform has
been displaced approximately 223 feet up-on-the-north by the Yaquina Bay Fault. This fault has
the largest component of vertical slip (as much as 2 feet per 1,000 years) of any active fault in
coastal Oregon or Washington (Geomatrix, 1995). Although the age for the last movement of the
Yaquina Bay Fault is not known, the fault also offsets 80,000 year old marine terrace sediments.
The Yaquina Head Fault is an east-trending oblique fault with left-lateral strike-slip and either
contractional or extensional dip-slip offset components (Personius et al., 2003). It offsets the
80,000 year old Newport marine terrace in the area of the site by approximately 5 feet, indicating
a relatively low rate of slip, if still active (Schlicker et al., 1973; Personius et al., 2003).

4.0 Slope Stability and Erosion

The slope on the eastern area of the subject lot is part of the headscarp of an active
landslide, and the lower elevation western part of the site lies on a downdropped active landslide
block (Appendix A). The mapped active landslide north of the Jumpoff Joe headland which has
its northernmost lateral scarp located along the eastern property boundary of the adjacent lot to
the north is generally referred to as the Spring Street landslide (Figure 4).

The subject site lies on a mapped active landslide block (Figute 4). The site is located
about % mile north of the Jumpoff Joe landslide, a well-documented translational Iandslide that
was first noted in 1922 with substantial movement and damage to structures in 1942 and 1943;
continued movement has been observed to the present date. As noted above, the site also lies at
the northern part of the more recent, large Spring Street landslide (Figure 4). Significant .
movement of the Spring Street landslide occurred in the 1960s and unstable conditions continued
at least into the 1970s (Schlicker et al., 1973). Evidence of more recent movement is difficult to
discern due to foot traffic trampling young features and dense vegetation obscuring the site.

'ﬂ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



217

Project #Y163915 Page 4

The site lies in an area mapped as undergoing critical erosion of marine terraces and
sediments (Schlicker et al, 1973). Priest and others (1994) and Priest (1997) have determined the
average annual erosion rate for the shoreline in the vicinity of the site as 1.35 & 0.63 feet per year.
This erosion rate was calculated by measuring the distance between existing structures to the toe
of the slope and compared to distances measured on a 1939 or 1967 vertical aerial photograph
(Priest et al., 1994).

Based on mapping completed by Priest and Allan (2004), the subject site lies within the
Active Erosion Hazard Zone. The area to approximately 50 feet east of the eastern edge of N.W.
Spring Street, lies in the High-Risk Coastal Erosion Hazard Zone; and the area approximately
150 feet further east to Hurbert Street, lies in the Moderate-Risk Coastal Erosion Hazard Zone.
A site within the High-Risk Hazard Zone has a high probability that the area could be affected by
active erosion in the next approximately 60 to 100 years, and a site within the Moderate-Risk
Hazard Zone has a moderate probability that the area could be affected by active erosion in the
next approximately 60 to 100 years (Priest and Allan, 2004). It should be noted that the mapping
done for the 2004 study was intended for regional planning use, not for site specific hazard
identification. 3

The City of Newport Geologic Hazards Map (June 17, 2011) shows the entire subject site
lying in the area mapped as “Active Erosion Hazard Zone”. All of the site located to the east of
the beach and bluff toe is mapped as “Active Landslide Hazard Areas”. Areas east of the site
along N.W. Spring Street are mapped as “H1gh Risk Bluff Hazard Zone”. The C1ty of Newpeort
mapping is based on Priest’s 1994 mapping.

5.0 Regional Seismic Hazards

Abundant evidence indicates that a series of geologically recent large earthquakes related
to the Cascadia Subduction Zone have occuirred along the coastline of the Pacific Northwest.
Evidence suggests that more than 40 great earthquakes of magnitide 8 and larger have struck
western Orégon during the last 10,000 years. The calculated-odds that a Cascadia earthquake
will occur in the next 50 years range from 7—15 percent for a great earthquake affecting the entire
Pacific Northwest, to about a 37 percent chance that the southern end of the Cascadia Subduction
Zone will produce a major earthquake in the next 50 years (OSSPAC, 2013; OSU News and
Research Communications, 2010; Goldfinger et al., 2012). Evidence suggests the last major
earthquake occurred on January 26, 1700 and may have been of magnitude 8.9 to 9.0 (Clague et
al., 2000; DOGAMI, 2013). ‘

There is now increasing recognition that great earthquakes do not necessarily result in a
complete rupture along the full 1,200 km fault length of the Cascadia subduction zone. Evidence
in the paleorecords indicates that partial ruptures of the plate boundary have occurred due to
smaller earthquakes with moment magnitudes (Mw) < 9 (Witter et al., 2003; Kelsey et al., 2005).
These partial segment ruptures appear to occur more frequently on the southern Oregon coast, as
determined from paleotsunami studies. Furthermore, the records have documented that local

-ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



218

Project #Y163915 ) : Page 5

tsunamis from Cascadia earthquakes recur in clusters (~250-400 years) followed by gaps of
700-1,300 years, with the highest tsunamis associated with earthquakes occurring at the
beginning and end of a cluster (Allan et al., 2015). -

These major earthquake events were accompanied by widespread subsidence of a few
centimeters to 1-2 meters (Leonard et al.,.2004). Tsunamis appear to have been associated with
many of these earthquakes. In addition, settlement, liquefaction and landsliding of some earth
materials are believed to have been commonly associated with these seismic events.

Other earthquakes related to shallow crustal movements or earthquakes related to the
Juan de Fuca plate have the potential to generate magnitude 6.0 to 7.5 earthquakes. The
recurrence interval for these types of earthquakes is difficult to determine from present data, but
estimates of 100 to 200 years have been given in the literature (Rogers et al., 1996).

_ Based on the 1999 Relative Earthqu\ake Hazard Map of the Newport area (Madin and
Wang, 1999), the subject site lies in an area designated as Zone B which is defined as an area
with intermediate to high hazards associated with earthquakes. The degree of relative hazard was’
based on the factors of ground motion amplification, liquefaction, and slope instability. Itis
likely that deep-seated landsliding in the area of the site is, in part, associated with past seismic
activity. ' '

6.0 Flooding Hazards

Based on the 2009 Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM, Panel #41041C0368D) the subject
site lies in an area rated as Zone X which is defined as determined to be outside the 0.2% annual
chance floodplain. The western part of the site along the lower slope and beach lies in an area
rated as Zone VE (EL 38) which is defined as a coastal flood zone with velocity hazard (wave
action); base flood elevations determined. We observed a small stream drainage flowing
westerly across the beach area to the north at the time of our site visit. A small spring was
present at the western toe of the dunes along the beach at the site, and standing water was present
in a closed depression east of the dunes.

Based on the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries mapping (DOGAMI,
2013) the subject site lies within the tsunami inundation zone resulting from an approximately
8.7 and greater magnitude Cascadia Subduction Zone (CSZ) earthquake. The 2013 DOGAMI
mapping is based upon 5 computer modeled scenarios for shoreline tsunami iriundation caused
by potential CSZ earthquake events ranging in magnitude from approximately 8.7 to 9.1. The
January 1700 earthquake event (discussed in Section 5.0 above) has been rated as an approximate
8.9 magnitude in DOGAMI’s methodology. More distant earthquakes can also generate
tsunamis. ‘ :

ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, i



219

Project #Y163915 Page 6

7.0 Climate Change

According to most of the recent scientific studies, the Earth’s climate is believed to be
changing as the result of human activities which are altering the chemical composition of the
atmosphere through the buildup of greenhouse gases, primarily carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, and chlorofluorocarbons (EPA, 1998). Although there are uncertainties about exactly how
and when the Earth’s climate will respond to enhanced concentrations of greenhouse gases,
scientific observations indicate that detectable changes are under way (EPA, 1998; Church and
White, 2006). Global sea level rise; caused by melting polar ice caps and ocean thermal
expansion, could lead to flooding of low-lying coastal property, loss of coastal wetlands, erosion
of beaches and bluffs, and saltwater contamination of fresh groundwater. Global climate change
and the resultant sea level rise will likely impact the subject site through accelerated coastal

erosion and bluff retreat, It can also lead to increased rainfall which can result in an increase in
landslide occurrence. :

8.0 Conclusions and Reéommend’ations
The main e‘hgineer-ing geologic concerns at the site are:

1 The site lies on an ancient landslide that is mapped as a deep-seated active slide
block. The headscarp of this active landslide, named the Spring Street landslide,
is located along the eastern property boundary of the site (Figure 4). Nearby areas
north and south of the site show signs of continued slow movement, and we
expect the subject site to experience ongoing movement under existing conditions.

' Landslide movement at the subject site and/or in the site area can be exacerbated
by a large earthquake, erosion at the bluff toe, or increased groundwater levels.
As ocean wave erosion continues to erode the toe of the landslide mass, the risk of
larger and more rapid movement increases. The site lies within the mapped
Active Codstal Erosion Hazard Zone, defined as currently undergoing bluff
recession and erosion, with a lesser risk (High-Risk Zone i.e. high risk of bluff
recession within the next 60 years) in areas east of the site along N.W. Spring
Street. These risks should be accepted by the owner, future owners, developers
and residents/occupants of the site.

2. There is an inherent regional risk of earthquakes along the Oregon Coast which

" could cause harm and damage structures. It is unlikely that the site would be
stable during a large earthquake event, particularly if the earthquake occurs during
wet weather. The lower bluff slope and beach on the western part of the subject
site is mapped in a coastal flood hazard zone, and the site also lies within a
mapped tsunami inundation hazard zone. A tsunami impacting the Newport area
could cause harm, loss of life and damage to structures. These risks must be
accepted by the owner, future owners, developers and residents of the site.

ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, ..



220

Project #Y163915 Page 7

Prior to any proposed development of the site, we recommend that an extensive program
of mitigation analysis and design be completed. The site is on an active landslide and would be
difficult and expensive to develop. Building permits for development of the site may also be
difficult to obtain. The landslide at the site would need to be stabilized prior to construction.

9.0 Limitations

The Oregon Coast is a dynamic environment with inherent unavoidable risks to
development.  Landsliding, erosion, tsunamis, storms, earthquakes and other natural events can
cause severe impacts to structures built within this environment and can be detrimental to the
health and welfare of those who choose to place themselves within this environment. The client
is warned that, although this report is intended to identify the geologic hazards-causing these
risks, the scientific and engineering communities knowledge and understanding of geologic
hazards processes is not complete. This report pertains to the subject site only, and is not
applicable to adjacent sites nor is it valid for types of development other than that to which it
refers. Geologic conditions including materials, processes and rates can change with time and
therefore a review of the site and/or this report may be necessary as time passes to assure its
accuracy and adequacy. .

‘Our investigation was based on engineering geological reconnaissance and a limited
review of published information. The data presented in this report are believed to be
representative of the site. The conclusions herein are professional opinions derived in
accordance with current standards of professional practice, budget and time constraints. No
warranty is expressed or implied. The performance of this site during a seismic event has not
been evaluated. If you would like us to do so, please contact us. This report may only be copied
in its entirety.

10.0 Disclosure

H.G. Schlicker & Associates, Inc. and the undersigned Certified Engineering Geologist
have no financial interest in the subject site, the project or the Client’s organization.

11.0 Referenges -

Allan, J. C., Ruggiero, P., Cohn, N., Garcia, G., O’Brien, F. E., Serafin, K., Stimely, L. L. and
Roberts, J. T., 2015, Coastal Flood Hazard Study, Lincoln County, Oregon: Oregon
Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Open-File Report 0-15-06, 351 p.

Church, J. A., and White, N. J., 2006, A 20" century acceleration in global sea-level rise:
Geophysical Research Letters, v. 22, LO1601, 4 p.

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associafes, .



221

Project #Y163915 Page 8

Clague, J. J., Atwater, B. F., Wang, K., Wang, Y., and Wong, 1., 2000, Penrose Conference 2000
- Great Cascadia Earthquake Tricentennial, Programs Summary and Abstracts: Oregon
Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Special Paper 33, 156 p.

DOGAMI, 2013, Tsunami inundation maps for Newpart North, Lincoln County, Oregon:r Oregon
Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, TIM-Linc-06, maps.

EPA, 1998, Climate Change and Oregon; Environmental Protection Agency, EPA 236-98-007u,
4p.

Geomatrix Consultants, 1995, Seismic design mapping, State of Oregon, final report: Prépared
for the Oregon Department of Transportation, Project No. 2442,

Goldfinger, C., Kulm, L. D,, Yeats, R. S., Appelgate, B., MacKay, M. E., and Cochrane, G. R.,
1996, Active strike-slip faulting and folding of the Cascadia Subduction-Zone plate
boundary and forearc in central and northern Oregon: U.S. Geological Survey
Professional paper 1560, p. 223-256.

Goldfinger, C., Nelson, C. H., Morey, A. E., Johnson, J. E., Patton, J. R., Karabanov, E.,"
Gutiérrez-Pastor, J., Eriksson, A. T., Gracia, E., Dunhill, G., Enkin, R. J., Dallimore, A.,
and Vallier, T., 2012, Turbidite event history—Methods and implications for Holocene
paleoseismicity of the Cascadia subduction zone: U.S. Geological Survey Professional
Paper 1661-F, 170 p.

Kelsey, H. M., Nelson, A. R., Hemphill-Haley, E., and Witter, R. C., 2005, Tsunami history of an
Oregon coastal lake reveals a 4600 yr record of great earthquakes on the Cascadia
subduction zone: Geological Society of America Bulletin, v. 117, no. 7/8, p. 1009-1032.

Leonard, L. J., Hyndman, R. D., and Mazzotti, S., 2004, Coseismic subisdence in the 1700 great
Cascadia earthquake: Coastal estimates versus elastic dislocation models: Geological
Society of America Bulletin, May/June 2004, v. 116, no. 5/6, pp. 655-670.

Madin, 1. P., and Wang, Z., 1999, Relative eaﬂhﬁuake hazard maps for selected urban areas in
western Oregon: Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Interpretive
Map Series IMS-10.

Oregon Seismic Safety Policy Advisory Commission (OSSPAC), February 2013, The Oregon
Resilience Plan: Reducing Risk and Improving Recovery for the next Cascadia
Earthquake and Tsunami—Report to the 77" Legislative Assembly: State of Oregon
Office of Emergency Management, 341 p.

ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



222

Project #Y163915 Page 9

OSU News and Research Communications, May 24, 2010, Odds are 1-in-3 that a huge quake
will hit Northwest in next 50 years: Oregon State University, Corvallis

http://oregonstate.edu/ua/ncs/archives/2010/may/odds-huge-quake-Northwest-next-50-ye
ars :

-Personius, S. F., Dart, R. L., Bradley, L-A, Haller, K. M., 2003, Map and data for Quaternary

faults and folds in Oregon: U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 03-095, 556 p.,
map.

Priest, G. R. and Allan, J. C., 2004, Evaluation of Coastal Erosion Hazard Zones Along Dune
and Bluff Backed Shorelines in Lincoln County, Oregon: Cascade Head to Seal Rock,
Technical Report to Lincoln County: Oregon Department of Geolo gy and Mineral
Industries, Open File Report O-04-09, 202 pages.

Priest, G. R., Myers, E., Baptista, A. M., Fleuck, P., Wang, K., Kamphaus, R. A., and Peterson,
C.D., 1997, Cascadia Subduction Zone tsunamis: Hazard mapping at Yaquina Bay,
Oregon, final technical report to the National Earthquake Hazard Reduction Program:
Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Open-File Report 0-97-34.

Priest, G. R., 1997, Chronic geologic hazard map of the Newport Area, Coastal Lincoln County,

Oregon: Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Open File Report O-97-
10, map.

Priest, G, R., 1995, Tsunami hazard map of the Newport North Quadrangle, Lincoln County,

Oregon: Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Open-File Report 0-95-
28, map.

Priest, G. R., Saul, I, and Diebenow, J., 1994, Explanation of chronic geologic hazard maps and
erosion rate database, coastal meoln County, Oregon: Salmon River to Seal Rock:
Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industrics, Open-File Report 0- 94-11, 45 p..

Rogers, A. M., Walsh, T. J., Kockelman, J., and Priest, G. R., 1996, Earthquake hazards in the

Pacific Northwest - an overview: U.S. Geological Survey, Professional Paper 1560, p. 1-
54.

Schlicker, H. G., Deacon, R. J., Olcott, G. W., and Beaulieu, J. D.., 1973, Engineering géology of

Lincoln County, Oregon: Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Bulletin
81.

Witter, R. C., Kelsey, H. M., and Hemphill-Haley, E., 2603, Great Cascadia earthquakes and
tsunamis of the past 6700 years, Coquille River estuary, southern coastal Oregon:
Geological Society of America Bulletin, v. 115, p. 1289-1306.

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



223

Project #Y163915 . Page 10
It has been our pleasure to serve you. If you have any questions concerning this report, or

the site, please contact us.

Respectfully submitted,

H.G. SCHLICKER A

' EXPIRES: 10/31/2616
J. Douglas Gless, MSc, RG, CEG, LHG
President/Principal Engineering Geologist

IDG:cjh

% H.G. Schlicker & Associates, i



124°04.000" W

WGS84 124°02.000° W

E)
]
S

44°39.000' N

44°38,000' N

r.‘.'(.. il B igz\lf o
S gy, e
P i & Y
/ VL D =
Al ey = =

\ i

Hoas |l ]
‘—'1;*:':!\‘(. }

=T AN

e/ | ZA

R N’ LA
M (;”Jf-)%i

3 Ve
©: = Hl {(dGl=—=

44°39,000' N

44°38,000' N

Sientg

Herirle

TNT (AN
16%2°

124°04.000' W

0 5

1 MILE

0 1000 fEET Q 00
==

1000 METLAS

Date: 04/14/2016

Prepared by: CTH

Scale: 1" =2,000'

Project #Y163915

Approved by: JDG

Location Map
Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC
Newport, Oregon

-ﬂ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .

Figure 1




Lo
N
N

LINCOLN COUNTY

A
N
3 NW ISTH ¢
N 4
\\/ Q /_/_/_1_//.////./(///4/..'/_4
3 i 3
A
d et gf 3
) N
J
$ SUPPLEMENTAL 3
J
N R MaPfNo. | 3
[<}]
¥ § 3
) N d
\Y/‘/7/77/ s
v
3 g7 48 \
J 3 3
N 3
y )
i | 3
3 i

)///7/'//7/77 i o sd

NW 14TH o

) R ~
: | D .
Y Sy
\ vk ©
$ O :
(0
y & ..
v 2 | i - Prepared by: =CLJH
: ' Date: 04/14/2016 Rk .
o) B0 Scae]e' 1"=100' PrOJeCt #Y163915 Approved by: JDG
A A = )
|_| = Approximate trend of profile line T LotNIGSOO, Maoprégmll_OSBc
ified from the Lincoln County assessor's plat . L) - ;
%ﬁﬁgwﬁ&% - : -ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, . | Figure 2
All lc;cations and dimensions are approximate.




226

A'

West

Active Landslide

3
Height (ft.)

- 30
- 20
- 10

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110 120 130 140 150 160 170 180 190 200 210 220 230 240 250 260 270 280 290 300

All locations and dimensions are approximate.

Distance (ft.)
Date: 04/14/2016 A Prepared by: CTH
e Project #Y163915 |-~ -
Slope Profile A-A'
Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC
Newport, Oregon
-C@ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, «. | Figure 3




227

Generalized Map Unit Descriptions dumpoifidcsiLandslide;(closeiup)

Shoreline Geology

Qtc - Quaternary Marine terrace deposit; (Pleistocene);
unconsolidated to moderately consolidated gravel, beach
and dune sand; locally contains minor consolidated
clay-rich paleosol, colluvium, debris flows, and alluvial
interbeds.

Ta - Tertiary Astoria Formation; (Miocene); thick to thin-bedded,
very fine to medium-grained, micaceous and
carbonaceous arkosic sandstone and massive sandy
siltstone.

Tn - Tertiary Nye Mudstone; (lower Miocene); massive to
poorly bedded gray fossiliferous marine mudstone to
very fine grained silty sandstone; commonly highly
fractured, weak and prone to landslides.

Mass Movement Hazards
Ab - Active slide block or slump.
Als - Holocene active landslide.

PAb - Potentially active slide block or slump.

Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC
Newport, Oregon

Date: 04/14/2016 K Prepared by: CJH
Scale: 1" =400’ PI‘OJ eCt #Y163915 Approved by: JDG
Geologic Map Showing Landslides

Mapping from OFR O-04-09 by Priest, G. R. and Allan, J. C. (2004).
All locations and dimensions are approximate. -ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .

Figure 4




Appendix A
- Site Photographs -

228



Photo 2 - Ponded water at the site.

229



Photo 4 - Southerly view across the site and the active part of the Spring
Street landslide.

230



Photo 5 - Northerly view along the beach, with Yaquina Head in
background.

Photo 6 - Looking south along the beach.

231



232

Engincering Geologic Hazards Investigation
Tax Lot 1802, Map 11-11-05BC -

1409 N.W. Spring Street
Newport, Oregon

Prepared for:
. Mr. Joe Imlach
2142 Tributary Cirocle
Anchorage, Alaska 99516

Project #Y163923

April 13, 2016

ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Assoclates, i



H.G. Schlicker & Associafes, .

607 Main Street, Suite 200 - Oregon City, Oregon 97045
(503) 655-8113 - FAX (503) 655-8173

Project #Y163923 April 13,2016
To: Mr. Joe Imlach

2142 Tributary Circle

Anchorage, Alaska 99516

Subject: Engineering Geologic Hazards Investigation
Tax Lot 1802, Map 11-11-05BC
1409 N.W, Spring Street
Newport, Oregon

Dear Mr. Imlach:

The accompanying report presents the results of our engineering geologic hazards
investigation for the above subject site.

After you have reviewed our report, we would be pleased to discuss the report and to
answer any questions you might have.

This opportunity to be of service is smcerely appreciated. If we can be of any further
asmstance please contact us.

H.G. SCHLICKERE ATES, INC.

eald ent/Prmclpal Engmeermg Geologlst
JDG:cjh '

QEQLOGISTS ® ENGINEERS ® ENVIRONMMENTAL SCIENTISTS

233




234

Project #Y163923 April 13, 2016
TABLE OF CONTENTS

. Page

1.0 Introduction and General Information ............ ..ottt 1
2.0  Site DeSCriPtion . ...voiitiitii i i it e it e e 1
2.1  Existing House Observations ............. B I R T~ PP 2

3.0  Geologic Mapping, Investigation and Descripions . .......ovvviiniiiiiin, )
31 Structures ............. parast Shia TR dvel e 0 oty LS S 3

4.0 Slppe Stabilityand Brosion ............o. . asemBalite, A0 Ll 4
50 Regional SeismicHazards .......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiine., 5
6.0 FloodingHazards .........coiiiiiiriiiiiiie ittt i, 6
70  Climate Change ... .. vvvtvieeirnesororeansorrsstssessisseeanseeinnsesnson 7
8.QiisConclusionaiya ek o DS IR Aagall i svdaisd! Hiehe LA 00 ) Sinferay: 7
9.0 Recommendations ................ S e e e, o FE e st i, 8
10,0 Limitations ... ..ottt ittt ittt ettt i i 8
Bl.0%eDisclosure frursr . oo, oo binp citeinashaalin Mo vt i et ma 9
12.0 TSReferenceshie A e mvApee Das . nenaptedces cose L L Aot id s s sl 9

FI S
Figure 1 - Location Map
Figure 2 - Plat Map
Figure 3 - Slope Profile A-A"
Figure 4 - Geologic Map Showing Landslides

APPENDIX
Appendix A - Site Photographs

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



H.G. Schlicker & Associafes, i

607 Main Street, Suite 200 + Oregon City, Oregon 97045
(503) 655-8113 - FAX (503) 655-8173

Project #Y163923 April 13, 2016
To: Mr. Joe Imlach

2142 Tributary Circle

Anchorage, Alaska 99516

Subject: Engineering Geologic Hazards Investigation
Tax Lot 1802, Map 11-11-05BC
1409 N.W. Spring Street
Newport, Oregon

Dear Mr. Imlach:
1.0 Introduction and General Informatio

At your request and authorization, the undersigned representative of H.G. Schlicker and
Associates, Inc. (HGSA) visited the subject site on March 31, 2016 to complete en engineering
geologic hazards investigation for Tax Lot 1800, Map 11-11-05BC in Newport, Oregon (Figures
1 and 2; Appendix A). It is our understanding that you have requested this work in relationship
to a property transfer.

This report addresses the engineering geology and geologic hazards at the site. The scope
of our work consisted of a site visit, site observations and measurements, review of our previous
report for the site (HGSA #Y052699), limited review of the geologic literature, interpretation of
topographic maps, Lidar and stereo aerial photographs, and preparation of this report which
provides our findings, conclusions, and recommendations.

2.0 Site Description

The site is located on an elevated marine terrace and west facing oceanfront slope in
Newport, Oregon (Figures 1 and 2; Appendix A). The subject site consists of a rectangular lot
(Tax Lot 1802) at elevations of approximately 50 to 80 feet MSL on its eastern side along N.W.
Spring Street, which slopes steeply west near the center of the property down to an elevation of
approximately 20 feet MSL on the west side, adjacent to the beach (Figures 3 and 4; Appendix
A). The eastern part of the site has an existing two story home supported on a timber pile
foundation with the western pile partially exposed above the ground surface (Appendix A). The
site is bound to its east by N.W. Spring Street, to its north and south by adjacent undeveloped

QEOLOQGISTS ® ENQINEERS ® ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTISTS

235



236

Project #Y163923 Page 2

lots, and to its west by the Pacific Ocean. The site is densely vegetated with salal, shore pine and
beach grass.

2.1 Existing House, ations

During our site visit we observed the exposed foundation elements of the existing house
for signs of distress. According to Lincoln County records the two story house with pile
foundation was built in 1981, The house and attached western deck are elevated; the house is
supported on timber piling and the deck is on wood posts with poured concrete footings. The
lower story of the house abuts the bluff slope to its east and is daylighted and elevated to the
west. The home has been remodeled since the time of our 2005 report. At the time of our
November 2005 site observations the home’s pile foundations appeared to be in generally good
condition, although we observed that several of the pile were slightly tilted. The tops of the pile
were generally tilting toward the east, but tilting orientations varied. It i unclear if the observed
tilting occurred during the initial pile installation, or as a result of later ground movemeat. If the
pile tips encountered a hard underlying unit at shallow depths during installation, tilting and
deflection of the piles could have occurred which may account for the observed tilting; however,
the tilting may also be the result of ground movement from landsliding. Based on our review of
a home inspector’s report by Spy Glass Home Inspection Service dated Octaber 18, 2005, the
inspector observed sloping of floors and cracking in sheetrock which was attributed to settlement
of the pile. This type of distress is consistent with foundation movement., Additionally, HGSA
observed substantial bracing and shoring between the exposed pile that may have been completed
to reinforce distressed pile. The remodeling since the time of our earlier report has enclosed
much of the foundation which limited our recent observations.

At the time of HGSA’s observations for this report we did not identify any additional
stress to the home.

eologic Mapping, Investigati nd Descriptions

The site lies in an area which has been mapped as a westerly-dipping sequence of
sedimentary rocks which include the Yaquina, Nye and Astoria Formations (Schlicker et al,,
1973). A relatively flat-lying sequence of marine terrace deposits overlies these sedimentary
rocks in a narrow band along the Pacific Ocean, generally mantling wave-cut benches on tilted
strata of middle Miocene Astoria Formation (Schlicker et al., 1973; Priest, 1997). The Astoria
Formation consists of thick to thin bedded, very fine to medium-grained, micaceous,
carbonaceous, arkosic marine sandstone and sandy siltstone. These units are underlain by early
Miocene Nye Mudstone Formation, which consists of indurated, massive to indistinctly bedded,
gray, clayey siltstone and very fine-grained sandstone. Locally the Nye Mudstone and Astoria
Formations dip to the west at approximately 15 to 23 degrees (Schlicker et al., 1973; Priest and
Allan, 2004). The contact of the Nye and Astoria Formations is thought to be a primary cause of
the well-documented Jumpoff Joe landslide approximately % mile south of the site (where the
two formations outcrop), and the Spring Street landslide (the northern portion of which the

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, ..



237

Project #Y163923 Page 3
subject site lies on). The precise location of this contact at the subject site is not known. No
faults or other structural features are known to occur at the site. Local faults mapped north and

south of the site are not known to be active, and the geologic age of their last movement is not
documented.

Outcrops at and near the site indicate that surficial materials in the area are dominated by
marine terrace deposits. These deposits are commonly composed of iron-cemented sands, semi-
consolidated sands, tuffaceous silts and gravel3. Marine terrace dcposits are extensively exposed
along the bluff south of the site in the scarp, body and toe of the Spring Street landslide, and also
in the bluff north of the site. The broad, dissipative beach slopes at approximately 2 degrees and
is primarily comprised of fine grained sand. The back beach area of the western part of the site
has transient dunes approximately 3 to 8 feet high. :

At the time of our 2005 site visit, we explored the subsurface with two hand auger
borings to depths of 5 feet in the approximate locations shown on Figure 3. A geologist from our

office visually classified the soils encountered according to the Unified Soil Classification
System (USCS) as follows:

B-1 Depth (ft) USCS Description

0-1.0 SP-SM SAND, brown, moist, medium dense to dense, with
minor silt and organics.

1.0-3.0 SP SAND, buff to brown, moist, dense.

3.0-5.0 SM-SC CLAYEY/SILTY SAND, brown to reddish brown

to gray, mottled, moist, dense to very dense.

B-2 Depth (ft) USCS Description
0-05 OH-SM ORGANIC SILTY SAND, dark brown, moist,
loose.
0.5-2.0 SP SAND, light brown to gray, moist, dense, with
minor silt.
2.0-5.0 SM-SC CLAYEY/SILTY SAND, brown/reddish

brown/light gray, mottled, moist to wet, dense to
very dense.

Near surface materials on the western part of the site consist of disturbed marine terrace
sands and sandy silts, overlain by sandy organic soils and windblown dune sand. Based on our

site observations and HGSA’s prior work on other nearby projects we believe that terrace sands
are also present at depth on the western part of tlie site.

3.1 Structures

Structural deformation and faulting along the Oregon Coast is dominated by the Cascadia
Subduction zone (CSZ) which is a convergent plate boundary extending for approximately 680

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



238

Project #Y163923 Page 4
miles from northern Vancouver Island to northern California. . This convergent plate boundary is
defined by the subduction of the Juan de Fuca plate beneath the North America Plato, and forms
an offshore north-south trench approximately 60 miles west of the Oregon coast shoreline. A
resulting deformation front consisting of north-south oriented reverse faults is present along the
western edge of an accretionary wedge east of the trench, and a zone of margin-oblique folding
and faulting extends from the trench to the Oregon Coast (Geomatrix, 1995).

A north-northwesterly trending fault is exposed along the eastern part of the Jumpoff Joe
headland, located approximately 800 feet south of the site, which dips to the east at
approximately 23 degrees. This fault is a normal fault with its upthrown side to the west. The
fault cuts Tertiary units with no evidence of recent activity.

The nearest mapped potentially active faults are the Yaquina Bay Fault located
approximately 1.3 miles south of the site, and the Yaquina Head Fault located approximately 1.9
miles north of the site. The Yaquina Bay Fault is a generally east-northeast trending oblique fault
that also has lefi-lateral strike-slip and either contractional or extensional dip-slip offset
components (Personius et al., 2003). This fault is believed to extend offshore for approximately
7 to 8 miles and may be a structurally controlling feature for the mouth of Yaquina Bay
(Goldfinger et al., 1996; Geomatrix, 1995). At Yaquina Bay, a 125,000 year old platform has
been displaced approximately 223 feet up-on-the-north by the Yaquina Bay Fault. This fault has
the largest component of vertical slip (as much as 2 feet per 1,000 years) of any active fault in
coastal Oregon or Washington (Geomatrix, 1995). Although the age for the last movement of the
Yaquina Bay Fault is not known, the fault also offsets 80,000 year old marine terrace sediments.
The Yaquina Head Fault is an east-trending oblique fault with left-lateral strike-slip and either
contractional or extensional dip-slip offset components (Personius et al., 2003). It offsets the
80,000 year old Newport marine terrace in the area of the site by approximately 5 feet, indicating
a relatively low rate of slip, if still active (Schlicker et al., 1973; Personius et al., 2003).

lo ability and Erosion

The steep slope on the east-central area of the subject lot is part of the headscarp of a
landslide, and the lower elevation western part of the site lies on a downdropped landslide block
(Figure 4; Appendix A). The mapped active landslide north of the Jumpoff Joe headland, and
with its northernmost lateral scarp located along the northern and eastern prdperty boundaries of
the subject lot, is generally referred to as the Spring Street landslide.

The subject site lies on a mapped active landslide block (Figure 4). The site is located
about % mile north of the Jumpoff Joe landslide, a well-documented translational landslide that
was first noted in 1922 with substantial movement and damage to structures in 1942 and 1943;
continued movement has been observed to the present date. As noted above, the site also lies at
the northem part of the more recent, large Spring Street landslide (Figure 4). Significant
movement of the Spring Street landslide occurred in the 1960s and unstable conditions continued
at least into the 1970s (Schlicker et al., 1973). Based on our 2016 site observations there does

ﬂ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, ..



239

Project #Y163923 Page 5
not appear to have been identifiable movement at the subject lot since the time of our 2005 site
visit, but this would be difficult to discern due to the home remodeling.

The site lies in an area mapped as undergoing critical erosion of marine terraces and
sediments (Schlicker et al, 1973). Priest and others (1994) and Priest (1997) have determined the
average annual erosion rate for the shoreline in the vicinity of the site as 1.35 + 0.63 feet per year.
This erosion rate was calculated by measuring the distance between existing structures to the toe

of the slope and compared to distances measured on a 1939 or 1967 vertical aerial photograph
(Priest et al., 1994).

Based on mapping completed by Priest and Allan (2004), the subject site lies within the
Active Erosion Hazard Zone. The area to approximately 50 feet east of the eastern ¢dge of N.W.
Spring Street, lies in the High-Risk Coastal Erosion Hazard Zone; and the area approximately
150 feet further east to Hurbert Street, lies in the Moderate-Risk Coastal Erosion Hazard Zone.
A site within the High-Risk Hazard Zone has a high probability that the area could be affected by
active erosion in the next approximately 60 to 100 years, and a site within the Moderate-Risk
Hazard Zone has a moderate probability that the area could be affected by active erosion in the
next approximately 60 to 100 years (Priest and Allan, 2004). It should be noted that the mapping

done for the 2004 study was intended for regional planning use, not for site specific hazard
identification.

The City of Newport Geologic Hazards Map (June 17, 2011) shows the entire subject site
lying in the area mapped as “Active Erosion Hazard Zone”. All of the site located to the east of
the beach and bluff toe is mapped as “Active Landslide Hazard Areas”. Areas east of the site

along N.W. Spring Street are mapped as “High Risk Bluff Hazard Zone”. The City of Newport
mapping is based on Priest’s 1994 mapping.

Based on our 2016 observations the subject lot appears to have been generally stable
since the time of our 2005 site observations. Lots to the south of the subject site, however appear
to have had recent ground movement and landsliding activity.

5.0 Regional Seismic Hazards

Abundant evidence indicates that a series of geologically recent large earthquakes related
to the Cascadia Subduction Zone have occurred along the coastline of the Pacific Northwest.
Evidence suggests that more than 40 great earthquakes of magnitude 8 and larger have struck
western Oregon during the last 10,000 years. The calculated odds that a Cascadia earthquake
will occur in the next 50 years range from 7-15 percent for & great earthquake affecting the entire
Pacific Northwest, to about a 37 percent chance that the southern end of the Cascadia Subduction
Zone will produce a major earthquake in the next 50 years (OSSPAC, 2013; OSU News and
Research Communications, 2010; Goldfinger et al., 2012). Evidence suggests the last major
earthquake occurred on January 26, 1700 and may have been of magnitude 8.9 to 9.0 (Clague et

al., 2000; DOGAMI, 2013).
ﬂ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, ..




240

Project #Y163923 Page 6

There is now increasing recognition that great earthquakes do not necessarily result in a
complete rupture along the full 1,200 km fault length of the Cascadia subduction zone. Evidence
in the paleorecords indicates that partial ruptures of the plate boundary have occurred due to
smaller earthquakes with moment magnitudes (Mw) < 9 (Witter et al., 2003; Kelsey et al., 2005).
These partial segment ruptures appear to occur more frequently on the southern Oregon coast, as
- determined from paleotsunami studies. Furthermore, the records have documented that local
tsunamis from Cascadia earthquakes recur in clusters (~250-400 years) followed by gaps of
700-1,300 years, with the highest tsunamis associated with earthquakes occurring at the
beginning and end of a cluster (Allan et al., 2015).

These major earthquake events were accompanied by widespread subsidence of a few
centimeters to 1-2 meters (Leonard et al., 2004). Tsunamis appear to have been associated with
many of these earthquakes. In addition, settlement, liquefaction and landsliding of some earth
materials are believed to have been commonly associated with these seismic events.

Other earthquakes related to shallow crustal movements or earthquakes related to the
Juan de Fuca plate have the potential to generate magnitude 6.0 to 7.5 earthquakes. The
recurrence interval for these types of earthquakes is difficult to determine from present data, but
estimates of 100 to 200 years have been given in the literature (Rogers et al., 1996).

Based on the 1999 Relative Earthquake Hazard Map of the Newport area (Madin and
Wang, 1999), the subject site lies in an area designated as Zone B which is defined as an area
with intermediate to high hazards associated with earthquakes. The degree of relative hazard was
based on the factors of ground motion amplification, liquefaction, and slope instability. It is

likely that deep-seated landsliding in the area of the site is, in part, associated with past seismic
activity.

6.0 Flooding Hazards

Based on the 2009 Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM, Panel #41041C0368D) the subject
site lies in an area rated as Zone X which is defined as determined to be outside the 0.2% annual
chance floodplain. The western part of the site along the lower slope and beach lies in an area
rated as Zone VE (EL 38) which is defined as a coastal flood zone with velocity hazard (wave
action); base flood elevations determined. We observed a small stream drainage flowing
westerly across the beach area north of the subject lot at the time of our site visit. A small spring
was present at the western toe of the dunes along the beach at the site, and standing water was

present in a closed depression east of the dunes (Appendix A). We also observed a substantial
spring on the slope west of the home.

Based on the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries mapping (DOGAMI,
2013) the subject site lies within the tsunami inundation zone resulting from an approximately
8.7 and greater magnitude Cascadia Subduction Zone (CSZ) earthquake. The 2013 DOGAMI
mapping is based upon 5 computer modeled scenarios for shoreline tsunami inundation caused

'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, .



241

Project #Y163923 Page 7
by potential CSZ earthquake events ranging in magnitude from approximately 8.7.to 9.1. The
January 1700 earthquake event (discussed in Section 5.0 above) has been rated as an approximate

8.9 magnitude in DOGAMTI's methodology. More distant earthquakes can also generate
tsunamis.

7.0 Climate Change

According to most of the recent scientific studies, the Earth’s climate is believed to be
changing as the result of human activities which are altering the chemical composition of the
atmosphere through the buildup of greenhouse gases, primarily carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, and chlorofluorocarbons (EPA, 1998). Although there are uncertainties about exactly how
and when the Earth’s climate will respond to enhanced concentrations of greenhouse gases,
scientific observations indicate that detectable changes are undér way (EPA, 1998; Church and
White, 2006). Global sea level rise, caused by melting polar ice caps and ocean thermal
expansion, could lead to flooding of low-lying coastal property, loss of coastal wetlands, erosion
of beaches and bluffs, and saltwater contamination of fresh groundwater. Global climate change
and the resultant sea level rise will likely impact the subject site through accelerated coastal

erosion and bluff retreat. It can also lead to increased rainfall which can result in an increase in
landslide occurrence.

8.0 Conclusions
The main engineering geologic concerns at the site are:

1 The site lies on an ancient landslide and on a mapped deep-seated active slide
block. The headscarp of this active landslide, named the Spring Street landslide,
is located along the northern and eastern property boundaries of the site (Figure
4). Nearby areas north and south of the site show signs of continued slow
movement, and we expect the subject site to experience extremely small ongoing
movement under existing conditions; however, we did not observe any conclusive
evidence of this during our March 2016 site visit.

Landslide movement at the subject site and/or in the site area could be initiated by
a large earthquake, by erosion at the bluff toe, or as a result of high groundwater
levels. Future landsliding in the area could impact and damage existing structures
on the site. Ocean wave erosion can erode the toe of the landslide mass,
increasing the risk of larger sized failures. The site lies within the mapped Active
Coastal Erosion Hazard Zone, defined as cwrrently undergoing bluff recession and
erosion, with a lesser risk (High-Risk Zone i.e. high risk of bluff recession within
the next 60 years) in areas east of the site along N.W. Spring Street. These risks
should be accepted by the owner, future owners, developers and

residents/occupants of the site,
‘ﬂ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, ..




242

Project #Y163923 Page 8

2. There is an inherent regional risk of earthquakes along the Oregon Coast which
could cause harm and damage structures. It is unlikely that the site would be
stable during a large earthquake event, particularly if the earthquake occurs during
wet weather, The lower bluff slope and beach on the western part of the subject
site is mapped in a coastal flood hazard zone, and the site also lies within a
mapped tsunami inundation hazard zone. A tsunami impacting the Newport area
could cause harm, loss of life and damage to structures. These risks must be
accepted by the owner, future owners, developers and residents of the site,

9.0 Recommendations

The site and nearby areas along the bluff slope should be monitored for signs of ground
movement, fractures, sloughing, increased bluff recession, and sudden/rapid erosion events,
particularly during times of heavy precipitation, inclement or severe weather, and major storms.

The existing pile foundation of the house has experienced some movement, possibly as
the result of ground movement caused by landslide activity. Monitoring of the foundation is
recommended to document any additional movement. Periodic floor elevation surveys can also
help monitor for additional mevement. All parts of the homesite and foundations should be
regularly observed and monitored for signs of movement, settlement and/or cracking.
Monitoring of this type can provide beneficial information for subsequent property transfers.

Stormwater runoff from the road and driveway should continue to be collected, tightlined
and discharged to the beach. No stormwater should be discharged to the bluff/landslide area.

10.0 Limitations

The Oregon Coast is a dynamic environment with inhercnt unavoidable risks to
development. Landsliding, erosion, tsunamis, storms, earthquakes and othér natural events can
cause severe impacts to structures built within this environment and can be detrimental to the
health and welfare of those who choose to place themselves within this environment. The client
is warned that, although this report is intended to identify the geologic hazards causing these
risks, the scientific and engineering communities knowledge and understanding of geologic
hazards processes is not complete. This report pertains to the subject site only, and is not
applicable to adjacent sites nor is it valid for types of development other than that to which it
refers. Geologic conditions including materials, processes and rates can change with time and

therefore a review of the site and/or this report may be necessary as time passes to assure its
accuracy and adequacy.

The boring logs and related information depict generalized subsurface conditions only at
these specificlocations and at the particular time the subsurface exploration was completed. Soil
and groundwater conditions at other locations and times may differ from the conditions

encountered in these borings.
'ﬁ H.G. Schlicker & Associates, :.



243

Project #Y163923 Page 9
Our investigation was based on engineering geological reconnaissance and a limited
review of published information. The data presented in this report are believed to be
representative of the site. The conclusions herein are professional opinions derived in
accordance with current standards of professional practice, budget and time constraints. No
warranty is expressed or implied. The performance of this site during a seismic event has not

been evaluated. If you would like us to do so, please contact us. This report may only be copied
in its entirety.

11.0 Disclosure

H.G. Schlicker & Associates, Inc. and the undersigned Certified Engineering Geologist
have no financial interest in the subject site, the project or the Client’s organization.

12.0 References

Allan, J. C,, Ruggiero, P., Cohn, N., Garcia, G., O’Brien, F. E., Serafin, K., Stimely, L. L. and
Roberts, J. T., 2015, Coastal Flood Hazard Study, Lincoln County, Oregon